BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
February 22, 2023
Regular Meeting - 5:00 p.-m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk,
at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https:/ [us06web.zoom.us/i/8253421 8127?pwd=c21mT201 bWJuZDhMaUZPNWRrWDNBUTO9

Meeting ID
825 3421 8127

Passcode:

272338

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)
+1 253 205 0468 US
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

b. Roll Call

C. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard
after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

(Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion.)

1. Approval of Minutes for: January 25, 2023 Regular Meeting
2. Allowance of Claims
3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the February Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates
REGULAR AGENDA

5. FYE 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit

a. Presentation by McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman

b. Consider Acceptance and Authorize Distribution

6. Consider Resolution Adopting the 2022 San Benito County
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

7. Consider Authorizing the General Manager Execute a Contract with Todd
Groundwater to Prepare Specialized Design and Environmental /Permit
Support Associated with the Accelerated Drought Response Project
(ADRoP) (NTE $234,400)

8. Consider Appointing Barbara Mauro as Secretary of the Board of
Directors

9. Discuss and Consider Authorization to Increase Contract Purchase Order
(P.O. #8037) to CSI Services by $15,784 for Inspection Services for the
Industrial Paint Project (NTE $80,784)

10. Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Wittry)

b. Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority
(Flores/Shelton)

- c. Mid Pacific Water Users Conference, Reno, Nevada January 25-27,
2023 (Tonascia)

d. Water Resources Association (Flores/Shelton)
e. Finance Committee (Tonascia/Wright)
f. Personnel Committee (Flores/Tonascia)

g. Recycled Water Committee (Flores/Shelton)




11. Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report
12. General Manager’s Report:

a) General Comments

b) Reach 1 Operations

c) Zone 3 Operations

d) Zone 6 Operations

e) San Luis Delta Mendota Authority Activities

1) Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project

City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan

s

13.  Adjournment

Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting of the Board will be Wednesday, March
29, 2023. Meetings are held at the District office, 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. LAST DAY TO FILE CLAIMS against
the District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December, Usually meeting dates change in those months
because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee negotiations as
authorized by the Raiph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #950-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,
Hollister, California.




January 25, 2023
Regular Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, January 25, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District
office at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Sonny
Flores, Vice President Andrew Shelton and Directors Doug Williams and Mark Wright; Director
Joe Tonascia participated remotely from the Mid Pacific Water User Conference in Reno,
Nevada. Also present were General Manager Steve Wittry, District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem,
Manager of Administration, Finance and Business Services Joyce Machado, Finance Manager
Natalie Sullivan, Associate Engineer David Macdonald, Operations and Maintenance Supervisor
Michael Craig, Water Programmer III Anne Stull, Human Resources/Administrative Analyst
Cindy Tyler, Customer Account Specialist II Brenda Bermudez, Office Specialist I1I Cindy
Paine, Office Specialist I Athina Frederico and Board Clerk/Office Specialist III Barbara Mauro.

CALL TO ORDER
President Flores called the meeting to order at 5:00 p-m.

a, Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Flores led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll; Members present at the District were: President Flores, Vice
President Shelton and Directors Williams and Wright; Director Tonascia participated via
Zoom. Mrs. Mauro reminded the Board, because a director was participating remotely,
all votes will be by roll call.

c. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda
Before agenda approval, Mr. Wittry stated there are 2 corrections to the agenda. Agenda
item #13, the correct contract amount should read $3,485,453; it is incorrect on the
agenda but correct on the transmittal in the packet. Also, there is an urgency item that
needs to be added to the agenda. This came up after the packet was distributed on January
20, 2023. San Benito County has requested a letter of support from the District for a
grant that has a deadline of January 31, 2023, so this matter cannot wait until the next
regular board meeting. Mr. Liem added, this item would need a vote of 4/5 of the Board,
finding the necessity to add this to tonight’s agenda.

With a motion by Vice President Shelton, noting the correction to the amount for agenda
item #13 and the addition of the urgency item, which will become agenda item #14; this
was seconded by Director Williams; the Agenda was approved by 5 affirmative votes,
Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

€. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



PUBLIC APPEARANCE

a.

Consider Resolution Recognizing Natalie Sullivan for her 21 Years

of Service to the District

Mrs. Machado read the resolution, recognizing Natalie Sullivan’s service to the District
into the record. Mrs. Machado added they shared a mutual admiration for one another,
and she further thanked Mrs. Sullivan for her dedicated service on behalf of the staff.
Mrs. Sullivan thanked the Board for her years at the District and stated how important the
betterment of the community was to her service. President Flores thanked Mrs. Sullivan
on behalf of the Board.

With a motion by Director Williams and a second by Director Tonascia, Resolution
2023-02, A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District
Recognizing Natalie Sullivan for her 21 Years of Service to the District was approved by
5 affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call
vote.

CONSENT AGENDA.:

1.

A o

Approval of Minutes for: December 21,2022 Regular Meeting

January 9, 2023 Special Meeting
Allowance of Claims
Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the January Board Meeting
Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report, December 31,2022
On Call Contracts — Status Updates
Consider Resolution regarding the District Manager/General Manager’s
Authority to Approve Water Transfers and Execute Documents on behalf of said
District and to Conduct Certain Banking Transactions (Resolution 2023-03)
Consider Resolution Designating Agents to make transfers on the Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) (Resolution 2023-04)
Consider Resolution Amending the Standard Model Conflict of Interest Code
for the San Benito County Water District (Resolution 2023-05)
With no questions from the Board, a motion was made by Vice President Shelton and a
second by Director Wright, the Consent Agenda was approved by 5 affirmative votes,
Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

REGULAR AGENDA:

9.

Public Hearing regarding 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Zone 6 Water Years
San Felipe Distribution System Rates and Charges and 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and
2025-2026 Groundwater Charges

a. Proof of Mailing and Proof of Publication submitted for Notice of
Public Hearing Mrs. Mauro verified both the proof of mailing and the proof of
publication for notification of tonight’s Public Hearing.

b. Presentation of 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years San Felipe
Distribution System Rates and Charges and 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-
2026 Groundwater Charges

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



Mr. Wittry thanked District staff and Raftelis for all the hard work that went into
the rate study. Mr. Wittry added Theresa Jurotich from Raftelis would be making
a Power Point presentation.

Ms. Jurotich reviewed the framework for the rate setting, which began in July
2021, continued with a Board workshop in February 2022 and the presentation of
the draft rate study in November 2022 to the Board so the Prop 218 notices could
be mailed to the affected customers. The Final Draft Report was distributed on
December 8, 2022 and finally the rates are being considered at a public hearing at
tonight’s meeting.

Ms. Jurotich stated there is a new M & I Water Supply Reliability Rate, which she
reviewed. She further reviewed the proposed three year rates for San F elipe, M &
I, Groundwater and Recycled Water rates. Ms. Jurotich gave an overview of how
these rates were determined through the rate study.

c. Open Public Hearing ,
i.  Consider Written Protests
President Flores opened the Public Hearing. Mrs. Mauro verified there
was 1 written protest for the San Felipe rate increase and 1 written protest
for the Groundwater rate increase; both from the same customer.

d. Close Public Hearing and Adjourn if there is a Majority Protest or
continue to later date
President Flores, seeing there were no public comments and that there was not a
majority protest, closed the Public Hearing.

e. If there is no Majority Protest, Consider Adoption of 2023-2024,
2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years San Felipe Distribution
System Rates and Charges and 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and
2025-2026 Groundwater Charges

i Consider Ordinance Establishing San Felipe
Distribution System Water Rates and Charges for
Agricultural and Non-Agricultural (Municipal and
Industrial) Water for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and
2025-2026 Water Years
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Williams,
the Board of Directors approved Ordinance 64, An Ordinance of the Board
of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Establishing San
Felipe Distribution System Water Rates and Charges for Agricultural and
Non-Agricultural (Municipal and Industrial) Water for the 2023-2024,
2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years by 5 affirmative votes, Flores,
Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



10.

11.

il Consider Resolution Establishing Groundwater
Charges in Zone 6 for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and
2025-2026 Water Years
With a motion by Director Wright and a second by Vice President
Shelton, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2023-06, A4
Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District Establishing Groundwater Charges in Zone 6 for the 2023-2024,
2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years by 5 affirmative votes, Flores,
Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

Public Hearing regarding the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026, Rates and
Charges for the Recycled Water

a.

Proof of Mailing and Proof of Publication submitted for Notice of
Public Hearing Mrs. Mauro verified both the proof of mailing and the proof
of publication for notification of tonight’s Public Hearing.

Presentation of the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Rates and Charges
for the Recycled Water
These rates were presented under agenda item #9.

Open Public Hearing
i.  Consider Written Protests
President Flores opened the Public Hearing. Mrs. Mauro confirmed the
District did not receive any written protests for the Recycled Water
proposed rates.

Close Public Hearing and Adjourn if there is a Majority Protest or

continue to later date
President Flores, seeing there were no public comments and that there was not a

majority protest, closed the Public Hearing.

If there is no Majority Protest, Consider Approval of Ordinance for the
2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Rates and Charges for the Recycled
Water

With a motion by Director Williams and a second by Director Tonascia, the
Board of Directors approved Ordinance 65, An Ordinance of the Board of
Directors of the San Benito County Water District for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025
and 2025-2026 Rates and Charges by 5 affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton,
Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

Public Hearing regarding Zone 6 Standby or Availability Charge for the 2023-2024,
2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years

a.

Proof of Publication submitted for Notice of Public Hearing Mrs. Mauro
verified both the proof of mailing and the proof of publication for notification of
tonight’s Public Hearing.

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023




12.

13.

b. Presentation of Establishing Standby or Availability Charge for the
2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 Water Years
These rates were presented under agenda item #9.

c. Open Public Hearing
i.  Consider Written Protests
President Flores opened the Public Hearing. Mrs. Mauro confirmed the
District did not receive any written protests for the Standby or Availability
Charge proposed rates.

d. Close Public Hearing and Adjourn if there is a Majority Protest or

continue to a later date
President Flores, seeing there were no public comments and that there was not a

majority protest, closed the Public Hearing.

e. If there is no Majority Protest, Consider Resolution Establishing
Standby or Availability Charge for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026
Water Years

With a motion by Vice President Shelton and a second by Director Wright, the
Board of Directors approved Resolution 2023-07, A Resolution of the Board of
Directors of the San Benito County Water District Establishing Standby or
Availability Charge for the 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and the 2025-2026 Water
Years by 5 affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright,
taken by a roll call vote.

Consider Resolution Authorizing an Application be made to the California
Department of Water Resources for an Integrated Regional Water Management
Grant pursuant to the Water Quality, Supply and Infrastructure Improvement Act
of 2014 (Water Code Section 79700 et. seq.), enter into an agreement and granting
District/General Manager Authorization to Execute Documents in relation thereto
Mrs. Machado stated this resolution was originally approved in November 2022 by the
Board, but the California Department of Water Resources is very specific about the
language for grant application, so the resolution is before the Board again, just for that
reason.

With a motion by Director Williams and a second by Director Tonascia, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution 2023-08 A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San
Benito County Water District Authorizing an Application be made to the California
Department of Water Resources for an Integrated Regional Water Management Grant
pursuant to the Water Quality, Supply and Infrastructure Improvement Act of 2014
(Water Code Section 79700 et. seq.), enter into an agreement and granting
District/General Manager Authorization to Execute Documents in relation thereto by 5
affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call
vote.

Authorize General Manager to Execute Amendment 27 with HDR, Inc. to prepare
design, environmental documents and permitting associated with the Accelerated
Drought Response Project (NTE $3,407,519)

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



14.

15.

16.

Mr. Wittry stated the District has continued to work on sustainable water supply options
during the drought. The contract before the Board is the next step in this process. Mr.
Wittry stated there is some urgency with respect to a grant opportunity and the District
would need to have bid ready documents. He further stated there are other grants for the
construction of this project. The time frame for this grant is over the next three years.
Mr. Wittry did further add that if the grants are not successful, the rates approved earlier
will support the 1% phase of the project, which he then reviewed. HDR has been a vendor
of the District’s for more than twenty years.

Director Tonascia stated if no grants have been approved yet, he would prefer items
similar to this, to go to committee before coming to the Board to approve.

With a motion by Vice President Shelton and a second by Director Wright, the Board of
Directors Authorized the General Manager to Execute Amendment 27 with HDR, Inc. to
prepare design, environmental documents and permitting associated with the Accelerated
Drought Response Project ($3,485,453) by 5 affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton, Tonascia,
Williams and Wright, taken by a roll call vote.

Consider Letter of Support for San Benito County’s Grant submittal

Mr. Wittry stated this item was received by the District after the Board packet for
tonight’s meeting was distributed. He then reviewed what the grant funding would cover
and that this is supported by the State Water Quality Control Board for the quality and
quantity of water in that area. The grant application deadline is January 31, 2023 and
because our District is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for San Benito
County our support is vital. If the District did not support this application, the County
would not even be considered.

With a motion by Director Williams and a second by Vice President Shelton, the Board
of Directors approved the Letter of Support for San Benito County’s Grant submittal by 4
affirmative votes, Flores, Shelton, Williams and Wright, and 1 abstention, Tonascia;
taken by a roll call vote.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a) San Luis Delta Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Wittry)
Director Tonascia reported the Authority is hoping for a 10-15% Agricultural
water allocation by sometime in March. Four of the five delta pumps were
running during the recent rain and one of the canals had a breech during the
storms. San Luis Reservoir is at about 70% capacity and is expected to fill,

b) Investment Committee (Flores/W illiams)
Directors Flores and Williams reported the quarterly report was discussed.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

Mr. Craig shared the drone video of Hernandez Reservoir spilling during the heavy
storms; it is no longer spilling. He also reported Paicines Reservoir started to fill but it
brought in a lot of silt and debris. District staff has cleaned out the debris and the water
quality is now close to where it needs to be. Mr. Craig stated the District sustained some
minor damage, but it could have been much worse.

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



17.

Director Wright asked what the storage of Paicines Reservoir is. Mr. Craig stated it is
likely to fill and Mr. Macdonald stated it is 2700 acre-feet when full.

General Manager’s Report:
Mr. Wittry thanked the Board for his new position and stated he would like to connect
with Board members monthly on a 1:1 basis, either in person or via telephone.

a)

b)

d)

Reach 1 Operations
Mr. Wittry reported Bifurcation remains off and likely will be off through mid-
February.

Zone 3 Operations

Mr. Wittry reported Zone 3 received a lot of water due to the recent storms and it
is taking a lot of time on the part of the maintenance and engineering staff to
manage the operations.

Zone 6 Operations
Mr. Wittry reported the only item he had was the three years of rates, which were
approved earlier tonight.

San Luis Delta Mendota Authority Activities

Mr. Wittry added to what Director Tonascia reported. The Operations and
Maintenance budget was approved. Discussion was held and important
comments were made, particularly by our staff, which included Jeff Cattaneo, to
keep a watchful eye on behalf of our District.

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project
Mr. Wittry reported Santa Clara Valley Water District has halted most of their
investigations until Spring, but this had been decided upon prior to the storms.

City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan

Mr. Wittry reported staff is working through some challenges with the response
received from the City of San Juan Bautista and a meeting is scheduled for later
this week to discuss both agreements.

Additional questions/comments

Director Tonascia asked if the District is releasing water out of Hernandez
Reservoir. Mr. Wittry stated releasing water creates issues for landowners near
the reservoir to cross in certain places and they have asked the District to wait
before releasing. Director Tonascia added this has been an ongoing issue.

Bob Huenemann, a member of the public participating remotely, asked for more
information on the urgency item added to the agenda, as he is against the project
this is for. As Mr. Huenemann was asking specifically about the project, Mr.
Wittry stated for more information on the project itself, Mr. Huenemann should
contact Steve Loupe at the County RMA or Drew Lander at Sunnyslope County
Water District.

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023

AT



Mr. Huenemann asked for a brief description of the project the District is
endorsing. Mr. Wittry replied that the District is simply offering a letter of
support as the GSA for a grant application, and he understands the project is
approximately $17 million.

Mr. Liem, District Counsel, added the only action the Board has taken is
approving a letter of support for the application of the grant.

Mr. Huenemann and Director Tonascia discussed the merits of the comments
occurring after agenda item #14 was approved. Mr. Huenemann became agitated,
used vulgar language and his link through Zoom was closed due to his behavior.

18. Adjournment
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:02 p.m.

Sonny Flores, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Board Clerk

Regular Meeting Minutes, January 25, 2023



OyDLCI 1.
User Date:

Batch ID:

LI TOILVLL 120024

2/15/202:

Batch Comment;

IT IS CERTIFIED THAT THE FOLLOWING IS A TRUE LIST OF CLAIMS PROPERLY
AND REGULARLY COMING BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SAID
DISTRICT ON: FEBRUARY 22, 2023

CK022223
Board Claims, February 22, 2023

Qdit DENHO Lounty vvater vistict

COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

Payables Management

rage:

User ID: Athina
Audit Trail Code: PMCHK00000959
Posting Date: 2/22/2023

Check # Date Payment Number  Vendor D Check Name Amount

0056910 2/22/2023 030703 A1JAN A-1 Services $524.00
0056911  2/22/2023 030704 ALLIA Alliance Resource Consulting $6,199.00
0056912  2/22/2023 030705 B&SSU B&S Supply $1,616.62
0056913 2/22/2023 030706 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc $438.00
0056914 2/22/2023 030707 BENIT Benito Link $2,808.00
0056915 2/22/2023 030708 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation $559.13
0056916 2/22/2023 030709 BRYCE Bryce Consulting Inc $5,310.00
0056917  2/22/2023 030710 CCOIG C.C.0.l. Gate & Fence $2,905.00
0056918 2/22/2023 030711 CINTA Cintas Corporation $518.62
0066919  2/22/2023 030712 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc $523.04
0056920 2/22/2023 030713 EBCO EBCO Pest Control $60.00
0056921 2/22/2023 030714 EDGES Edges Electrical Group $305.69
0056922 2/22/2023 030715 ELCCO ELC Consulting $8,477.00
0056923 2/22/2023 030716 FASTE Fastenal Company $53.37
0056924  2/22/2023 030717 FIBER Fiber Glass Systems LP $94,958.16
0056925 2/22/2023 030718 GRAIN GRAINGER $420.70
0056926 2/22/2023 030719 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates $1,160.00
0056927 2/22/2023 030720 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants $12,302.50
0056928  2/22/2023 030721 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts inc $81.27
0056929 2/22/2023 030722 HOLLA Hollister Landscape Supply $458.87
0056930 2/22/2023 030723 ICONI ICONIX Waterworks Inc $3,153.32
0056931 2/22/2023 030724 INDEP Independent Business Forms Inc $79.76
0056932 2/22/2023 030725 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company $737.38
0056933 2/22/2023 030726 KRONI Kronick Moskovitz Tiedemann & Girard $9,274.20
0056934 2/22/2023 030727 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwell ( $400.00
0056935 2/22/2023 030728 LIEBE Liebert Cassidy Whitmore $1,917.00
0056936  2/22/2023 030729 MAGGI Maggiora Brothers Drilling $1,430.32
0056937 2/22/2023 030730 MARKN Mark Nicholson Inc $16,081.17
0056938 2/22/2023 030731 MCGIL McGilloway Ray Brown & Kaufman $10,600.00
0056939 2/22/2023 030732 MCKIN McKinnon Lumber Inc $727.07
0056940 2/22/2023 030733 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC $305.00
0056941  2/22/2023 030734 MONTERE Monterey Peninsula Engineering $266,224.81
0056942  2/22/2023 030735 NEWSV New SV Media Inc $2,314.00
0056943 2/22/2023 030736 PALAC Palace Business Solutions $3,251.33
0056944 2/22/2023 030737 PIPAL Pipal Spurzem & Liem LLP $3,400.00
0056945 2/22/2023 030738 SBASSES San Benito Cty Assessors $13,622.00
0056946 2/22/2023 030739 SBCEN San Benito County Environmental Health £ $2,540.00
0056947 2/22/2023 030740 SCVWD Santa Clara Valley Water Dist $188,609.60
0056948 2/22/2023 030741 STEVE Steven Engineering $101.94
0056949 2/22/2023 030742 TODDE Todd Groundwater $39,028.25
0056950 2/22/2023 030743 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation $3,049.74
0056951 2/22/2023 030744 TRUEV True Value Hardware $38.82
0056952 2/22/2023 030745 TURBO Turbo Time Welding $360.00
0056953 2/22/2023 030746 UNIFI Unified Field Services Corporation $73,319.10
0056954 2/22/2023 030747 USBNK-CC US Bank Corporation $4,354.60
0056955 2/22/2023 030748 USGEO U.S. Geological Survey $24,067.50
0056956 2/22/2023 030749 WEIST Weist Law LLP $1,000.00



YD LI10lavec 1£.90. Qdll DeHIL GOUULILY vvalel WisuioL rayce.

L
User Date: 2/15/2023 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER User ID: Athina

* Voided Checks

Check# Date Payment Number Vendor 1D Check Name Amount
0056957 2/22/2023 030750 WRIIN Wright Bros Industrial Supply $150.33
0056958 2/22/2023 030751 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich $4,290.00

Total Checks: 49 Checks Total: $814,106.21




Page: 3

41 10I1LULS  1£.U0., odn Benito Lounty vvater District
User ID: Athina

2/15/2023 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

UyOLCI .

User Date:

*Voided Checks

Check # Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

| DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THIS 22TH DAY OF FEBRUARY 2023 THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE

BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME ARE ACCURATE AND JUST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT:
AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

Ovies Madnado

Péépeﬂed by: Accountant

Submitted by: District Manager

APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON:
Date

President




San Benito County Water District
Payment Fund Responsibility

2/15/2023

Page 1 of 17
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030703 2/15/2023 $524.00 AlJAN A-1 Services
Voucher: 047367 Invoice: 4753 Date: 2/1/2023  Janitorial Services Doc Amt: $524.00
Allocations: $30.60 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $15.30 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $260.10 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $21.80 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $10.90 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $185.30 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $52.40 Fund 300: $26.20 Fund 600: $445.40
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030704 2/15/2023 $6,199.00 ALLIA Alliance Resource Consulting
Voucher: 047445 Invoice: SBCWD-03-01_EXPENS Date: 1/30/2023 Recruiting Service Doc Amt:  $1,199.00
Allocations: $59.95 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,019.15 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $119.90 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 047446 Invoice: SBCWD-03-01/02 Date: 1/30/2023 Recruiting Service Doc Amt: $5,000.00
Allocations: $125.00 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $2,125.00 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $250.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $125.00 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $2,125.00 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $250.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $619.90 Fund 300: $309.95 Fund 600: $5,269.15
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030705 2/15/2023 §1,616.62 B&SSU B&S Supply
Voucher: 047411 Invoice: 2200 Date: 2/10/2023 Contracted Maintenance Doc Amt:  $1,616.62
Allocations: $1,616.62 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,616.62
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
030706 2/15/2023 $438.00 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc
Voucher: 047313 Invoice: 41846 Date: 2/1/2023  On-Screen Ad Doc Amt: $438.00



Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00
Fund 803:$438.00

$438.00 803-6865-0000-562

Fund 300: $0.00

Advertising/Public Info (PI)

Fund 600: $0.00

Page20f17

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030707 2/15/2023 $2,808.00 BENIT Benito Link Inc,
Voucher: 047319 Invoice: 13597 Date: 1/30/2023 Advertising Doc Amt:  $2,808.00
Allocations: $2,808.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100; $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$2,808.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030708 2/15/2023 $559.13 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation
Voucher: 047304 Invoice: 220000023327 Date: 1/25/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $20.10
Allocations: $20.10 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M
Voucher: 047331 Invoice: 220000023397 Date: 1/26/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $382.53
Allocations: $382.53 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 047375 Invoice: 220000024290 Date: 2/8/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $47.45
Allocations: $47.45 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 047412 Invoice: 220000024347 Date: 2/9/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $109.05
Allocations: $109.05 600-1503-0605-125 Water Right -WWTP Storage Pond
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $559.13
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030709 2/15/2023 $5,310.00 BRYCE Bryce Consulting Inc
Voucher: 047426 Invoice: 4311 Date: 1/31/2023 General Consulting Doc Amt:  $3,060.00
Allocations: $153.00 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $2,601.00 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $306.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 047436 Invoice: 4256 Date: 11/30/2023 General Consulting Doc Amt: $2,250.00
Allocations: $112.50 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consuiting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,912.50 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $225.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85




Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fun
Fund 700: $0.00

d 100: $531.00

Fund 803:50.00

Fund 300: $265.50

Fund 600: $4,513.50

Page 3 of 17

Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
030710 2/15/2023 $2,905.00 CCOIG C.C.0.1 Gate & Fence
Voucher: 047388 Invoice: 3652119030 Date: 6/9/2022 Maintenance SIR Gate Doc Amt: $95.00
Allocations: $95.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Voucher: 047408 Invoice: 3652123155 Date: 1/27/2023 Maintenance SIR Gate Doc Amt: $2,810.00
Allocations: $2,810.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $2,905.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030711 2/15/2023 $518.62 CINTA Cintas Corporation
Voucher: 047294 Invoice: 4144438332 Date: 1/24/2023 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $97.18
Allocations: $9.72  100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $4.86 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $82.60 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 047359 Invoice: 4145823685 Date: 2/7/2023  Weekly Service Doc Amt: $97.18
Allocations: $9.72  100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $4.86 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $82.60 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 047360 Invoice: 4145141356 Date: 1/31/2023 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $97.18
Allocations: $9.72  100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $4.86 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $82.60 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 047362 Invoice: 1903709183 Date: 2/2/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $129.90
Allocations: $110.42 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $12.99 100-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $6.50 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Voucher: 047437 Invoice: 4146545484 Date: 2/14/2023 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $97.18
Allocations: $9.72  100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $4.86 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $82.60 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Respounsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $51.86 Fund 300: $25.93 Fund 600: $440.83
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030712 2/15/2023 $523.04 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc
Voucher: 047312 Invoice: 350344 Date: 1/23/2023 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $12.50



Paged of 17

Allocations: $10.63 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.63 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Alocations: $1.25 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher: 047425 Invoice: 351520 Date: 2/8/2023 Copier Lease Doc Amt: $510.54
Allocations: $16.80 100-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $8.40 300-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $142.77 600-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $34.26 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $17.13  300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $291.19 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $52.30 Fund 300: $26.15 Fund 600: $444.58
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030713 2/15/2023 $60.00 EBCO EBCO Pest Control
Voucher: 047293 Invoice: 18365 Date: 1/21/2023 Monthly Pest Control Doc Amt: $60.00
Allocations: $6.00 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.00 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $51.00 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $6.00 Fund 300: $3.00 Fund 600: $51.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
030714 2/15/2023 $305.69 EDGES Edges Electrical Group
Voucher: 047391 Invoice:  §5765427.001 Date: 1/30/2023 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $305.69
Allocations: $305.69 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $305.69
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030715 2/15/2023 $8,477.00 ELCCO ELC Consulting
Voucher: 047433 Invoice: 8266 Date: 2/1/2023 Monthly Service Agreement DocAmt:  $6,897.00
Allocations: $659.70 100-6260-0000-563-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $329.85 300-6260-0000-363-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $5,607.45 600-6260-0000-563-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $300.00 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA
Voucher: 047434 Invoice: 8268 Date: 2/1/2023 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt: $100.00
Allocations: $100.00 803-6260-0000-563 CS - Computers
Voucher: 047435 Invoice: 8267 Date: 2/1/2023 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt:  $1,480.00
Allocations: $690.00 600-6260-0602-531 CS Computer - Lessalt WTP



Allocations: $790.00 600-6260-0603-531

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 300: $329.85

Fund 100: $659.70

CS Computer - West Hills WTP

Fund 600: $7,387.45

Page 50f 17

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$100.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030716 2/15/2023 $53.37 FASTE Fastenal Company
Voucher: 047387 Invoice: CAHOS59023 Date: 1/23/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $53.37
Allocations: $53.37 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $53.37
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030717 2/15/2023 $94,958.16 FIBER Fiber Glass Systems LP
Voucher: 047406 Invoice: 112708 Date: 1/30/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $47,479.08
Allocations: $47,479.08 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 047407 Invoice: 112709 Date: 1/30/2023 Maintenance Supplies DocAmt:  $47,479.08
Allocations: $47,479.08 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $94,958.16
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030718 2/15/2023 $420.70 GRAIN GRAINGER
Voucher: 047364 Invoice: 9579702698 Date: 1/19/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $420.70
Allocations: $420.70  600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $420.70
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
030719 2/15/2023 $1,160.00 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates
Voucher: 047309 Invoice: IVC3529 Date: 1/24/2023 Consulting Services Doc Amt: $145.00
Allocations: $14.50 100-6260-0000-563-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $7.25 300-6260-0000-563-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $123.25 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 047382 Invoice: ICV3517 Date: 1/16/2023 Consulting Services Doc Amt: $580.00
Allocations: $43.50 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $21.75 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Allocations: $369.75 600-6260-0000-563-06

CS-Computer (10/5/85)




Allocations: $14.50
Allocations: $7.25
Allocations: $123.25

Voucher: 047383 Invoice; [VC3536
Allocations: $14.50
Allocations: $7.25
Allocations: $123.25

Voucher: 047404 Invoice: IVC3538
Allocations: $29.00
Allocations: $14.50
Allocations: $246.50

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $116.00

100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Date: 2/2/2023  Consulting Services
100-6260-0000-563-06 ~ CS-Computer (10/5/85)
300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Date: 2/7/2023  Consulting Services
100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
300-6260-0000-563-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Fund 300: $58.00

Fund 600: $986.00

Page 6of 17

Doc Amt: $145.00

Doc Amt: $290.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030720 2/15/2023 $12,302.50 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants
Voucher: 047314 Invoice: 1746 Date: 1/9/2023  Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $10,878.00
Allocations: $10,878.00 600-1351-0129-151 Future Water Supply- Alternatives
Voucher: 047315 Invoice: 1747 Date: 1/9/2023  Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $1,424.50

Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00

$1,424.50 600-6291-0214-511

Fund 300: $0.00

CS IRWMP Implementation grant

Fund 600: $12,302.50

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030721 2/15/2023 $81.27 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc
Voucher: 047281 Invoice: 916773 Date: 1/19/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $81.27
Allocations: $4.06 300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $69.08 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations; $8.13  100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Payment Respounsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $8.13
Fund 803:50.00

Fund 300: $4.06

Fund 600: $69.08

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030722 2/15/2023 $458.87 HOLLA Hollister Landscape Supply
Voucher: 047390 Invoice: 73402 Date: 1/24/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $458.87

Allocations:

$458.87 600-6320-0920-542

Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks




Payment Responsibilities:

Page 70f 17

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $458.87
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030723 2/15/2023 $3,153.32 ICONI ICONIX Waterworks Inc
Voucher: 047386 Invoice:  U2316003369 Date: 1/30/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $343.93
Allocations: $343.93 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 047409 Invoice: U2316003006 Date; 1/26/2023 Maintenance Supplies DocAmt:  $2,809.39
Allocations: $2,809.39 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600; $3,153.32
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030724 2/15/2023 $79.76 INDEP Independent Business Forms Inc
Voucher: 047361 Invoice: 104298 Date: 2/2/2023  Printing Service Doc Amt: $79.76
Allocations: $67.80 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.99 300-6835-0000-362-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $7.98 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $7.98 Fund 300: $3.99 Fund 600: $67.80
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030725 2/15/2023 $737.38 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company
Voucher: 047282 Invoice: 261128 Date: 1/18/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $20.75
Allocations: $1.04 300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $17.64 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.08 100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 047295 Invoice: 261287 Date: 1/24/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $45.64
Allocations: $2.28 300-6320-0000-562-06 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $38.79 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $4.56 100-6320-0000-562-06 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 047297 Invoice: 261254 Date: 1/23/2023 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $7.20
Allocations: $7.20 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 047298 Invoice: 261152 Date: 1/19/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $82.54
Allocations: $82.54 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M
Voucher: 047299 Invoice: 261078 Date: 1/17/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $19.65
Allocations: $16.70 600-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA V
Allocations: $1.97 100-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA

Allocations: $0.98 300-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA



Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

047300
Allocations:

047301
Allocations:

047333
Allocations:

047363
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

047369
Allocations:

047377
Allocations:

047381
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

047389
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

047403
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:;

047413
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

047424
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

Invoice:

261165

261205

261605

261549

261731

261764

261779

261280

261797

261780

261721

$69.88

$61.33

$72.07

$1.26
$21.47
$2.53

$30.56

$62.90

$1.97
$33.41
$3.93

$2.22
$0.26
$0.13

$0.49
$8.35
$0.98

$6.01
$102.13
$12.02

$3.39
$57.55
$6.77

Date: 1/19/2023 Maintenance Supplies
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Date: 1/20/2023 Maintenance Supplies

600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Date: 2/2/2023 Maintenance Supplies
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Date: 1/31/2023 District Supplies
300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Date: 2/7/2023 Maintenance Supplies
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Date: 2/8/2023 Maintenance Supplies
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Date: 2/8/2023  District Supplies
300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Date: 1/24/2023 Maintenance Supplies
600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
100-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA

Date: 2/8/2023  District Supplies
300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Date: 2/8/2023  District Supplies
300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Date: 2/6/2023  District Supplies
300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt;

Doc Amt:

$69.88

$61.33

$72.07

$25.26

$30.56

$62.90

$39.31

$2.61

$9.82

$120.15

$67.71

Page 8 of 17



Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $35.09

Fund 300: $17.55 Fund 600: $684.75

Fund 803:5$0.00

Page 9of 17

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030726 2/15/2023 $9,274.20 KRONI Kronick, Moskovitz,Tiedemann & Gir
Voucher: 047431 Invoice: 306681 Date: 1/24/2023 Legal Services DocAmt:  $9,27420
Allocations: $9,274.20 600-6210-0000-563 CS-Legal-GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $9,274.20
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
030727 2/15/2023 $400.00 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridw
Voucher: 047283 Invoice: 012423 Date: 1/24/2023 Landscape Plan Review Doc Amt: $400.00
Allocations: $400.00 803-6240-0000-563 CS - General Consulting (Plan Cks/Rev)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$400.00
Paymenti# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030728 2/15/2023 $1,917.00 LIEBE Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Prof Law (
Voucher: 047429 Invoice: 230715 Date: 11/30/2022 Legal Services Doc Amt: $142.00
Allocations: $14.20 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.10 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $120.70 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 047430 Invoice: 232710 Date: 12/31/2022 Legal Services Doc Amt; $1,775.00
Allocations: $177.50 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $88.75 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,508.75 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $191.70 Fund 300: $95.85 Fund 600: $1,629.45
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030729 2/15/2023 $1,430.32 MAGGI Maggiora Brothers Drilling
Voucher: 047402 Invoice: 108591 Date: 12/31/2022 Contracted Service DocAmt:  $1,430.32

Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Payment# Date
030730 2/15/2023

Fund 100: $0.00

$1,430.32 600-6275-0000-522 CS-Maintenance-PM

Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,430.32

Fund 803:$0.00
Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
$16,081.17 MARKN Mark Nicholson Inc




Page 100f 17

Voucher: 047410 Invoice: 4101 Date: 2/8/2023 Contracted Maintenance Doc Amt:  $16,081.17
Allocations: $16,081.17 600-6275-0920-542 CS Maintenance TDM-Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $16,081.17
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030731 2/15/2023 $10,600.00 MCGIL McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman
Voucher: 047368 Invoice: 2000040529 Date: 12/31/2022 Accounting Services Doc Amt:  $10,600.00
Allocations: $1,060.00 100-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Allocations: $530.00 300-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Allocations: $9,010.00 600-6230-0000-563-06  CS-Accounting 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $1,060.00 Fund 300: $530.00 Fund 600: $9,010.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030732 2/15/2023 §727.07 MCKIN McKinnen Lumber, Inc,
Voucher: 047306 Invoice: 740992 Date: 1/24/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $169.34
Allocations: $169.34 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 047326 Invoice: 740954 Date: 1/23/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $45.15
Allocations: $38.38 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $4.52  100-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA
Allocations: $2.26 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Voucher: 047327 Invoice: 741634 Date: 2/1/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $47.03
Allocations: $39.98 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $4.70 100-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA
Allocations: $2.35 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Voucher: 047328 Invoice: 741292 Date: 1/27/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $419.30
Allocations: $356.41 600-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA
Allocations: $41.93 100-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA
Allocations: $20.97 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Voucher: 047329 Invoice: 741042 Date: 1/24/2023 District Supplies Doc Amt: $46.25
Allocations: $39.31 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $4.63 100-6320-0000-562-03 Supplies - GA
Aliocations: $2.31 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $55.77 Fund 300: $27.89 Fund 600: $643.41
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00 '
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030733 2/15/2023 $305.00 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC
Voucher: 047380 Invoice: 163 Date: 2/8/2023 Monthly Print Ad Doc Amt: $305.00




Allocations: $305.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)

Payment Responsibilities:

Page 11 of 17

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$305.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030734 2/15/2023 $266,224.81 MONTERE  Monterey Peninsula Engineering
Voucher: 047318 Invoice: 12-20 Date: 1/30/2023 Contracted Maintenance Doc Amt: $266,224 81
Allocations: $266,224.81 600-6181-0927-561 SP-Hwy 156 bypass Caltrans work

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $266,224.81
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030735 2/15/2023 $2,314.00 NEWSV New SV Media, Inc
Voucher: 047284 Invoice: 69296 Date: 1/20/2023 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $123.00
Allocations: $123.00 803-6863-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 047305 Invoice: 65146 Date: 11/25/2022 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $123.00
Allocations: $123.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 047308 Invoice: 69795 Date: 1/27/2023 Weekly Print Ad Doc Amt: $123.00
Allocations: $123.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 047323 Invoice: 70237 Date: 2/3/2023  Weekly Print Ad/Monthly Web Ad Doc Amt: $348.00
Allocations:; $123.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Allocations: $225.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 047385 Invoice: 69809 Date: 1/30/2023 Public Notice Doc Amt: $1,474.00
Allocations: $983.00 600-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info
Allocations: $491.00 600-6865-0604-562 Adbvertising/Public Info RWP
Voucher: 047421 Invoice: 71002 Date: 2/10/2023 Weekly Print Doc Amt: $123.00
Allocations: $123.00 803-6865-0000-562 Adbvertising/Public Info (PI)
Paynient Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,474.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$840.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030736 2/15/2023 $3,251.33 PALAC Palace Business Solutions
Voucher: 047296 Invoice:  669786-0 Date: 1/23/2023 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $402.13
Allocations: $341.81 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $20.11 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Allocations: $40.21 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA




Page 12 of 17

Voucher: 047310 Invoice: 34770-0 Date: 1/26/2023 Office Furniture Doc Amt; $1,745.04
Allocations: $174.50 100-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $87.25 300-6440-0000-562-06  Office Fum/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,483.28 600-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Voucher: 047384 Invoice:  671796-0 Date: 2/7/2023  Office Supplies DocAmt:  $1,003.64
Allocations: $853.09 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $50.18 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $100.36 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher; 047422 Invoice: 672218-0 Date: 2/10/2023 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $100.52
Allocations: $85.44 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $5.03 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Aliocations: $10.05 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $325.13 Fund 300: $162.57 Fund 600: $2,763.63
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030737 2/15/2023 $3,400.00 PIPAL Pipal Spurzem & Liem LLP
Voucher: 047432 Invoice: 60344 Date: 2/3/2023  Legal Services DocAmt:  $3,400.00
Allocations: $138.00 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $69.00 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,173.00 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,500.00 600-6210-0000-563 CS-Legal-GA
Allocations: $200.00 700-1351-0221-151 GSA-Grdwir Mgmt Plan
Allocations: $320.00 803-6240-0000-563 CS - General Consulting (GE)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $138.00 Fund 300: $69.00 Fund 600: $2,673.00
Fund 700: $200.00 Fund 803:$320.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030738 2/15/2023 $13,622.00 SBASSES San Benito Cty Assessors
Voucher: 047244 Invoice:  1075-COG-2023 Date: 1/9/2023  GIS Basemap Program Doc Amt:  $13,622.00
Aliocations: $13,622.00 600-6270-0117-511 CS Ops-GIS Base Map Project-SSO
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $13,622.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030739 2/15/2023 $2,540.00 SBCEN San Benito County Environmental He:
Voucher: 047392 Invoice:  IN0003832 Date: 1/10/2023 Hazardous Material Permit Fee  Doc Amt: $427.00

Allocations:

$427.00 600-6820-0603-562

Dues and Fees




Voucher: 047393 Invoice:
Allocations:

Voucher: 047394 Invoice:
Allocations:

Voucher: 047401 Invoice:

Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

IN00O3761 Date:
$427.00 600-6820-0000-562

IN0003610 Date:
$427.00 600-6820-0000-562

IN0003824 Date:
$1,259.00 600-6820-0603-562

Fund 300: $0.00

1/10/2023 Hazardous Material Permit Fee
Dues and Fee

1/10/2023 Hazardous Material Permit Fee
Dues and Fee

1/10/2023 Hazardous Material Permit Fee
Dues and Fees

Fund 600: $2,540.00

Page 13 0f 17

Doc Amt: $427.00
Doc Amt: $427.00
Doc Amt:  $1,259.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030740 2/15/2023 $188,609.60 SCVWD Santa Clara Valley Water Dist
Voucher: 047449 Invoice: GNI102378 Date: 2/14/2023 Oct-Dec 22 O&M Charge Doc Amt: $188,609.60
Allocations: $102,678.17 600-5500-0000-513 PW-San Felipe Reach I O&M- SantaClara
Allocations: $85,931.43 600-1503-0158-125 Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 600: $188,609.60

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030741 2/15/2023 $101.94 STEVE Steven Engineering
Voucher: 047378 Invoice: 2722425-00 Date: 1/31/2023 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $101.94
Allocations: $101.94 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $101.94
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030742 2/15/2023 $39,028.25 TODDE Todd Groundwater
Voucher: 047416 Invoice: 37653 223 Date: 2/8/2023 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $34,350.75
Allocations: $34,350.75 700-6240-0160-511 CS-Annual Grwir Report-SSO
Voucher: 047417 Invoice: 37657-1 123 Date: 1/8/2023  Engineering Services Doc Amt: $975.00
Allocations: $975.00 600-1351-0129-151 Future Water Supply- Alternatives
Voucher: 047418 Invoice: 37657-1223 Date: 2/8/2023 Engineering Services DocAmt:  $2,655.00
Allocations: $2,655.00 600-1351-0129-151 Future Water Supply- Alternatives
Voucher: 047443 Invoice: 37657-2223 Date: 2/8/2023 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $1,047.50

Allocations:

$1,047.50 600-6240-0000-563

CS-General Consulting-GA



Payment Responsibilities:

Page 14 of 17

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $4,677.50
Fund 700: $34,350.75 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
030743 2/15/2023 §3,049.74 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation
Voucher: 047427 Invoice: 013123 Date: 1/31/2023 Vehicle Fuel Doc Amt:  $3,049.74
Allocations: $10.13  100-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $104.29 300-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $2,680.80 600-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $254.52 803-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $10.13 Fund 300: $104.29 Fund 600: $2,680.80
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$254.52
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030744 2/15/2023 $38.82 TRUEV True Value Hardware
Voucher: 047330 Invoice: A373297 Date: 1/20/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $21.84
Allocations: $21.84 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 047376 Invoice: A375221 Date: 2/8/2023  Vehicle Maintenance #25 Doc Amt: $10.44
Allocations: $10.44 600-6460-0000-562 Vehicle Maintenance-GA
Voucher: 047423 Invoice: A375266 Date: 2/8/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $6.54
Allocations: $0.33  300-6320-0000-562-06 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $5.56 600-6320-0000-562-06 Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $0.65 100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.65 Fund 300: $0.33 Fund 600: $37.84
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030745 2/15/2023 $360.00 TURBO Turbo Time Welding
Voucher: 047332 Invoice: 15 Date: 1/4/2023  Welding Services Doc Amt: $360.00
Allocations: $360.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $360.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030746 2/15/2023 $73,319.10 UNIFI Unified Field Services Corporation
Voucher: 047334 Invoice: 123122 Date: 12/31/2022 Contracted Maintenance Doc Amt:  $69,146.70

Allocations: $69,146.70  600-6275-0939-542 CS- Maintenance-Blue Valve Paint Project



Page 150f 17

Voucher: 047335 Invoice: 013123 Date: 1/31/2023 Contracted Maintenance Doc Amt:  $4,172.40
Allocations: $4,172.40 600-6275-0939-542 CS- Maintenance-Blue Valve Paint Project

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $73,319.10
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030747 2/15/2023 $4,354.60 USBNK-CC  U.S. Bank Corporation

Voucher: 047311 Invoice: 012323SN Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: $71.41
Allocations: $71.41 803-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel

Voucher: 047370 Invoice:  012323JM Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: $2.69
Allocations: $0.27 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $0.13  300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $2.29 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Voucher: 047371 Invoice: 012323SW Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: $111.20
Allocations: $94.52 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $11.12 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $5.56 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85

Voucher: 047372 Invoice: 012323C Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: $85.99
Allocations: $47.60 600-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $5.60 100-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.80 300-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.00 100-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $1.50 300-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $25.49 600-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA

Voucher: 047373 Invoice: 012323BM Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt:  $1,273.31
Allocations: $89.82  100-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $44.91 300-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $763.47 600-6270-0000-363-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $55.79 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.28 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $6.56 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Alfocations: $12.02  100-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $6.01  300-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/835
Allocations: $102.13  600-6440-0000-562-06  Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Allocations: $123.22 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $14.50 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.25 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $20.23 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.38 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.19 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85



Page 16 0f 17

Allocations: $17.48 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.06 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.03 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Voucher: 047405 Invoice: 012323DM Date: 1/23/2023 Monthly Statement Doc Amt:  $2,810.00
Allocations: $2,810.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $147.32 Fund 300: $73.66 Fund 600: $4,062.21
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:371.41
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030748 2/15/2023 $24,067.50 USGEO U.S. Geological Survey
Voucher; 047428 Invoice: 91047682 Date: 2/10/2023 Water Data Collection Doc Amt:  $24,067.50
Aliocations: $19,735.35 600-6270-0143-511 CS-Ops-Stream Flow Measurement-SSO
Allocations: $4.332.15 300-6270-0143-511 CS Ops-Stream Flow Measurement-SSO
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $4.332.15 Fund 600: $19,735.35
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030749 2/15/2023 $1,000.00 WEIST Weist Law LLP
Voucher: 047358 Invoice:  2023-01 Date: 1/17/2023 CDIAC Annual Debt Report Doc Amt:  $1,000.00
Allocations: $500.00 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Allocations: $50.00 100-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $25.00 300-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $425.00 600-6820-0000-562-06 Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $50.00 Fund 300: $25.00 Fund 600: $925.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
030750 2/15/2023 $150.33 WRIIN Wright Bros Industrial Supply
Voucher: 047302 Invoice: 272586 Date: 1/18/2023 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $58.17
Allocations: $58.17 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 047303 Invoice: 272615 Date: 1/19/2023 Welding Supplies Doc Amt: $92.16
Allocations: $92.16 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $150.33
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name

030751 2/15/2023 $4,290.00 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich




Voucher;

Voucher:

Voucher:

Invoice:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Invoice:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Invoice:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

1-2023P
$400.40

$1,419.60

1-2023M

$107.80

$382.20

1-2023

$162.00

$1,458.00

$180.00

$180.00

Fund 100: $0.00
Fund 803:$0.00

Report Totals, Payment Fund Responsiblities

Date:
600-1503-0158-125

600-1503-0158-125

Date:

600-1503-0158-125

600-1503-0158-125

Date:

300-6270-0000-511

600-6270-0000-541

600-6270-0602-531

600-6270-0603-531

Fund 300: $162.00

1/31/2023 Contract Services
Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project

Reach | Capital Improvement Project

1/31/2023 Contract Services
Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project

Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project
1/3172023 Contract Services

CS-Operations-SS0

CS-Operations-TO

CS-Operations - Lessalt WTP

CS-Operations - WHTP WTP

Fund 600: $4,128.00

Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $4,119.07

Fund 700:534,550.75

Fund 300: $6,652.91

Fund 803:85,536.93

Fund 100 = District Administration
Fund 300 = Zone 3
Fund 600 = Zone 6
Fund 700 = Zone GSA
Fund 803 = Zone WRA

Fund 600: $763,246.55

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

Doc Amt:

$1,820.00

$490.00

$1,980.00

Page 17 of 17




Agenda Item: 5

San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Meeting Date: February 13, 2023

Submitted By: Joyce Machado

Presented By: Steve Wittry

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the February 2023 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the checks and wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Payee Check Amount For Issued Date | Due Date

No.
San Luis & Delta- 056884 | $34,369.63 | O&M Delivery Costs- 2/3/2023 1/15/2023
Mendota WA February
Bureau of 056885 | $411,806.86| Water Storage Fees 2/3/2023 2/3/2023
Reclamation
San Luis & Delta- 056906 | $8.72 Final 2021 NOD Transfer | 2/8/2023 2/16/2023
Mendota WA

Wire Transfers
Zion’s Wire | $198,613.40| USBR In Basin Capital 1/3/2023 2/1/2023
Bancorporation Transfer Bond- Principal &
Interest

Webster Bank Wire $38,398.00 | CalPERS UAL Bond- 12/18/2022 | 2/1/2023

Transfer Interest only
San Luis & Delta- Wire | $10,000.00 | Water Year 2023 1/25/2023 | 1/27/2023
Mendota WA Transfer SJRECWA Water

Transfer- M&I




Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:

Fiscal Year Budget as approved

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of check requests

Copy of payment stubs

Copy of wire transfer requests

Copy of bank confirmations

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
ResolutionNo._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 899, HOLLISTER, CA 95024-0899

Vendor

Account
SLDMWUSBR San Luis & Delta-Mendota WA
Invoice Date Description
013123 1/31/2023 O&M Delivery Costs

O&M Delivery Costs

Date
2/3/2023

0056884

056884

Net Amt.
$34,369.63

$34,369.63




MEMORANDUM

TO: ‘Joyce Machado or Steve Wittry
FROM: Natalie Sullivan
DATE: - February 1, 2023

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:
(for remittance) Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail
San Luis Delta Mendota $ 34,369.63 VHa-wire-tramsfer
Hand Qo e —
Yetunate Jous |

Expense 600-5400-0000-513-07

Account
number(s)
Reason for | This request is for the prepayment of the O&M costs associated
Request: to the delivery of the remaining water for February as required
by SLDMWA.
Supporting documentation for this request:

Is attached Will be returned to Accounting
' upon receipt

. Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved by:

Oanc e Naadioodd 9*(3 (32

Jc@a:;: Machado or Steve Wittry Date




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 899, HOLLISTER, CA 95024-0899

Vendor

Account
USBR-LA Bureau of Reclamation 3000019331
Invoice Date Description
020123 ’ 2/1/2023 Water Storage Fees

Water Storage Fees

Date
2/3/2023

056885

0056885
Net Amt.

$411,806.86

$411,806.86



TO:
FROM:
DATE:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Joyce Machado or Steve Wittry
Natalie Sullivan
2/1/2023

Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:
(for remittance) Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Reqular Mail
USBR - LA - $ 411,806.86 Regular Maﬂ}lﬁeﬁw' o/
DOI - BOR - Region: CA Great T 3 /93
Basin

P.O. Box 6200-24
Portland, OR 97228-6200

Expense Various - per attached

Account

‘number(s)

Reason for | The district had a credit from prior year prepayment. During the
Request: fiscal year reconciliation in December 2022, the credit had been

absorbed. Included in this amount was a partial liability at FYE
2022 and current year activity including prepayment for water
and power for remaining water to be delivered (February) as well
as storage costs for non-federal water in SLR. This request was
erroneously missed in the claims for January and needs to be
paid prior to the February 2023 meeting.

Supporting documentation for this request:

x | Is attached Will be returned to Accounting

upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved by:

Quser Wadhaad o 9/3/9’3

Joy€s Machado or Steve Wittry Date

At e



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
P.O. BOX 899, HOLLISTER, CA 95024-0899

Vendor Account
SLDMW San Luis & Delta-Mendota WA
Invoice Date Description
MH350 1/25/2023 2021 NOD Water Transfer

2021 NOD Water Transfer

056906

Date
2/8/2023 0056906
Net Amt.
$8.72
$8.72

SN
e
att



MEMORANDUM

TO: Joyce Machado or Steve Wittry
FROM: Athina Frederico
DATE: February 8, 223

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:
{for remittance) Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail
San Luis Delta Mendota $8.72 Return to requestor

842 6th Street
Los Banos, CA 93635

Expense 600-5701-0000-513-07

Account

number(s)

Reason for | This payment is for the final 2021 North of Delta Water Transfer.
Request: This payment is due to the SLDMWA by February 16, 2023,

which is prior to the February 22, 2023 board meeting.

Supporting documentation for this request:
x | Is attached Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved by:
Sane VNoeneolo g./w _/}3

J qu(\cJMa&hado or Steve Wittry Date




adpinw gz-Te-T

€Z-TTAd 123ysyIom

(4 nm\_

A

~WO

eCThT|!

Y JJSUBIL BIIM\!

aleg

ajeq

&

L 21IM\SYILLI1-SOWIW\IdaQ aoueul3\Bupunosay\is

:Aq aujuo asea|au Joy panoiddy

Q‘ #r\ :Aq Asjua aujuo

| ov'TT0282 § Ie303 Ananoe aaim Ajeg ]

€202/1/2 | OU°ET986T S I 43fsuniy aiim |pjo)
OV'€T9’2Z § B-Nmm.mmmo.ﬁomm.oow (3s9191u1) puog |eaide) uiseq uj ¥gsn €ZEOTO €20Z/€/1 snJL g yueg ejuioje) / suoiz
00'000'TLT $ 00-TTZ-0000-0vZ2-009 (ledioulid) puog jeyide) uiseg ul ygsn €2E0TO €202/€/1 IsnJL g jueg ejuloyije) / suoiz

€20z/1/z | 00°86€’8E  $ | 4afsuns3 axm o301
YT'LL9'PE  $ £0-Z65-0000-£056-009 (Ajuo 3s3193u1) puog VN Sy3dIed [4Z1%4 7z0z/81/2T ueg J21sgam
18210 $ L0-265-0000-€056-00€ (Ajuo 353133u1) puog YN Sy3died [44:3% 4 tzoz/8t/eT jueg Jaisqam
S6'zoL't  $ L0-Z6S-0000-€056-00T (Ajuo 3sa183u1) puog vn Syadied Te8ILT Tzoe/8t/et Jjueg Jaisgam
?leqg ang unowy *0U JUNoJY 19 uonduasaq *OU 3I0AU| 2)e( 3210AuU| 10pU3A

A | ezoe/re/T alep aseajay

£202/ve/1

pa3isanbay Jajsues) asm



Transfer 02

Type:

Debit Account:

Amount:

Send Date:

Beneficiary Account Number:
Beneficiary Name:

Payment Details:

Sequence Number:
Bank Control Number:

Domestic Wire

2740029617 - SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
198,613.40

01/31/2023

696600-0539

1/Zions Bancorporation

San Benito County Water District

000034
UB 397344

.] UnionBank

End of Report

Page 2 of 2



2dninw €2-1€-1 £2-TTAd 193YS} 10/ 153nbay Jojsues) BIM\sIajsuelL M\SHILITI-SOWIW\dag adueuld\Bupunody\is

ctlle \ [ o
/\% :Aq auljuo asea|as Joy panoiddy

cClheT|l

Q\ f\ :Aq Anjua aujup

| ov'tT0282 $ 1e303 Annnoe aum Ajeg _

£202/1/2 | 0v°€19'86T " § | 4afsupiy anm o301

OvElsiL  § £0-265-9€60-T0S6-009 (1s2J23u]) puosg |e3ideD uiseg uj ¥gsN ECE0TO €202/E/T 1SN1L g yueg ejuioyjen / Suoiz

000001 $ 00-TT2-0000-0vZZ-009 (Iedidund) puog |exde) uiseg u| ¥gsn €ZE0TO0 €202/E/T 3SNIL g yueg eluloy|e) / Suoiz

£€202/1/¢ | 00'865'8  § | 4afsunsy a4m Do)

vTLLo've S L0-265-0000-£056-009 (Ajuo 3sa33u) puog Tvn SHadied T8TTT 220Z/8T/TT v_rmm 131503
18°L10'C S £0-265-0000-£0S6-00€ (Ajuo 3s3133u1) puog VN SY3d(ed (443948 T202/81/TT jueq Jajsqam
S6'TOL'T S L0-765-0000-£0S6-00T (Aluo 3sa133u1) puog Tvn SHadied [44:1¥ A" Teoe/st/e jueg Jaisgam
?jeg ang unowy *0U JUN022Y 19 uonduasag *OU 3210AU| 31eQ 3210AU]| JOpUBA

A |geoz/re/r dlep ases|y g€e0z/ve/T pajsanbay Jaysues) aum



Transfer Approval Confirmation
Number of transfers: 2

Total amount of transfers 237011.40 USD

The following transfers have been approved.

|j UnionBank

Transfer 01

Type: Domestic Wire
Debit Account: 2740029617 - SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Amount: 38,398.00
Send Date: 01/31/2023
Beneficiary Account Number: 6700018161
Beneficiary Name: 1/STERLING NATIONAL BANK
Payment Details: SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Sequence Number: 000035
Bank Control Number: UB 397347

Page 1 of 2



Xalkalt E£2-ZTA4 ¥93ys3I0M 153nh3Y Jajsuel) BIIM\SIDjsuRI L BM\SHILLTT-SOWIN\IDRG 3aueul\BURUNOIZY\:S

ey oo
~N

:Ag Bujuo asea|au 10} panoiddy

CTIRT|[T ==
%\ ﬂ\b :Aq Aiua auyuQ

| 0000001 $ 18303 AyAnoe aam Ajleq 1
£202/42/T | 00°000°0T S | 43fsunny a4m jojoy
€z0z/Le/t 00°000'01 S L0-€15-0000-1095-009 BN SPEHW £20Z/2T/1 Auoyiny
Jdjsues] YMOIIUIS -€T0T Je2A Jojep 1818 RIOpUBN BYjBQ SINT ues
81eg ang Junowy “0U JUN033y 19 uonduasaq "OU 39{0AU] 316G 9310AU] IOPUBA
gﬁ. 31ep aseajay _moN\oN\ﬁ ! polsanbay sajsuelf aim
¢ zjsz))

Isanbay sajsuesy aum



l‘ UnionBank

Transfer Approval Confirmation

The following transfers have been approved.

Type: Domestic Wire
Debit Account: 2740029617 - SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Amount: 10,000.00
Send Date: 01/25/2023
Beneficiary Account Number: 051000463
Beneficiary Name: 1/San Luis Delta Mendota Water Auth
Payment Details: Invoice no MH345 WY 23 SIRECWA Transfer Ml Option

Sequence Number: 000033
Bank Control Number: UB 420336

End of Report
Page 10of 1



Agenda

[tem

# 4



aswIy
SCOUNTY jylh,

0
SRS

Y

Fiscal Year 2023 On-Call Contract Activity Report
MCC Controls dba Primex - *Water Treatment Plants Maintenance Agreement (SCADA Services)

Board Meeting 2/22/23

NOTE: NO ADDITIONAL TASK ORDERS WERE EXECUTED AS OF THIS MEETING'S REPORTING DEADLINE
**NTE Contract Task Order Contract Amount Task Order . Task Order
. Task Order Description
Amount Amount Remaining Number Issued Date
S 400,000

S 30,000 | S 370,000 1 Control System Services/Maintenance 12.6.22

S 130,665 | S 239,335 2 RTU Hardware for RTU-8,-9,-10,-11,-14,-20 12.6.22

S 48,300 | S 191,035 3 RTU - 10 PLC Programming/Installation 1.9.23

S 46,492 | S 144,543 4 RTU - 11 PLC Programming/Installation 1.9.23

S 400,000 | $ 255,457 | § 144,543

*SBCWD Board approved 9.21.22, Contract #PRIMEX-2022 oc

**Contract expires 9.19.25




%,

2ong1sY
Ix\\{‘{\\\\\“

[
','.“

Fiscal Year 2023 On-Call Contract Activity Report

Todd Groundwater - *Groundwater Management & Evaluation
Board Meeting 2/22/23

NOTE: NO ADDITIONAL TASK ORDERS WERE EXECUTED AS OF THIS MEETING'S REPORTING DEADLINE

ok I NTE
Annud Task Order Contract Amount Task Order .. Task Order
Contract . Task Order Description
Amount Remaining Number Issued Date
Amount ;
S 250,000
S 50,000 | S 200,000 1 Well design & siting (last phase of current grant) 12.5.22
S 75,000 | $ 125,000 2 Grant Application Support-DWR & USBR 12.20.22
S 250,000 | $ 125,000 | $ 125,000

*SBCWD Board approved 10.26.22, Contract #TODDGW-2022 OC

**1-year term expires 11.3.23, with option of 2 additional years (total of 3 years NTE $750,000)




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: 5
Meeting Date: February 22, 2023
Submitted By: Joyce Machado

Presented By: Joyce Machado

Agenda Title: FYE 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit

Detailed Description:

The District is on contract with an external auditor to conduct the fiscal year end audit of
the District’s financial statements. Patricia Kaufman of McGilloway, Ray, Brown and
Kaufman will present the financial report and findings from the fiscal year 2022 audit.

Prior Committee or Board Action(s):
The Finance Committee will meet with staff and Ms. Kaufman at the February 21, 2023
Finance Committee meeting to discuss the FYE 2022 audit and the financial report.

Financial Impact: Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Recommendation: Board consider acceptance of the FYE 2022 ACFR and authorize its
distribution

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action

__Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
OF THE
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2022

Q:VO V. s, \95?0'

" &O ®%000000°° CY’;

P. O. Box 899
30 Mansfield Road
Hollister, CA 95024

PREPARED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT




ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter Of TranSIULIAL ...........oo.cvuiicvieitscien et ee e eeeeeeoeoe oo i
DISTCE PTOFIL ... oot et eee e oo eeeeeeeeeeee e vi
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ......cccoooevivmmniiecreeece e X
List of Principal OffiCIals.......cc.vueiueiuerueiieceeceeeeeeeeeenee e ees oo xi
Organizational CRAT............c.couceivciuiiie et Xii
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUItor’s REPOIt............oovuriumiuoiiuniieeceeieceeeeeee e eeeee oo eee oo 1
Management’s Discussion and ANAIYSIS ..............co..oo.uvvueimeeeeeeeneeeesioseoeeeseees oo 4
(Required Supplementary Information)
Basic Financial Statements
Statement 0f Net POSItON «....c.vuevuveuvereeeeeieeieeee it eeessesseses st oottt ans 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItON ..........v..ooevvreeooeoesoeooo 15
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ..........c.oceeunmrnmuemuereeesiis o sisisesesseesesessseessesessesse oo 16
Statement of Fiduciary Funds Net POSION ...............o.oimereeeeeeeeeeeseeeesseeseeeeoeeooeoeeoeoeeooeeeoe 18
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Funds Net POSTtiON ............c.oveeeeueeemeresreesoeeeosoeooeoeeooo. 19
Notes to Basic Financial StatemMENtS...........c.eovuriiisiiiinneeiseeseereeeeeeseeesesssessessossee e 20

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the District’s Retirement Plan’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

(Asset) and Related RAtIOS........ovciiierereeeieeesisieeetseeeeeeeeseeeesese e es e s e .57
Schedule of the District’s Pension Plan Contributions ..............o.ovoveoveoeooooooooeoeooooooooooeooo 58
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net Other Post-Employment Benefits Liability and Related
RALIOS 11ttt st sa e e s s e s e s s e e e e s e ee e seeeeesne 59
Schedule of the District’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Contributions................................ 60
Supplementary Information
Schedule 0f Net POSHHION DY ZOME .........cuiverveeererereioeeeeeeeeeeeesesesesssessessees e 62
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by Zone «..........o...o.oooovvevovonoo... 64
STATISTICAL SECTION
Index to StatiStiCal SECHON.........ccvwumiurieititiei ettt ees s e e e e e s oo seeeeeosen 66
Net Position by COMPONENL ...........ccvuuriurimrireireirienieteeeee oot seeseeseseeses e s s e 67
Changes in Net POSITON.........cc.eiuirerieriiecie oo e e e 68
Operating ReVENUE BY CABZOTY ......c.vuevuuiuieireiaieeieeeeeeceeeeeee e s e es oo e eeeeeeseee 69
Water Rates — San Felipe Distribution SYStEmM .................ou.oveieeeeereereeeeeeeseeeseeseeeeeeeeeesesee oo 70
Principal Land TaXPayers — ZONE 6 ...............c..ceiveoeeeeeeereeeereseceseeeeeeesee e e e oo 71
DISEEICE DDttt et e st e e s 72
Demographics and ECONOIMIC StAtISHCS .....v.vuuvvvveieriereeieeveeeeeeee et eee e 73
Principal Employers — San Benito COUNLY .............ovvvveveieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e sees oo oo 74
Water Deliveries — San Benito COUNLY ............o.ouoviuoueeeeeeneeeeeeee e eeees e oo 75
Number of Employees by DEPartment............u.ucueverieiveiseeeeieeeeseeeeesesseesees oo oeeoeeeeeen 76
Operating Indicators by FUNCHON/PIOZIAM...............o..vcveeeeceeereeeeeeeeeeeee e cee e 77



INTRODUCTORY SECTION



\\\\\\\\\\\

;—fq‘.’;ﬂ}};ﬁ*» S .
P o0 G0 ;" San Benito County Water District
"t hy ."’5‘3.”..3..\.%" j 30 Mansfield Road ¢ P.O. Box 899 © Hollister, CA 95024-0899 » (831) 637-8218 » Fax (831) 637-7267
W Oz rsrer, & <

\\\\\w@

February 22, 2023

Members of the Board of Directors
San Benito County Water District

We are pleased to present the San Benito County Water District’s (District) Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended June 30, 2022.

The report was prepared by the District in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented
and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
District. We believe that the data, as presented is accurate in all material respects and that it is
presented in a manner designated to set forth fairly the financial position and results of operations
of the District. Included are all the disclosures we believe are necessary to enhance understanding

of the financial condition of the District.
McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman, Accountants and Consultants, have issued an unmodified

(“clean”) opinion on the San Benito County Water District’s financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2022. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section

of this report.
Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s

report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial
statements. MD&A complement this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with

it.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROGRAMS
Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan

During this past year the District and San Juan Bautista entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding to begin to evaluate the possibility of adding San Juan Bautista to what was the
Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan, and will now be referred to as the Urban
Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan. The intent of adding San Juan Bautista to the urban area
planning effort is to investigate options to connect San Juan Bautista to the West Hills water

treatment plant.
A contract was issued to HDR Inc to prepare a Basis of Design Report (BOD) that would be the

preliminary design for a connection to the West Hills Treatment Plant and a pipeline to convey
water through San Juan Valley to San Juan Bautista. Agreement terms for the construction of this




important project will be completed soon.

Also, under consideration is San Juan Bautista’s buy-in to the West Hills/Lessalt treatment
capacity. Under an amendment to the original Water Supply and Treatment agreement between
the District, City of Hollister (COH), and Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD), City of
San Juan Bautista(COSJB) would be added as a 5% partner.

With the addition of San Juan Bautista, and the need to update the planning effort to keep up with
future growth projections, a 5-year update to the Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan
was also initiated by the District working with HDR.

The District continues to move forward with planning and design under the Memorandum of
Understanding between the District, SSCWD and the COH to provide an additional water supply
to the area in and around the COH Airport. The District is the lead agency on this effort and is in
the process of siting a new well to provide water supply and needed fire flow to the Airport area.

If successful, the project could provide up to 1000 ac-ft per year of new water supply to the

Hollister Urban Area.

In response to the need for dry year reliability and water supply to meet long term growth, the
District has begun work on two new projects, the North Area Groundwater Project, and the
Expanded Pacheco Reservoir Project, both to be discussed later in the document.

Recycled Water Storage Facilities

The District continues to refine the operations and add new customers to the recycled water project.
Some additional minor facilities have been added to increase circulation of stored water in the
ponds and additional filtration to increase water quality delivered to recycled water customers. The
completion of the storage facilities will allow for 1,000 acre-feet of recycled water per year to be
delivered, and nearly 100% of the recycled water produced between April — September of each
year will be available for use. The use of recycled water for agricultural purposes will be
particularly important in the next few years as we continue to work through the current drought.

Zebra Mussels
Infestation of Zebra Mussels w1th1n San Justo Reservoir has been documented since February

2008. Since then, the District, United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR), and California
Department of Fish and Game (DFG) have been working to develop an eradication plan to
eliminate the mussels from the reservoir.

One of the key concerns with any water source with mussel infestation is that the mussels will
eventually migrate to the conveyance systems (i.e. the Hollister Conduit, or San Felipe Distribution
System). In March of 2009 zebra mussel infestation was confirmed in the Hollister Conduit,

The District continues to operate San Justo Reservoir (San Justo) as it has for the past 9 years
seasonally raising and lowering water levels in San Justo to minimize Zebra Mussel populations
taking advantage of the hypoxic water that develops in the reservoir each summer to help control
the zebra mussel populations in the reservoir and distribution system. To date visual inspections,
indicate that this has been effective. The District will continue to manage with operational

modifications.
At this time there is no indication of when USBR will complete an eradication plan.

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project
The District was a participant in a Proposition 1 grant application with Santa Clara Valley Water

ii



District (SCVWD) and Pacheco Pass Water District (PPWD) for the expansion of the Pacheco
Reservoir. In July of 2018 Department of Water Resource (DWR) announced the project would
receive the full funding request of $485 million. The total project cost is currently estimated to be
approximately $2.5 billion.

The project includes construction of a new earthen dam a short distance upstream from the existing
dam and a pipeline to connect the dam to the existing Pacheco Conduit, a federal Central Valley
Project pipeline that delivers water into Santa Clara and San Benito counties from the San Luis
Reservoir. The Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project would expand the reservoir from 6,000 to
140,000 acre-feet and deliver water supply, water quality, and ecosystem benefits to the region.

In June 2018, the Board approved a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with SCVWD that
outlines the terms for moving forward with the project. Originally the MOU included 2 major
agreements that needed to be completed within 2 years of the signing of the agreement, an
allocation of benefits agreement and a provisional operating agreement. In addition, the MOA
called for the District within the 2 years to determine its participation level ranging from 0% -
10%. It is now anticipated that the date for the allocation of benefits and operating agreement will
be delayed. More importantly, upon completion and execution of a side letter to the MOU the
District anticipates having until the start of construction to determine the level of participation
desired. The District will continue to review its level of participation as the project moves forward.

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)
The District is recognized by DWR as the exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)

for the Hollister, San Juan and Bolsa sub-basins.

The District has completed the development of the Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The
District applied for and received a planning grant in the amount of $830,336 to develop the plans
for completing the State-required GSPs for these basins. Another round of funding was announced
by DWR to assist with plan preparation. The District received an additional $1.2 million to help
with installation of additional monitoring wells and a Managed Aquifer Recharge project.
Currently, the District is acquiring access for the monitoring wells and working on planning of the

Managed Aquifer Recharge project.

Future Water Supply Storage Options
Consistent with recommendations made in the recently completed Hollister Urban Area Water and

Wastewater Master Plan Update, the District is working on an evaluation of local water storage
alternatives for the future. The District is in the planning stages of developing the North Area
Groundwater Project. The project seeks to add additional local water sources to meet the dry year
reliability and to meet future water demands. Currently, the District is looking at adding an
additional groundwater well in an area known to have good water quality to serve the COH around
the Airport Industrial area. In addition to helping the COH meet fire flow requirements, the new
well would provide additional water supply during times when the District may receive less water
through its USBR contract. The goal is to provide up to 1000 ac-ft per year of additional supply.
The District is coordinating these efforts with the COH and SSCWD.

Reservoir Management Plans

In 2017, the District completed preparation of an operations planning tool to create annual plans
for operation of Hernandez and Paicines Reservoirs and for re-diversion of Hernandez Reservoir
releases to Paicines Reservoir at the San Benito River Diversion. 2018 marked the first year the
operational planning tool was used to manage reservoir releases for groundwater recharge. This

iii



planning tool has been incorporated into the SGMA GSP. The District continues to use the
Reservoir Management tools to manage the surface waters of San Benito County to augment

groundwater supplies.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Rate Policy
The Board of Directors adopts water rates for groundwater, surface water, and rural water system

services. The District follows the Proposition 218 landowner notification, protest process and
public hearings for the adoption of new or increased rates and charges. On January 25, 2023 the
Board approved rates for the 2023-24, 2024-25 and 2025-26 fiscal years.

Budgetary Control

The District is not required by statute to adopt a budget; however, it does so annually to outline
the major elements of the forthcoming year's operating and capital plans and to allocate funding
required for those purposes. Budget appropriations for major capital projects continue from year
to year until the project is completed. A quarterly financial report is reviewed by the Board Finance
Committee and reported to the Board of Directors.

Accounting Systems
The District's books and records are maintained on an enterprise basis, as it is the intent of the

Board to manage the District's operations as a business, thus matching revenues against costs to
provide water service and implement programs to control, manage and conserve water. Revenues
and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis in the period in which revenue is earned or expenses

are incurred.

Internal Controls
The District's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal

controls designed to safeguard the District's assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and 2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. The District's management believes that the current system of internal controls
adequately safeguards the District's assets and provides reasonable assurance that accounting

transactions are properly recorded.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its annual
comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This is the ninth
year that the District has been awarded a Certificate of Achievement. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a District must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current

iv



ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the San Benito County Water
District's Board of Directors for their interest and support in the financial operations of the District.
It is the responsible and progressive manner in which business is conducted that makes the District
successful. I would like to extend special recognition to the District Finance and Administrative
staff for their commitment to excellence in financial reporting. In addition, I would also like to
thank the District's auditors McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman for their significant technical
contribution and assistance. It is the combined effort of all participants that resulted in the issuance

of this financial report.

Respectfully submitted,

Steve Wittry, P.E.
General Manager



DISTRICT PROFILE

DISTRICT FORMATION

The District has broad powers for the conservation and management of water (flood, surface,
drainage, and ground water). The primary focus of the District is the management of water quantity
and quality throughout San Benito County including, where appropriate, the development of local
water supplies and the development and importation of water supplies from outside the County.

The District is a California Special District formed in 1953 by the San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control Act. At that time, the District merged with the Hollister Irrigation
District, becoming the successor to the water rights, water facilities and land interests of the
Hollister Irrigation District. The name was changed from San Benito County Water Conservation
and Flood Control District to San Benito County Water District in 1988.

SERVICE AREA

The District encompasses all of San Benito County, with an area of approximately 1,400 square
miles and a population of over 63,526 people. Residential communities served include: City of
San Juan Bautista, City of Hollister, unincorporated urban areas surrounding Hollister and Tres
Pinos.

The District provides water service and water related services through zones of benefit. Current
zones of benefit are:

District Administration (Zone 1)

San Benito River System (Zone 3)

San Felipe Project (Zone 6)

Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Zone 7)
DISTRICT ORGANIZATION
A five-member Board of Directors (Board) governs the District. Board members are elected for
four-year terms from divisions that are coterminous with the supervisory districts of San Benito

County. Directors must be a resident of, and a registered voter in the division they represent.
Members begin service in December of even numbered years.

To facilitate matters, most matters coming before the Board are first considered by one of its
committees. Each committee then reports to the full Board, which makes the necessary decisions.
There are twelve standing committees:

Finance

Investments

Administration

Expansion

Rural Water Systems

Zone 3 Operations and Water Supply
Zone 6 Water Supply

Zone 6 Operations

Personnel

Pacheco Reservoir Exploratory

San Felipe Division Activities
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

vi



Several ad-hoc committees exist for special purposes and meet on an as-needed basis.
In addition, Board members serve as the District representatives to the following Board of
Directors and multi-agency committees:
> San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority (2 positions)
Association of California Water Agencies-Joint Powers Insurance Authority
Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority
Water Resources Association of San Benito County

Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan Governance Committee (2
positions)

YV V VY

An organizational chart of the District appears on page xii of the introductory section.

In 2014, the State of California passed the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
This law outlines new requirements and tools for ensuring the long-term sustainability of these
critical sources of water supply. The District is the Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) for
the North San Benito Groundwater Basin. The District is cooperating with Santa Clara Valley
Water District (SCVWD), which is the GSA for small portions of the Hollister and San Juan-basins
within Santa Clara County. More information on SGMA can be found on the District’s website
(sbcwd.com/sustainable-groundwater-management).

WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The principal water available to water users is local Groundwater and imported Central Valley
Project (CVP) water. Local surface supplies are primarily percolated into the groundwater basin
for later recovery through pumping by individual users and domestic water suppliers. The imported
water supply from the San Felipe Project is available for use within the defined zone of benefit.
The system provides for direct delivery to agricultural and other rural properties and for centralized
delivery to the Hollister area for urban use. Under District rules and regulations, available imported
surface water is supplemental to grcundwater and is allocated to users within the zone of benefit
on an annual basis.

Groundwater use, within the North San Benito Groundwater Basin had exceeded the natural supply
for decades and a state of overdraft (use exceeds basin's natural ability to replenish itself) existed.
Due to the District’s management activity which includes management of local surface water
supply and the importation of CVP water, the groundwater basin had fully recovered by 2001. The
drought beginning in 2007 put pressure on the groundwater basin but storage was sufficient to
sustain demand. We will continue in a period of recovery as long as we continue to get an average
of 20,000 acre-feet per year of imported water. If not, management activities will need to be
modified. The current land uses, and the economy of San Benito County depend upon the water
placed in groundwater storage and the water imported by the District. These conditions require
careful management, data collection and analysis. The District maintains a groundwater and
surface water quality database to support these efforts.

As a matter of practice, the Board of Directors has requested a groundwater report each year. The
objective of this report is to conduct an audit of critical water resources and the actions taken to
manage these resources, as well as making recommendations for management actions for
forthcoming years. Public notice of this process is provided to encourage the participation of
landowners and groundwater users.

In the 1950s, the San Benito River System was undertaken for storage and percolation of locally
occurring surface water. The system was established to mitigate the overdraft in part of the San

vii



Benito portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin. The Hernandez Dam was constructed
and placed in operation in the early 1960s for the storage of locally occurring water. The District
continues to operate this facility, as well as the Paicines Canal and Reservoir which was built in
1913 and rehabilitated in the early 1960s. The District holds water rights licenses from the State
of California for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, San Benito River and Dos Picachos Creek. These
water rights permit the diversion and storage of surface water for percolation into the ground for
later recovery and use. Water is released for percolation through the streambed at the San Benito
River, Tres Pinos Creek, and a natural drainage adjacent to Dos Picachos Creek.

In the late 1970s, the San Felipe Project was initiated to correct the remaining overdraft in the San
Benito County portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin, to provide a water supply of
appropriate quality, and to provide through conjunctive use an expanded water supply. The San
Felipe Project's zone of benefit contains approximately 47,500 acres. The District has contracted
with the United States on behalf of landowners for water service from the San Felipe Division of
the federal CVP. The District and the landowners and water users within this zone of benefit are
the beneficiaries of State of California water rights held by the United States. These water rights
are subject to the continuing jurisdiction of the State of California. Water use is subject to federal
laws and regulations and the terms and condition of the contracts between the United States and
the District.

The original San Felipe Project was to provide a high-quality supplement to the local supplies to
correct the groundwater overdraft, provide alternative supplies in certain areas with poor quality
water (high Boron levels) and a firm long-term water supply. Since that original planning, the
supply available to the District from the CVP has been significantly reduced as the CVP addresses
water quality, endangered species, and the addition of fisheries as a principal purpose of the CVP.
The District has undertaken a number of initiatives to identify projects and programs to ensure its
supplies and restore reliability.

WATER SUPPLY

The District manages the federal contract with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
for delivery of water through the San Felipe unit of the Central Valley Project. The total federal
contract entitlement is 43,800 acre-feet of water per year (35,550 acre-feet of Irrigation, 8,250
acre-feet of Municipal and Industrial). Based on availability of water the USBR allocates a
percentage of the contract entitlement.

The local water supply consists of water rights for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, the San Benito
River system, and the Dos Picachos Creek. The use of the water from Hernandez and the San
Benito River is for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells. The Dos Picachos water
is diverted from December through May for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells.

The District has worked cooperatively for years with the County of San Benito, City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District to implement recycled water use. Current recycled water
use includes City of Hollister landscape irrigation. Since 2016, recycled water has also been
delivered to agriculture users.

Additionally, from time to time, the District participates in transfers or purchases of water from
other agencies.

WATER TREATMENT

With the execution of the Hollister Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment Agreement
(HUWSTA) in 2013 by the District, the City of Hollister, and Sunnyslope County Water District,
the District became the owner of the upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and began design

viii



and construction of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant which was completed in October 2017.
This agreement marked the beginning of the District providing wholesale treated drinking water
to the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District.

Groundwater in the Hollister Urban area is characterized by high mineralization, driving customers
to utilize water softeners to mitigate the high hardness. As a part of the District’s CVP contract,
the District is entitled to up to 8,250-acre feet of M&I water annually. Completion of upgrades to
Lessalt and construction of West Hills now allows the District to fully utilize its CVP M&I
allocation each year. This directly benefits City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District
customers by delivering drinking water with significantly lower hardness which allows them to
remove salt-based water softeners.

WATER RESOURCES ASSOCIATION OF SAN BENITO COUNTY

The Water Resources Association of San Benito County (WRASBC) operates under a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the District, the City of Hollister, the City of San
Juan Bautista, and Sunnyslope County Water District. The purpose of the organization is to
promote water resource management in a coordinated, cooperative and cost-effective manner
within the County. This is accomplished through implementation of public and special purpose
educational programs, public communications, compilation of water resource data and frequent
communication among the agencies regarding water management activities. WRASBC is reported
as a fiduciary fund of the District who manages the staff and financial resources of the WRASBC.

X



Government Finance Officers Association
Certificate of
Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

San Benito County Water District
California

For 1ts Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30. 2020

Cleilopihe. P- Honiet

Executive Director/CEQ



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
JUNE 30, 2022

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Doug Williams
President, Division 4
Term expires November 2022

Sonny Flores
Director, Division 5
Term Expires November 2024

John Tobias
Director, Division 1
Term expires November 2022

Andrew Shelton
Director, Division 3
Term expires November 2024

Doug Williams
Director, Division 4
Term Expires November 2022

DISTRICT COUNSEL
Jeremy Liem
Pipal, Spurzem & Liem, LLP
Attorneys at Law

DISTRICT MANAGER
Jeff Cattaneo, P.E.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the District is to preserve the economic and environmental wealth and well-
being of San Benito County through the control, management and conservation of waters and
the provision of water services in a practical, cost-effective and responsible manner.

xi



v

(D) venmgoaL
IREONILEAIANTG
(s mm1 - .
sovemamey s | |0 AT L
IIEN W DVLUNURY
— " —
(1) 1sdjewy sagensmwnupy @ (¢) 1 sanmmasanday sostuadan mwaﬁ, (1) :owmBuy
/S9OIMOSIY VBTN OUILT isHeeds 2150 UOHEAIISUOD e ; v mamou i EN JLIIOSSY JO JUBISISSY
| i I _
(@O mm \ ; 1
1571€199d g Jun0IOY WO - I Eﬂﬁ_u&wﬂo (1) 3e8euepy dueury W MWMMMM,EMMQQ @ bw«a“& wﬁﬁuﬁaﬁ Iuduy somagassuiduy
pue I eunaesdosd ey WOARL) preog vane: 2 BEm ¥ suonesxdo sy Andsg
l ] | ]
|
(1) sadsag
SSIUISNY PUL ‘ULTL ‘TOURNSTUNUPY Jo safeney (1) s3ourug Psiq
_ . _
1
(1) 323euepy [RI2UAD) JUEISISSY
|
(1) 3Beuepy 1S
] esuno) pomsig ]
|
530329317 jO pIeog
7707 ‘o€ dunp

ey uoneziuediQ

LOTHLSIA YALVM ALNNOD OLINAL NVS




dall Benitg Lounty vvater DIstrict

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

This section of the District's annual financial report presents our analysis of the District's financial
performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the
Financial Statements which follows this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position at June 30, 2022 was $143,935,158 which reflects an increase of
$10,056,813 from prior year.

¢ Operating revenue was $9,363,846 and operating expenses including depreciation and
amortization was $10,124,217.

» Non-operating revenue decerased $195,663 and non-operating expenses decreased by
$1,937,000 which resulted in a $1,741,337 net increase over prior year.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the San Benito County
Water District's basic financial statements. The District's basic financial statements have three
components: 1) Management's Discussion and Analysis, 2) Basic Financial Statements and 3)
Notes to Financial Statements. In addition to the Basic Financial Statements, other supplementary
information is provided for further information and analysis.

The Financial Statements of the District report information about the District using accounting
methods similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements present both short-
and long-term information about its activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, and provides information about the nature and
amount of investment in resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities).
This statement provides the financial information to evaluate the capital structure of the District
and to assess the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. The difference between the
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is shown as net
position. Over time, increase or decrease in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report all of the current year
revenues and expenses. This statement reports the financial impact of the District's activities over
the past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all of
its costs through its user fees, charges and other revenues.

The Statement of Cash Flows is intended to provide information about the District's cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes in cash as a result of operations, capital activities, and investments.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a description of the accounting policies used to
prepare the financial statements and present material disclosure required by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) that are not otherwise present in the financial statements.



Ddll DUIILY COUNLY YVALCT LSt

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

Net Position

The following is the condensed Statement of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022
and 2021:

San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change
2022 2021 Amount Percent
Current assets $ 72,706,645 § 66,454,465 $§ 6,252,180 9.4%
Other assets 27,046,248 25,125,852 1,920,396 7.6%
Capital assets, net 77,113,610 78,220,649 (1,107,039) -1.4%
Total Assets 176,866,503 169,800,966 7,065,537 4.2%
Deferred outflows of resources 4,453,387 4,260,586 192,801 4.5%
Current liabilities 5,708,404 5,066,170 642,234 12.7%
Long-term liabilities 29,280,381 34,611,746 (5,331,365) -15.4%
Total Liabilities 34,988,785 39,677,916 (4,689,131) -11.8%
Deferred mflows of resources 2,395,947 505,291 1,890,656 374.2%
Net Position:
Net nvestment in capital assets 73,679,010 74,439,791 (760,781) -1.0%
Restricted 27,219,448 23,812,594 3,406,854 14.3%
Unrestricted 43,036,700 35,625,960 7,410,740 20.8%
Total Net Position $143,935,158  $133,878,345  $10,056,813 7.5%

Net position increased in 2022 to $143,935,158 up $10,056,813 from fiscal year end 2021.

The increase in restricted net position reflects the contributions to restricted reserves for future
repayment of the USBR Amendatory Contract (refer to Notes to Basic Financial Statements No.
14), capital asset replacement related to the Water Treatment plants per the Hollister Urban Area
Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA), Reach 1 Facilities for major repair and
replacements and the Other Post Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB).

Net investment in capital assets decreased by $760,781. This is a direct result of the principal
payments on the City National obligation and higher depreciation expense.

The change in current assets is $6,252,180 which reflects a cash increase of $5,006,470 of which
$3,406,854 is in restricted cash. Prepaid expenses decreased by $137,760 and accounts receivable
increased by $1,339,386.

The decrease in long term liabilities is the net result of the payments received for unearned revenue
5



Ddll DUINLY LUUlILY YYaler 17Iistrict

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

related to the HUWSTA Contract and the decrease in the net pension liability.

At the end of the fiscal year 2022, the District had $4,453,387 of Deferred Outflows of Resources
and $2,395,947 of Deferred Inflows of Resources. Deferred Outflows of Resources increased by
$192,801 and Deferred Inflows of Resources increased by $1,890,656 over the prior year. The
activity reflects changes in assumptions, expected and actual experience, changes in proportion
and contributions to the District’s pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plans.
Additional information on the District’s pension and OPEB plans can be found in Notes to Basic
Financial Statements Nos. 10 and 12.

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
The following is the Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021:

San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2022 and 2021
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change
2022 2021 Amount Percent
Revenues:
Operating revenues $ 9,363,846 $ 12,233,531 $(2,869,685) -23.5%
Nonoperating revenues 11,385,697 11,581,360 (195,663) -1.7%
Total Revenues 20,749,543 23,814,891 (3,065,348) -12.9%
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
expense (3,449,944) (3,115,945) (333,999) 10.7%
Operating expense (6,674,273) (10,797,855) 4,123,582  -38.2%
Nonoperating expense (568,513) (2,505,513) 1,937,000 -77.3%
Total Expenses (10,692,730) (16,419,313) 5,726,583  -34.9%
Change in Net Position 10,056,813 7,395,578 2,661,235 36.0%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 133,878,345 126,482,767 7,395,578 5.8%
Net Position, End of Year $ 143,935,158 $133,878,345  $10,056,813 7.5%

Operating revenue decreased by $2,869,685.

Non-operating revenue reflects a decrease of $195,663 from prior year. Although an increase is
reflected in property tax revenue, the increase was offset by decreased interest revenue and an

investment income loss of $491,891.

Total expenses decreased by $5,726,581. Operating expenses decreased by $4,123,582 primarily
due to a decrease in pension and cost of water expenses. The non-operating expense decrease of
$1,937,000 is partially due to the reclassification of multi-year projects that were closed and
expensed in the prior fiscal year for approximately $1.4 million.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

The various operating and non-operating revenues are as follows:

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Fiscal Year Ended 2022

Taxes and
Assessments
49%

Interest
Revenue
1%

Other
Grant Revenue Nonoperating
5% Revenues
1%
EXPENSES

Fiscal Year Ended 2022

Material &
Equipment
3%

: 4neral and

Administrative
Othe 3%

R Utility Expenses

4%

Investment
loss
4%

Interest
Expense
2%



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and land rights, source of supply plant, pumping plant, transmission
and distribution system, general plant, treatment plant and water rights. The change in general
plant includes three District vehicles and a tractor. The increase in transmission and distribution
plant includes replacement valves and upgrades to the District telemetry equipment and software.
The pumping plant increase reflects pump repair work. The treatment plant change reflects the
tracer study for West Hills. Other significant increases are in Water Rights. The Reach 1 Capital
Improvement is part of the on-going project with Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) for
major repairs and replacement of equipment at the Reach 1 facilities. The Central Valley Project
(CVP) water rights reflect the portion of the payments on the Second Amendment of the USBR
contract that are the capital costs for the San Felipe Division.

At June 30, 2022, the District had $114,553,162 in capital assets with $28,973,635 in accumulated
depreciation and $8,465,917 in accumulated amortization for a net amount of $77,113,610 (refer
to-Notes to Financial Statements No. 6).
San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Capital Assets
June 30, 2022 and 2021

Change
2022 2021 Amount Percent

Water rights

Semitropic Water Storage $ 696,716 $ 696,716 $ - 0.0%

Central Valley Project 17,227,135 15,480,102 1,747,033 11.3%

San Justo Reservoir 246,462 246,462 - 0.0%

Wright Rd Pipeline 830,850 830,850 - 0.0%

Reach 1 capital improvement 9,742,628 9,498,192 244,436 2.6%

Recycled Water Storage Pond 1,509,313 1,493,048 16,265 1.1%

USBR In-basin capital repayment 2,838,779 2,838,779 - 0.0%
Source of supply plant 2,982,546 2,982,546 - 0.0%
Transmission and distribution plant 20,982,261 20,861,464 120,797 0.6%
Pumping plant 10,243,832 10,229,446 14,386 0.1%
General plant 2,034,657 1,843,766 190,891 10.4%
Treatment plant 44,341,598 44,332,501 9,097 0.0%
Land and land rights 876,385 876,385 - 0.0%
Total capital assets 114,553,162 112,210,257 2,342,905 2.1%
(Accumulated amortization) (8,465,917) (6,964,641) (1,501,276) 21.6%
(Accumulated depreciation) (28,973,635) (27,024,967) (1,948,668) 7.2%
Net capital assets $ 77,113,610 $ 78,220,649 $ (1,107,039) -1.4%




San benito Lounty water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

Long Term Debt

The District had obtained financing in 2016 for capital improvements related to the HUWSTA and
the Recycled Water projects for a total of $5,500,000 with City National Bank. At the end of this
fiscal year, the District’s remaining obligation for this loan was $3,434,600. Additional
information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8.

In February 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $2,905,000 to pay off the USBR In-Basin
Capital obligation to be consistent with the WIIN Act. Additional information can be found in
Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8 and 14.

In April 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $3,016,000 for the CalPERS Unfunded
Accrued Liability to reduce the interest on the obligation long term. The payment made to
CalPERS is reflected in Deferred Outflows of Resources and will reduce the District’s pension
liability in the next fiscal year. Additional information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial
Statements No. 8 and 10.

San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Long Term Debt
June 30, 2022 and 2021
June 30, June 30, Change

2022 2021 Amount Percent
City National Bank loan payable '$ 3,434,600 $ 3,780,858 $ (346,258) -9.2%
2021 Water Refunding Obligation
Bond 2,734,000 2,905,000 (171,000)  -5.9%
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation
Bonds 2,794,000 3,016,000 (222,000)  -7.4%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

General Property Tax Revenue

The District’s budget includes revenue from general property tax and San Felipe land tax. Changes
to the expected tax revenue are considered in the budgeting process.

Interest Rates

The economic environment has provided some increase in interest rates over the last year. The
District’s investment income is affected by these rates and current economic conditions will be
considered in the budgeting process.

Review of Zone 6 Rates and Charges

The Zone 6 process for the review of rates and charges and development of the annual budget
considers the impact of the following:

1) Proposition 218

Agencies are subject to a statutory landowner notification and protest process for any rate
increases. The District complies with this requirement. Rates have been approved for Zone 6
San Felipe water, Groundwater and Recycled Water through water year 2022-2023.

9



Oall BENIto Lounty vvater DIStrict

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

2) San Felipe Project Reach 1

The District, in conjunction with SCVWD has current and future financial obligations for the
operation and maintenance costs of the San Felipe Project, Reach 1 facilities (all facilities from
Pacheco Pumping Plant at San Luis Reservoir to the bifurcation structure at Casa de Fruta). In
2007, the District and SCVWD negotiated an agreement with the intent to clarify the business
relationship between the two entities as it relates to the operations and maintenance of the
Reach 1 facilities. This agreement provided for a review of the current conditions of the
facilities, definition of a standard for operating conditions and development of a program to
keep the facilities at that standard on an ongoing basis.

SCVWD has developed a comprehensive asset management plan for the ongoing maintenance
and repair of the San Felipe Facilities. This asset management plan includes a schedule of
future capital projects. The cost of the ongoing maintenance and repair and capital projects is
considered in the budgeting and rate setting process.

Since 2007 when the initial condition assessment was done, the District has contributed close
to $9.8 million toward capital projects. This has included major repair of the regulating tank,
the communication cable, rebuilding of several pumps (pumps described in the Statistical
Section-Facilities) and replacement of the adjustable speed drives on 12 pumps. SCVWD also
did a condition assessment of the Pacheco Conduit. The assessment resulted in the installation
of new air valves, an acoustic monitoring system which listens for wire breaks and an
additional valve at bifurcation. Additionally, the fire suppression system is being upgraded.
The current asset management plan calls for an average of 1 pump repair each year at an
approximate cost of $1 million (District’s share of $220,000).

3) United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) Central Valley Project (CVP) Water
Allocations

Annually, the USBR specifies to each of the contractors in CVP, the initial percentage of their
water contract that will be delivered in the upcoming water year which begins March 1. In past
recent years, due to the pumping restrictions in the Delta for the protection of endangered
species and physical drought in the State, water delivery allocations had been reduced.
Allocations also vary from year to year depending on hydrogeological conditions. For water
year 2020-2021, the District received 20% of its Agricultural (AG) and 70% of its Municipal
and Industrial (M&I) allocations. In 2021-2022, the District received 0% for AG and 25% of
historic use for M&I. The USBR allocation for water year 2022-2023 to the District was 0%
AG and 0% M&I. The M&I allocation may be adjusted by application for Public Health and
Safety needs. The District includes consideration of these volumes in its rate reviews.

4) Zone 6 Groundwater Rates and San Felipe Distribution Rates

The rate base for groundwater rates includes the costs associated with managing the
groundwater basin and the costs associated with percolation. Anticipated projects and program
costs to address groundwater issues and other surface and groundwater management initiatives,
including the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (effective January 2016) are expected
to be included in future rates and charges review. Groundwater rates are expected to increase
as the District worked to recover from the groundwater impact of the drought through active
percolation and the purchase of additional imported water to offset pumping.

San Felipe water rates are based on the operations and maintenance costs associated with the
delivery of San Felipe water. These costs include the District's share of the operations and

10



Ddil DCINLY Lounty vwater visirict

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2022

maintenance costs for the USBR Central Valley Project, the San Luis Delta Mendota Water
Authority (SLDMWA), and the San Felipe Reach 1 facility maintained by the SCVWD as well
as the District's own operation and maintenance costs. The pass-through costs from other
agencies are included in the District’s cost of water, and can change as these agencies’ O&M,
capital and power expenses change. Current rates do not fully recover these operating
expenses. The District aims to recover as much of the operating expense as possible through
rates, however, given the changes in volume of water available through the CVP, the coverage
ratio is subject to variability. Consideration of cost recovery from rates is included in the rates
and charges review.

Raw water rates charged to the District’s urban distribution customers (the City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District) are considered wholesale rates, and are not subject to
Proposition 218. The wholesale rates have been set for water year 2022-2023 to reflect the
cost of additional water purchase required for the water treatment plant supply.

5) San Luis Delta Mendota Rewind Project

SLDMWA operates the Jones Pumping Plant on behalf of the USBR. The rewind of the six
22,500 horsepower pumps are part of current capital project for the SLDMWA. Each rewind
is approximately $6 million, and all South-of Delta contractors, including the District must pay
their respective share of the costs based on each agency’s contract water deliveries. The first
rewind was completed in May 2019 and the last unit is scheduled to be complete in May 2023.

6) B.F. Sisk Reservoir Raise Project

The USBR is working on a project to raise the level of the B. F. Sisk Reservoir (commonly
known as San Luis Reservoir) for seismic safety purposes. SLDMWA is doing planning work
to explore the possibility of a concurrent project of raising the dam an additional 10 feet to add
additional storage space for South of Delta contractors who wish to participate. The District
s a participant in the SLDMWA activity agreement that was executed in May of 2022.

7) Delta Mendota Canal Subsidence

Land subsidence has occurred in areas that surround the Delta Mendota Canal that has
diminished the carrying capacity of the canal. Repair estimates are approximately $500
million. SLDMWA is leading efforts to seek federal and state funding for the financing of
these repairs. The District would need to pay its proportionate share of costs that are not funded
by federal or state grants. The District relies on this canal in the delivery of its CVP water.
The solution may have future impact on rates.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need any additional information,
contact the District office.

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd.

P.O. Box 899

Hollister, CA 95024

Phone: (831) 637-8218

Fax: (831) 637-7267
www.sbcwd.com

11



FINANCIAL SECTION



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and mvestments
Receivables, net
Contract receivable - current portion
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash and investments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Deferred charges
Net pension asset
Contract receivable-noncurrent portion
Capital assets
Water rights, net
Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB
Total deferred outflows of resources

2022 2021
41,051,017 39,451,401
3,165,297 1,825,911
1,145,671 1,101,587
125,212 262,972
27,219,448 23,812,594
72,706,645 66,454,465
4,541,053 3,324,803
1,849,819 -
20,655,376 21,801,049
21,787,187 21,280,729
54,450,038 56,063,535
876,385 876,385
104,159,858 103,346,501
176,866,503 169,800,966
3,908,164 3,657,783
545,223 602,803
4,453,387 4,260,586

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

13



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position (continued)

June 30, 2022
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)
2022 2021
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,404,883 1,130,303
Accrued wages and benefits 57,825 45,981
Accrued vacation and sick leave 340,093 408,757
City National Bank loan payable - current portion 357,471 346,257
2021 Water Refunding Obligation Bond - current portion 171,000 171,000
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - current portion 164,000 222,000
Due to other agencies 1,987,110 1,366,413
Contract customer water prepayments 80,351 273,872
Unearned contract revenue 1,145,671 1,101,587
Total current liabilities 5,708,404 5,066,170
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net OPEB liability 267,375 866,970
Net pension liability - 2,924,121
Deposits . 87,500 57,000
City National Bank loan payable - noncurrent portion 3,077,129 3,434,601
2021 Water Refunding Obligation Bond - noncurrent portion 2,563,000 2,734,000
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - noncurrent portion 2,630,000 2,794,000
Uneamned contract revenue 20,655,377 21,801,054
Total noncurrent liabilities 29,280,381 34,611,746
Total liabilities 34,988,785 39,677,916
Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities 1,925,824 62,572
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 470,123 442,719
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,395,947 505,291
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 73,679,010 74,439,791
Restricted
Revolving fund reserve requirement 75,000 75,000
Operation and maintenance reserves 4,144,537 3,820,590
Contract repayment reserves 18,277,576 16,036,678
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 887,360 570,636
Contract replacement reserves 3,834,975 3,309,690
Unrestricted 43,036,700 35,625,960

Total net position $ 143,935,158  § 133,878,345

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
14



San Benito County Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2022 2021
Operating revenue 9,363,846 $ 12,233,531
Operating expenses:
Cost of water 2,458,690 3,204,849
Wages and employee related expenses 2,304,705 2,411,407
Pension cost (gain) expense (3,161,071) 144,403
Contract services 3,940,006 3,635,982
Material and equipment 353,798 614,992
General and administrative 358,387 337,464
Utility expenses 419,758 448,758
Depreciation and amortization 3,449,944 3,115,945
Total operating expenses 10,124,217 13,913,800
Operating loss (760,371) (1,680,269)
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Taxes and assessments 10,521,329 9,826,204
Grant revenue 1,022,649 1,435,394
Other nonoperating revenues 211,747 209,932
Interest revenues 121,863 328,711
Investment loss (491,891) (218,881)
Interest expense (192,647) (127,722)
Loss on disposal of assets - (50,999)
Other nonoperating expenses (375,866) (2,326,792)
Net nonoperating revenue (expenses) 10,817,184 9,075,847
Change in net position 10,056,813 7,395,578
Net position, beginning of year 133,878,345 126,482,767
Net position, end of year $ 143,935,158 $ 133,878,345

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
15



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended June 30, 2022

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from operations
Cash payments to suppliers for operations

Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses

Cash payments for general and administrative expenses
Cash payments to other agencies

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Taxes and assessments collected
Grant revenue
Proceeds from borrowings

Net Cash Provided by
Non-Capital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets

Additions to preliminary survey and construction in progress

Principal paid on capital debt

Interest on long-term debt

Proceeds from capital borrowings
Cash receipts on sale of capital assets

Net Cash Used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received from cash and cash equivalents
Investment losses

Net Cash Provided by (Used by) Investing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Year
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Balances, Beginning of Year

Balances, End of Year

2022 2021
9,296,693  $12,372,672
(5,569,686)  (8,892,969)
(4,230479)  (5915,047)

(358,387) (388,573)
(248,952) (34,900)
(1,110,811)  (2,858,817)
10,486,050 9,792,209
492,319 1,264,923

. 3,016,000
10,978,369 14,073,132
(2,342,905)  (5,155,605)
(1,216,250) (662,768)
(739,258) (335,395)
(192,648) (127,722)

- 2,905,000

- 14,552
(4,491,061)  (3,361,938)
121,863 242,306
(491,891) :
(370,028) 242,306
5,006,469 8,094,683
39451401 34,836,988
23,812,595 20,332,324
63,263,996 55,169,312
$ 68270465  $63,263,995

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

16



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2022 2021
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 41,051,017 $39,451,401
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 27,219,448 23,812,594
Total Cash and Restricted Cash $ 68270465  $63,263,995
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING L.OSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss §  (760,371) $(1,680,269)
Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash (used) for operating
activities:
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (164,119) (1,036,685)
Loss on disposal of assets 50,999
Depreciation and amortization 3,449,944 3,110,409
Provision (recovery) for allowance for doubtful accounts (7,051) 9,327
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivables (766,726) 473,795
_ (Increase) decrease in contract receivable 1,101,589 1,059,223
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 137,760 265,258
Increase (decrease) in payables and accrued expenses 895,277 (387,574)
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits (56,820) 1,057
Increase (decrease) in other post employment benefits (599,595) (360,332)
Increase (decrease) in pension liabilities (4,773,940) 233,124
Increase (decrease) in deposits and retention payable 30,500 16,079
Increase (decrease) in customer water prepayments (193,521) (343,986)
Increase (decrease) in unearned contract revenue (1,101,593) (1,059,218)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities (250,381) (2,941,738)
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 57,580 (532,404)
Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities 1,863,252 (92,955)
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 27,404 357,073
Net cash (used) for operating activities $ (1,110811) $(2,858,817)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
17



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Fiduciary Funds Net Position
June 30, 2022

Water Resources Association

Custodial Fund
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 760,368
Receivables 121,909
Total assets 882,277
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 3,678
Total liabilities 3,678
NET POSITION
Restricted for the Water Resource Association 878,599
Total Net Position $ 878,599

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
18



San Benito County Water District

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Funds Net Position

Addition:
Agency contributions

Total addition

Deductions:
Contract services
Material and equipment
General and administrative
Investment loss

Total deductions
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year,

Net position, end of year

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Water Resources Association
Custodial Fund

$ 367,900
367,900

214,490
11,755
62,014

7,070

295,329
72,571

806,028

$ 878,599

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

19



3an pemto Lounty water Wastrict

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The San Benito County Water District (District) is a water conservation and flood control district
governed by the San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control Act codified as
Appendix 70 of the California Water Code.

The District is an independent and autonomous agency, governed by a five-member Board of
Directors directly elected by electors in five divisions. The boundaries of each division are
coterminous with those of the supervisory districts of the County. A director must be a resident
of and a registered voter in the division they represent.

District zones are not distinct or separate units of government from the District and the financial
operations and activities related to those zones of benefits are included within the District's
financial statements as one legal entity. No separate financial statements are prepared for the
individual zones of benefits.

The Water Resources Association custodial fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting for
reporting its assets and liabilities. The fund is used to account for receipts and disbursements
associated with the Water Resources Association, which is administered, but not the liability of,
the District

The accompanying supplementary information to the District’s Financial Statements includes the
financial activities of the District Administration (Zone 1), San Benito River System (Zone 3),
and San Felipe Project (Zone 6) and the Ground Sustainability Plan (Zone 7). These zones were
formed to undertake projects and provide water supply and related benefits to specific
geographic areas within the District.

B. Basis of Accounting

The District's single enterprise fund (a business-type activity) and fiduciary fund are accounted
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized when earned, and expenses are
recognized when they are incurred.

C. Accounting Principlés ;

The accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountant (AICPA).

D. Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus

The District's single enterprise fund is accounted for on a cost of service or "economic resources"
measurement focus. This means that assets and all activities are included on the statement of net
position. Operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total
assets. The financial statements distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering services in connection with the District's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and services for
delivering water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, general and
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. Non-operating
revenues include revenues from taxes and assessments that are general purpose and/or special
purpose in nature. The Fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside of the District.

20



San Benito County water Lastrict

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

E. Budgets

The District’s Board of Directors annually adopts a capital and an operating budget for the
ensuing fiscal year effective July 1 as a financial plan for the year. The budget is adopted by the
governing Board as an operating plan. Although there is no legal requirement to report budgetary
basis financial information in this report, the District’s Board of Directors review performance to
budget on a quarterly basis.

F. Joint Powers Agreements

The District is a participant in the Association of California Water Agencies, Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for the purpose of obtaining property and liability insurance.
The District also participates in the San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) for
the purposes of operating and maintaining a portion of the Central Valley Project.

G. New Accounting Pronouncements

The District applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements for certain accounting and financial reporting guidance.

The District implemented the following statements for the year ended June 30, 2022:

¢ GASB Statement No. 87 - In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No 87, Leases. The
objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement
users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified
as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based
on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to
use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The
District has implemented this pronouncement for the fiscal year 2021-2022 and has had
no impact on the financial statements.

¢+ GASB Statement No. 89 — In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for
Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period. The objectives of this
Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital
assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to simplify accounting for
interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. The
District has implemented this pronouncement for the fiscal year 2021-2022.

¢ GASB Statement No. 92 — In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus
2020. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and
financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by
addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The District has implemented this
pronouncement for the fiscal year 2021-2022.

21



dan penito Lounty water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

¢ GASB Statement No. 97 — In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain
Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue
Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32"Conduit Debt
Obligations. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (a) increase consistency and
comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in
which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (b)
mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit
plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary
component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (c) enhance the relevance,
consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that
meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those plans. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2021. The District has implemented this pronouncement for the fiscal year 2021-2022.

Pending Accounting Standards

GASB has issued the following statements which may impact the District’s financial reporting
requirements in the future:

¢ GASB Statement No. 91 — In May 2019, GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt
Obligations. The objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting
conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1)
commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by
clarifying the existing definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit
debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and
financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by
issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving
required note disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The District has not determined the effect of
the statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2023.

¢ GASB Statement No. 94 — In March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-
Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payments Arrangements. The
objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement
users by improving the comparability of financial statements among governments that
enter into public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs) and availability payment
arrangements (APAs) and by enhancing the understandability, reliability, relevance, and
consistency of information about PPPs and APAs. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. The District has not
determined the effect of the statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end
June 30, 2023.

22



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

¢ GASB Statement No. 96 — In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by (a) establishing uniform
accounting and financial reporting requirements for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAs); (b) improving the comparability of financial
statements among governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the
understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2022. The District has not determined the effect of the statement which would
apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2023.

¢ GASB Statement No. 99 — In April 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus
2022. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability in accounting and
financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative literature by
addressing (1) practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial reporting for
financial guarantees. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2022. The District has not determined the effect of the Statement
which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2023.

¢+ GASB Statement No. 100 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections — An Amendment of GASB Statement No 62. The primary
objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements
for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable,
relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or assessing
accountability. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2022. The District has not determined the effect of the Statement which
would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2023.

¢ GASB Statement No. 101. — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance
for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2023. The District has not yet determined the effect of the
Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2024.

23



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

H. Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
deposits, money market accounts, short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition and investments with Local Authority Investment
Fund (LAIF) managed by the State of California. Deposits in LAIF are generally available for
withdrawal on a next day basis and therefore considered cash equivalents.

For purposes of determining cash equivalents, the District has defined its policy concerning the
treatment of short-term investments to include investments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased, as cash equivalents if management does not plan to reinvest the proceeds.
Short-term investments that management intends to rollover into similar investments are
considered part of the investment portfolio and are classified as investments.

Investments - All investments are stated at fair value, except for money market investments
which have a remaining maturity of less than one year when purchased, which are stated at
amortized cost.

Under the provisions of the District's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of
the California Government Code, the following investments are authorized:

*

U.S. Treasury Obligations, or Federal Agency Securities

FDIC Insured Certificates of Deposit

Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

Commercial Paper, (rated in highest short-term ratings category)

California's Local Agency Investment Fund

Securities of the State of California, its agencies, or any local agency within the state
Medium term corporate notes (rated "A" or better)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (rated "A" or better)

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money
market funds registered with Securities and Exchange Commission (highest rating by at
least 2 rating organizations)

¢ Registered Treasury Notes or Bonds of any of the other remaining 49 states

¢ Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to
Section 6509.7

Investment Held in Local Agency Investment Fund - The District participates in the LAIF, an
investment pool managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool
funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit
risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments. In
addition, these structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as a result
of changes in interest rates.

* S S 4 ¢ ¢ ¢ o0

LAIF determines value on its investment portfolio based on market quotations for those
securities where market quotations are readily available and based on amortized cost or best
estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.

The District valued its investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2022, by multiplying its account
balance with LAIF times a fair value factor determined by LAIF value for all LAIF participants
by total aggregate amortized cost.

24



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

I. Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from water utility customers as well as amounts due from
property taxes, contracts, interest, and other receivables. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
made annually. Receivables are reported net of the allowance for doubtful accounts.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses.

K. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent allocations of cash and investments that are a statutory
or contractual requirements. The District has established various accounts to provide for specific
activities in accordance with special regulations and restrictions placed by contracts, laws, or
regulations of other governments. Specific detail on source of restrictions is provided in Note 9 —
Net Position. Restricted resources are used first to fund expenses incurred.

L. Deferred Charges

Deferred charges consist of costs associated with preliminary survey and investigation,
construction in progress and other works in progress including the District’s share of
participation in multi-agency projects. These include costs incurred for the purpose of
determining the feasibility of projects under contemplation. If construction results, the costs are
capitalized and depreciated at the completion of construction in accordance with the District’s
Capital Asset Policy. If the work does not move forward to a capital project, the costs are
expensed.

M. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the District as property with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets with high portability
(computer equipment, furniture, and shop equipment) are considered for capitalization at an
individual cost of more than $2,500.

Capital assets used in cperationskare depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Assets that were placed in service during any fiscal year begin
depreciation on the first day of the next fiscal year.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Source of supply plant 25-75 Years
Transmission and distribution plant 20-75 Years
Pumping plant 7-10 Years
Treatment Plant 7-25 Years
General plant 5-10 Years

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical
cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their
acquisition value, market-based entry price on the date contributed. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations when incurred.

Betterments and major improvements, which significantly increase values, change capacities, or
extend useful lives, are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in the results of operations.

25



Sdall BCIHTO LOUunty vvawer psirict

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all
beneficiaries over the life of these assets, so that each landowner's/customer's bill includes a pro
rata share of the cost of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year
represents that year's pro rata share of depreciable capital assets.

Depreciation and amortization of all capital assets in service, excluding land, are charged as an
expense against operations each year and the total amount of depreciation taken over the years,
called accumulated depreciation and amortization, is reported on the statement of net position as
a reduction in the cost basis of the capital assets.

N. Water Rights

The District participates in various water storage and water rights agreements for imported
surface water. These agreements are included in capital assets as water rights.

O. Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

The District's employment policy provides for the accumulation of earned vacation leave and
vested sick leave. Due to the limited number of employees, the District has elected not to
conduct actuarial assessments of sick leave. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are
recognized as an expense and a liability at the time the benefit vests. Accrued vacation and sick
leave are reported as current liabilities on the statement of net position.

P. Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District offers two retirement plans to its employees. Employees hired before January 1,
2013 or hired after January 1, 2013 who met the definition of “Classic Member” as defined by
CalPERS are members of the CalPERS Classic Plan. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 are
members of the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act Plan (PEPRA Plan).

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the San
Benito County Water District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
plans (Plans) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS finance office. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 10
for the CalPERS Classic Plan disclosures.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2020
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2021
Measurement Period (MP) July1, 2020 to June 30,2021

Q. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District provides post-employer retirement benefits to its employees to assist with future
medical premium costs.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net

position of the District’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. Generally accepted accounting

26



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes.

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2020
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2021
Measurement Period (MP) : July1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

R. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then. The District has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category:

¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 10.

¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 12.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the following items that qualify for
reporting in this category:

¢ Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 10.

¢ Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 12.

S. Net Position

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources. The difference between
assets and liabilities is net position. The three components of net position are:

Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt — This component of net position consists
of capital assets, including infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
and reduced by the outstanding balance of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on the use of net
positions by external restrictions imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — This category represents net positions of the District that do not meet the
definition of "Restricted net position" or "Net investment in capital assets, net of related
debt."

27



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

T. Operating Revenue Recognition

Revenue from water sales is based on customer usage which is recognized on a monthly basis or
when the customer is contractually obligated to pay, whichever comes first. Well permitting and
other operating revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided.

U. Property Taxes and Assessments

Property taxes and assessments are collected by the County of San Benito and are payable by the
taxpayer in two installments each year. The District recognizes property taxes and assessments as
non-operating revenue in the fiscal year of levy.

The District levies the following voter-approved taxes and assessments:

¢ A land tax on behalf of San Felipe Division of the Central Valley Project (Zone 6). This
tax is a per annum assessment based on the assessed valuation of land for properties
within Zone 6.

¢ A standby charge for the availability of service from the San Felipe Distribution system
on properties in the area of Zone 6 served by the pressurized distribution system. This
per-acre charge is established annually by the Board of Directors.

¢ In addition to special purpose taxes and assessments, the District receives a portion of the
County of San Benito general purpose tax, which is allocated to the District by the
County.

V. Grants

In the normal course of operations, the District receives grant funds from Federal and State
agencies. The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose
of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any liability
for reimbursement, which may arise as the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

W. Amortization

The District has contracted with the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for water
service and for operation and maintenance of certain works of the San Felipe Division of the
federal Central Valley Project (CVP). A portion of the payments under this contract represent
repayment of the capital cost associated with the San Felipe Division. The capital component is
capitalized as Water Rights at the time it is paid and amortized using the straight-line method,
over the remaining entitlement period. Current interest on this contract is expensed as it is paid
and recorded in Cost of Water.

Capital projects related to the operations and maintenance of the San Felipe Division Reach I are
capitalized, and the associated costs are amortized using the straight-line method, over the
estimated useful life of the asset.

X. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Y. Claims and Judgments

An estimated loss is recorded, net of insurance coverage, and inclusive of an estimate for
incurred but unreported claims, when it is probable that a claim liability has been incurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

28



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Z.. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and
the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

AA. Debt Management Policy

The District adopted a debt management policy which outlines the purposes for which debt may be
issued, methods of financing, and the acceptable structure and term of debt obligations.

AB. Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) Management Policy

A policy was adopted to address the management of the ongoing UAL associated with the District. The
policy includes target funding objectives, strategies for minimizing the liability, and consideration of
Additional Discretionary Payments during the budgeting process.

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Cash and investments $ 20,973,101
Restricted cash and investments 27,219,448
Current investments 20,077,916

Total cash and investments $ 68,270,465

The bank balance and carrying value of the District's cash and investments, including restricted
and designated balances, at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Undesignated
; Restricted Designated Unrestricted Total

Petty Cash $ - 8§ - 8§ 200 $ 200
Union Bank of California - - 118,589 118,589
Heritage Bank of Commerce - - 2,092,120 2,092,120
Local Agency Investment Fund 2,026,124 15,032,066 3,730,126 20,788,316
UBC 23,742,680 - 20,077,916 43,820,596
Santa Clara Valley Water District

(San Felipe- Reach 1 Reserve) 563,284 - - 563,284
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 887,360 - - 887,360
Total $ 27219448  § 15,032,066 § 26,018,951  $ 68,270,465

Deposits - Cash balances held in banks are qualified as "public funds"; these funds must be FDIC
insured or collateralized by the Depository at a rate of 110% and comply in all aspects with the
provisions of Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 (commencing with Section 53630)
of the Government Code.

The book balance for Union Bank of California at June 30, 2022 was $118,589. The book
balance and bank balance of the Union Bank of California differ by $1,639,224 due to deposits
in transit and outstanding checks. The book and bank balance for Heritage Bank of Commerce
on June 30, 2022 was $2,092,120. At June 30, 2022, the bank balances in financial institutions
totaled $3,854,898. All bank balances are insured or collateralized.

29



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

As of June 30, 2022, the District had the following cash and investment maturities:

Value Cost 0-3 Months  4-12 Months 13-36 Months

Petty cash $ 200 $ 200 § 200 § -8

Union Bank of California 118,589 118,589 118,589 -

Local Agency Investment Fund 20,788,316 20,788,316 20,788,316 -

Heritage Bank of Commerce 2,092,120 2,092,120 2,092,120 -

Santa Clara Valley Water District 563,284 563,284 563,284

Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 887,360 538,223 887,360 -

UBC Investments 43,820,596 43,890,170 43,890,170 -

Total $ 68,270,465 § 67,990,902 $ 68,340,039 § - $

Investments

The District has an investment policy that is overseen by the Investment Committee of the Board
of Directors. The investment policy conforms to state law and guidelines and is based on prudent
money management principles and practices.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest Risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting exposure to fair value
losses arising from rising interest rates, the District's investment policy limits the maturity of
investments not to exceed 5 years without authorization by the Board of Directors at least 3
months prior to the investment.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest
rate fluctuations is provided by the preceding table that shows the distribution of the District’s
investment by maturity.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. Investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities,
mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total District
investments represent a concentration. At fiscal year end, the District had no concentration of
credit risk investments.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the District
and that the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities. Credit risk is mitigated by investing only in U.S. Treasury Obligations, Federal
Agency securities and in other high-quality investments, and by diversifying the portfolio so that
the failure of any issuer would not unduly harm the District’s cash flow. The District diversifies
its investments by security type and institution. The District only invests in those instruments

that are considered very safe.
As of June 30, 2022, the District’s investments with the Local Agency Investment Fund were not

categorized as to custodial credit risk. The restricted cash for San Felipe Reach 1 Reserve of
$563,284 is held by Santa Clara Valley Water District within its General Fund.

30



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Summarized below are the ratings of the District’s cash and investments:

Veribanc, % of

Issuers Value S&P Moodys Inc. Total

Local Agency Investment Fund $ 20,788,316 NR NR NR 30.5%
Union Bank 118,589 A+/ST-2 Baa2  Green/*** 0.2%
Heritage Bank 2,092,120 NR NR  Green/*** 3.1%
Santa Clara Valley Water District 563,284 NR NR NR 0.8%
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 887,360 N/A N/A N/A  1.3%
UBC Investments 43,820,596  A+/ST-2 Baa2 Green/*** 64.2%
Total $ 68,270,265 100.0%

*NR - denotes Not Rated

Green — denotes the institution's equity exceeds five percent of its assets and it was profitable during
the most recent reporting quarter. Of the three color categories, this is the highest based on the
criteria described.

**% _ denotes institutions that have a Three Star rating.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the District will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are not in the possession of an outside party.

Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on specific types of eligible
securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its Agent having a fair
market value of 105% of the District’s cash on deposit. All of the District’s deposits are either
insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized with pledged
securities held in the trust department of the financial institution in the District’s name in
accordance with the California Government Code.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District participates in the LAIF, an investment pool managed by the State of California.
The LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments
may pool investments. At June 30, 2022, the total fair value amount invested by all public
agencies in LAIF is $234.5 billion and managed by the State Treasurer. No amounts were
invested in derivative financial products. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has
oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State
Statute. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided
by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which
~ are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Disclosures Related to Fair Value Measurement
The District measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines

established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-
tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

31



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly or indirectly and fair value is determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies including:

» Quoted price for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

» Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive.
> Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
>

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. Theses unobservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions about
the inputs market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including
assumptions about risk). The unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances and may include the District’s own data.

At June 30, 2022, the District had no leveled investments. Deposits and withdrawals in
governmental investment pools, such as LAIF, are made on the basis of $1 and not fair value.
Accordingly, the District’s measured fair value of its proportionate share in these types of
investments is based on uncategorized inputs not defined as a Level 1, Level 2, or Level 3 inputs.

3. RECEIVABLES, NET
Receivables at June 30, 2022 consisted of the following:

Water utility customer receivables, net of allowance § 247,104
Other operating receivables ‘ 15,544
Interest receivable 92,596
Property tax and assessment receivables 365,941
Grant receivables, net of retention 800,413
Agency receivables 1,643,699
Total receivables, net $ 3,165,297

The Water Utility Customer receivables above reflect an allowance for doubtful accounts in the
amount of $51,787.

Grant receivables are recorded net of retention. The District has one grant at June 30, 2022 that is
expected to be complete in the next fiscal year.

Agency receivables are reimbursements due from other agencies for shared expenses per
cooperative memorandum of understandings related to projects. These receivables represent the
expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and are expected to be reimbursed in the next
fiscal year.

4. CONTRACT RECEIVABLE

In August 2013, the District, Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD) and City of Hollister
(COR) each approved the Hollister Urban Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA).
The agreement defined the roles and terms of financing for the project which included the
upgrade of Lessalt Water Treatment Plant, the design and construction of the West Hills Water
Treatment Plant and associated pipelines. The District was to finance, build, own and operate the
upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and the new West Hills Water Treatment Plant.

32



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The District financed $30 million of the project costs. The District contributed $10 million in
non-reimbursable funds, of which $4 million was made available for the first tranche of
financing and $6 million was made available for the second tranche of financing. COH opted to
use their share of the non-reimbursable funds to buy down the capital component. SSCWD used
their share as rate stabilization which was applied to the finished water payments during the first
years of operation. The District funded the first tranche of $13 million on the effective date of the
agreement. The second tranche of $17 million was made available on May 1, 2015, to support
the execution of a contract for construction of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. In January
2016, the third tranche of financing for $4 million was funded through a loan agreement with
City National Bank.

The agreement calls for the District to recover this investment in the capital projects from the
COH and SSCWD over a 15-30 year period through a capital component, including interest, in
the finished water rate. At June 30, 2022, the tranches combined capital component is
$21,801,047. The current portion of the contract is $1,145,671 and is reflected in current assets.
The noncurrent portion of $20,655,376 is reflected in noncurrent assets. The current unearned
portion of the contract of $1,145,671 is included as unearned contract revenue.

5. DEFERRED CHARGES

The District’s work in progress is the accumulated costs associated with the preliminary survey
and investigation, construction in progress and other works in progress, including the District’s
portion of multi-agency projects. The District actively pursues grant funding for major projects.
If applicable, grant proceeds associated with the following projects are reflected in non-operating
revenue in the year in which the associated expense occurred. The work in progress at June 30,
2022 consisted of the following:

Preliminary survey and investigations:

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion $ 1,325,954
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act - SGMA 1,982,953
Future Water Supply Alternatives 315,744
Water Supply Evaluation 451,486
Pajaro Watershed Integrated Regional Water Management Plan 149,779
Zebra Mussel Control Study related to the Hollister Conduit 138,005
Other projects 177,132
Total deferred charges $ 4,541,053

33



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSETS
The changes in capital assets of the District for the year ended June 30, 2022 are summarized as

follows:

Balance as of Current Year Activity Balance as of
June 30, 2021 Additions  Dispositions June 30, 2022
Water rights
Semitropic Water Storage $ 696,716  $ - 95 - 5 696,716
Central Valley Project 15,480,102 1,747,033 - 17,227,135
San Justo Reservoir 246,462 - - 246,462
Wright Rd Pipeline 830,850 - - 830,850
Reach 1 capital improvement 9,498,192 244,436 - 9,742,628
Recycled Water Storage Pond 1,493,048 16,265 - 1,509,313
USBR In-basin capital repayment 2,838,779 - - 2,838,779
Depreciable capital assets
Source of supply plant 2,982,546 - - 2,982,546
Transmission and distribution plant 20,861,464 120,797 - 20,982,261
Pumping plant 10,229,446 14,386 - 10,243,832
General plant 1,843,766 190,891 - 2,034,657
Treatment plant 44,332,501 9,097 - 44,341,598
Non-depreciable capital assets
Land and land rights 876,385 - - 876,385
Total capital assets 112,210,257 2,342,905 - 114,553,162
(Accumulated amortization) (6,964,641)  (1,501,276) - (8,465,917)
(Accumulated depreciation) (27,024,967)  (1,948,668) - (28,973,635)

Net capital assets

$ 78,220,649 §$ (1,107,039) $

$ 77,113,610

34



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Amortization and depreciation expense was charged to projects for the year ended June 30, 2022
as follows:

Balance as of Current Year Activity Balance as of
June 30, 2021 Increase Decrease  June 30, 2022
Amortization
Water Rights
Central Valley Project $ (3,504,645) $ (748422) $ - § (4,253,067)
San Justo Reservoir (121,795) (24,657) - (146,452)
Wright Rd Pipeline (69,238) (13,848) - (83,086)
Reach 1 capital improvement (3,098,778) (463,860) - (3,562,638)
Recycled water-storage pond (170,185) (61,238) - (231,423)
USBR In-basin capital repayment - (189,251) - (189,251)
Total amortization (6,964,641)  (1,501,276) - (8,465,917)
Depreciation
Source of supply plant (1,810,561) (47,961) - (1,858,522)
Transmission and distribution plant (10,667,321) (246,495) - (10913,816)
Pumping plant (8,125,033) (354,156) - (8,479,189)
General plant (1,197,799) (87,552) - (1,285,351)
Treatment plant (5,224253)  (1,212,504) - (6,436,757)
Total depreciation (27,024.967) (1,948,668) - (28,973,635)
Amortization and depreciation $ (33,989,608) §(3,449944) $ - § (37,439,552)

6. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

The District participates in two joint ventures under Joint Powers Agreements (JPA) with the
Association of California Water Agencies and the San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority. The
relationship between the District and the JPA's is such that the JPA's are not component units of
the District for financial reporting purposes.

Association of California Water Agencies-Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA-
JPIA)

The ACWA-JPIA arranges for and provides property and liability insurance for its nearly 394
members. ACWA-JPIA is governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member
district. The board controls the operations of ACWA-JPIA, including selection of management
and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts beyond
their representation on the board.

Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and
shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in ACWA-JPIA. Separate
financial statements of ACWA-JPIA can be obtained by request to Finance Department, 2100
Professional Drive, Roseville, CA 95661.

San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA)

The SLDMWA operates and maintains a portion of the Central Valley Project (CVP) for its 27
members. SLDMWA is governed by a board consisting of representatives from each member
district. The board controls the operations of the SLDMWA, including selection of executive
management and approval of operation and maintenance budgets, independent of any influence
by the member district beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays
membership dues proportionate to their United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) water

35



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

contract entitlement and operation and maintenance costs based on conveyance rates established
by the SLDMWA. Separate financial statements of SLDMWA can be obtained at P.O. Box
2157, Los Banos, CA 93635.

Condensed financial information of ACWA-JPIA and SLDMWA is as follows:

September 30,
2021 February 28, 2021

ACWA-JPIA SLDMWA
Total assets $ 271,770,359 $ 112,269,461
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,189,142 197,108
Total liabilities (123,558,690) (100,607,367)
Deferred Inflows of Resources 409,721 -
Net Position $ 149,810,532 $ 11,859,202
Total revenues $ 200,883,781 $ 130,515,458
Total expenditures (174,760,456) (127,880,677)
Net increase $ 26,123,325 $ 2,634,781

7. LONG TERM LIABILITIES
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022:

June 30, June 30, Due Within
2021 Increases Decreases 2022 One Year

Direct Borrowing and
Placement
City National bank loan
payable $ 3,780,858
2021 Water Revenue
Refunding Obligation Bonds
(WIIN Act Project) 2,905,000
2021 Taxable Revenue
Obligation Bonds (CalPERS UAL) 3,016,000
Total Direct Borrowing
and Placement $9,701,858 $

o
'

$ 346,258 §3,434,600 § 357471

171,000 2,734,000 171,000

222,000 2,794,000 164,000

$ 739258 $8962,600 § 692471

36



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

City National Bank Loan

In December 2015, the District entered into a loan agreement with Municipal Finance
Corporation for the amount of $5,500,000. This loan was immediately transferred to City
National Bank. The loan is payable in quarterly installments for a term of 15 years beginning
April 2016. The annual interest rate is 3.2% and is reflected as non-operating interest expense.

This financing is in support of capital projects related to the HUWSTA and Recycled Water.
Repayment of the loan is from pledged future revenues. The outstanding principal balance at
June 30, 2022 was $3,434,600.

The District has no unused lines of credit with City National Bank or any other entity. The net
revenues have been pledged as collateral for the City National Bank debt. The District must
maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.15:1. Events of default include failure to make timely
payments, violation of debt service covenant and bankruptcy. City National has the option to
accelerate principal and interest payments as a remedy of default.

The following is a summary of principal maturities of City National Bank loan debt as of June
30, 2022:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 § 357,471 $ 105,646 $ 463,117
2024 369,048 94,069 463,117
2025 381,000 82,117 463,117
2026 393,339 69,778 463,117
2027 406,078 57,039 463,117
2028-2031 1,527,664 93,242 1,620,906
Total $ 3,434,600 $ 501,891 $ 3,936,491

2021 Water Revenue Refunding Obligation Bonds (WIIN Act Project)

On February 8, 2021, the Board authorized the issuance of Series 2021 Water Revenue
Refunding Obligations in the amount of $2,905,000. The closing was undertaken and
consummated on February 24, 2021 with Zions Bancorporation, N.A. This financing funded the
repayment of San Benito County’s “in-basin” portion of the CVP capital costs pursuant to the
Water Infrastructure Improvement of the Nations Act in the amount of $2,838,779 and the
issuance cost of $66,221. The Bank purchased the obligations and had no present intent of
reoffering the Obligations to the general public and intend to hold the Obligations as a portfolio
investment. The loan is payable with annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at the
rate of 2.02% for 15 years. Payments will begin in August 2021 and end February 2036. The

outstanding principal balance as of June 30, 2022 was $2,734,000.

37



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Debt service requirements to maturity for 2021 Water Revenue Refunding Obligation Bonds
(WIIN Act Project) are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 § 171,000 5 55,226 $ 226,226
2024 174,000 51,772 225,772
2025 178,000 48,257 226,257
2026 181,000 44,662 225,662
2027 185,000 41,006 226,006
2028-2036 1,845,000 191,193 2,036,193
Total $ 2,734,000 $ 432,116 $ 3,166,116

2021 Taxable Revenue Obligations (CalPERS UAL)

The District is obligated to California State Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
under a certain contract, by and between the District and CalPERS, as amended from time to
time (the “CalPERS Contract”), to make contributions to CalPERS in exchange for CalPERS
providing retirement benefits for its retirees. CalPERS determines, based on actuarial methods, a
percentage rate of regular salary required to fund earned pension benefits. If the total amount of
accumulated contributions is less than the total forecasted cost of earned pension benefits, the
difference represents an Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL). On April 14, 2021 the Board
authorized the issuance of Series 2021 Taxable Revenue Obligations in the amount of
$3,016,000 with Resolution No. 2021-05 to fund the CalPERS UAL Prepayment project. The
Obligation was financed with Sterling National Bank on April 29, 2021 in the amount of
$3,016,000 comprised of the CalPERS UAL payoff of $2,945,976 and $70,024 of issuance costs.
The loan is payable with annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at the rate of 2.92%
for 15 years beginning August 1, 2021. This funding reduced interest costs associated to the
UAL. The outstanding principal balance as of June 30, 2022 is $2,794,000.

Debt service requirements to maturity for 2021 Taxable Revenue Obligations (CalPERS UAL)
are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 § 164,000 $ 79,190 § 243,190
2024 169,000 74,328 243,328
2025 174,000 69,320 243,320
2026 179,000 64,167 243,167
2027 184,000 58,867 242,867
2028-2036 1,924,000 263,705 2,187,705
Total $ 2,794,000 $ 609,577 $ 3,403,577

38



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

8. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Designations of unrestricted
net position represent the District Board of Director’s intention for the use of resources. The net

position amounts at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Net investment in capital assets 73,679,010
Restricted:
District Revolving Fund Reserve 75,000
Operation and Maintenance Reserves
San Felipe-Hollister Conduit Reserve 250,000
San Felipe-Reach 1 Reserve 563,284
Reach 1 Major Repair - Replacement Reserve 3,331,253
USBR Contract Repayment - Rate Management Reserve 18,271,576
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust Reserve 887,360
Hollister Urban Area Project Water Treatment Facilities -
Replacement Reserve 3,834,975
Total restricted 27,219,448
Unrestricted:
Designated
Reserved for Operations 3,363,591
Reserved for Capital Asset Replacement 4,336,492
Reserved for Capital Improvements 5,221,444
Reserved for Self-Insurance 100,000
Reserved for Water Supply 787,328
Reserved for Pacheco Reservoir 1,223,211
15,032,066
Undesignated 28,004,634
Total unrestricted 43,036,700
Total net position $ 143,935,158

Restricted Net Position

Net position is restricted when constraints placed on their use are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. They are also
restricted if their use is constrained by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. There are no net positions restricted by enabling legislation.

39



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Restricted Net Position Source of Restriction
San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control
District Act (Section 70-7).

USBR Contract Central Valley Project-Contract Between the
United States and San Benito County Water Conservation and
Flood Control District for Water Service and for Operation
and maintenance of Certain Works of the San Felipe Division
(Contract # 8-07-20-W0130).

USBR San Felipe Division-Contract for the Transfer of the
San Felipe Reach 1 Operation and Maintenance of Certain San Felipe Division
Facilities (Contract # 6-07-20-X0290): United States, Santa
Clara Valley Water District, and San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control District.

District Revolving Fund
Reserve

San Felipe-Hollister
Conduit Reserve

Reserve

USBR Contract Repayment | Agreement Between Santa Clara Valley Water District and
Rate Management Reserve |San Benito County Water District for Repayment and
Management of San Felipe Division Facilities.

Agreement Between Santa Clara Valley Water District and
San Benito County Water District for Repayment and
Management of San Felipe Division Facilities.

Reach 1 Major Repair and
Replacement Reserve

Hollister Urban Area Hollister Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment Agreement
Project Water Treatment between the San Benito County Water District, City of
Facilities-Replacement Hollister, and Sunnyslope County Water District.

Reserve

Other Post Employment Agreement Between San Benito County Water District and
Benefit Trust (OPEB) California Employee Retirement Benefit Trust.

Reserve

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the San Benito County
Water District’s (the District) Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees
Retirement System (CalPERS). The District selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit
menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local ordinance. CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time
employment.

40



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The District’s Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as
follows:

Miscellaneous
Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or after
January 1, 2013 January 1,2013

Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Retirement age 55 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.5% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 8.000% 6.750%
Required employer contribution rates 11.590% 7.590%

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect.
In addition to creating new retirement formulas for newly hired members, PEPRA also
effectively closed all existing active risk pools to new employees.

Contribution Description - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement
Law (PERL) requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined
on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a
change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS annual
actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

The District’s contributions were as follows:

Fiscal Year Paid
2021/22 2020/21
Misc Classic $ 162,430 $ 356,826
Misc PEPRA 39,813 31,210
Additional UAL - 2,945,976

$ 202,243 $ 3,334,012

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2022, the District reported net pension liabilities (assets) for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
District's Miscellaneous Plan $ (1,849,819) $ 2,924,121
Total Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (1,849,819) $ 2,924,121

41



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The District’s net pension liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability is measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2020 rolled forward to June 30, 2021 using standard update procedures. The District’s proportion
of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions for all participating
employers, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 were
as follows:

Percentage Share of Plan Change:
6/30/2022 6/30/2021 Increase/(Decrease)
Measurement date 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 '
Percentage of Plan (PERF C) NPL -0.03420% 0.02688% -0.06108%

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension credit of $2,958,827. At June
30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

‘ Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience  $ - 5 207,438
Changes of Assumptions - -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 1,614,795 -
Change in employer proportion 49,884 1,699,521
Difference between the employer's contribution and

the employer's proportionate share of contributions 2,041,242 18,865
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 202,243 -

Total $ 3,908,164 § 1,925,824

The deferred outflows of resources to contributions of $202,243 were subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Period Outflows (Inflows)
Ended June 30, of Resources
2023 $ 437,240
2024 451,482
2025 445,130
2026 446,245
Total $ 1,780,097

42



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions used to determine Total Pension Liability - For the
measurement period ended June 30, 2021 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2020 total pension liability determined in the June 30,
2020 actuarial accounting valuation. The June 30, 2020 total pension liability were based on the
following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the requirements of
GASB Statement No. 68
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.50%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality Rate Table* Derived using CalPERS's Membership Data for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefits Increase Contract COLA upto 2.50% until Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

*Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The morality rate includes 15 years
of projected on-going mortality improvements using 90% of Scale MP 2016 published by the
Society of Actuaries.

Change of Assumption — There were no changes in the discount rate for the PERF C, which
remained at 7.15%.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was
7.15 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set to equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

43



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The expected real rates of return by asset class per the CalPERS’ Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 as followed:

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class* Allocation Years 1-10%* Years 1-10%**
Global equity 50.00% - 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.00 1.00 2.62
Inflation assets - 0.77 1.81
Private equity 8.00 6.30 7.23
Real assets 13.00 3.75 4.93
Liquidity 1.00 - (0.92)

*In the System’s ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-term
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt Securities

**An expected inflation 0f 2.00% used for this period

***An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources — Net Difference
Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments is amortized over a five-
year period on a straight-line basis. One-fifth is recognized in pension expense during the
measurement period, and the remaining Net Difference Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earning on Pension Plan Investments is amortized over the remaining amortization
periods. Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earning on Pension Plan
Investments in the Schedule of Collective Pension Amounts represents the unamortized balance
relating to the current measurement period and the prior measurement periods on a net basis.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources relating to Differences
Between Expected and Actual Experience and Changes of Assumptions are amortized over the
Expected Average Remaining Service Lifetime (EARSL) of members provided with pensions
through the Plan determined as of the beginning of the related measurement period. The EARSL
for PERF C for the June 30, 2021 measurement date is 3.7 years, which was obtained by dividing
the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of all active
employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired) in PERF
C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Total future
service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than
receiving a cash refund.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the
Discount Rate — The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
of the District’s Plan as of the Measurement Date June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount
rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher
(8.15) than the current rate:

Discount Rate

6.15% 7.15% 8.15%
(1% Decrease) (Current Rate) (1% Increase)
Measurement date June 30, 2021
Fiscal Year End June 30, 2022
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ (292,241) $ (1,849,819) $ (3,137,449)

44



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Positions — Detailed information about each plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Subsequent Events — There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results
presented in this disclosure.

10. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Employees of the District are eligible to participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted
under the provisions of Internal Revenue Code 457(b). Under the plan, employees may elect to
defer a portion of their salaries before taxes.

The deferred compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until
termination of employment, death, disability, or financial hardship. Participants can elect to
contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, not to exceed limits established by the
Internal Revenue Code.

The District has three deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. The Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 requires the establishment of
a trust or similar vehicle to ensure that the assets of the Deferred Compensation Plans under the
Internal Revenue Code 457 are protected and used exclusively for the benefit of Plan participants
and/or their beneficiaries.

The 457 Plan assets totaling $1,972,661 at June 30, 2022, consists of investments in mutual
funds.

Financial institutions that administer the District’s 457 Plans are as follows:

Valic $ 117,708
Mass Mutual 946,312
CalPERS 908,641
Total $ 1,972,661

11. OTHER POST—EMP_I_JOYME;NT BENEFITS
A. General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description: The District joined the Public Employees' Medical & Hospital Care Act
(PEMHCA) in the year 2000 for its employees, offered through the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). It is an agent multiple employer plan administered
by CalPERS. The healthcare plan which provides medical insurance benefits to active and
eligible retirees and their families accordance with memoranda of understanding with employee
groups and adoption by the Board of Directors.

The plan information is as follows:

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2022
Plan type Agent Multiple Employer
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust Yes
Special funding situations No
Nonemployer contributing entities No

45



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Benefits and Eligibility: The District provides PEMHCA post-retirement healthcare benefits to
all full-time employees who retire directly from the District after the age of 55 years and with 5
years of CalPERS service. The Minimum Employer Contribution amount is prescribed by
Government Code Section 22892 of the PEMHCA. It was originally established as a specific
dollar value with specified increases from calendar years 2004 through 2008. Starting in calendar
year 2009, the calculated adjustments were based upon the medical care component of the
Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) which is consistent with CalPERS. At that time, the
District opted for the unequal method of distribution. Beginning in 2020, the District was
required to pay 100% of the minimum required contribution which is $139.

In addition, the District provides supplemental contributions to all employees who retire directly
from the District combined with a regular service retirement through CalPERS. Employees must
be at least 55 years of age and have a minimum 10 years of District service at retirement.

The District’s monthly supplemental contributions are as follows:

Number of District Age at Retirement
Service Years 55 60 65
10-14 5100 $130 $195
15-19 $135 $180 $270
20+ $175 $232 $348

All eligible retirees will receive the supplemental contribution regardless of PEMHCA
enrollment.

In lieu of the above, the District Manager is eligible for a $500 monthly supplemental
contribution.

Employees Covered: As of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation, the following current and
former employees were covered by the benefit terms:

June 30, 2022 Fiscal Year End Covered
June 30, 2021 Measurement Date Employees
Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments 7
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 6
Active employees 20
Total employees 33

Contributions: The District pay’s benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022, the District’s cash benefit payments were $22,453, administrative costs of $42, a
trust contribution of $461,334 and implied subsidy payments of $9,944, resulting in total
payments of $493,773.

46



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

B. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB

OPEB Liability: As of the June 30, 2021 measurement date, the District’s total OPEB liability
were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended 6/30/2022 6/30/2021

Measurement Date 6/30/2021 6/30/2020
Total OPEB liability (TOL) $ 838,035 $ 866,970
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) 570,660 -
Net OPEB Liability (NOL) $ 267,375 $ 866,970
Funded Status (FNP/TOL) 68.1% 0.00%

Changes in the OPEB Liability: The changes in the total OPEB liability for the District Plan are
as follows:

Total OPEB

Changes in Total OPEB Liability Liability
Balance at June 30, 2021

(Measurement Date June 30, 2020) ~ $ 866,970
Service cost 35,860
Interest 60,015
Benefits -
Actual vs. expected experience (123,455)
Changes of assumptions 26,083
Employer contributions* | -
Employee contributions -
Benefit payments** (27,438)
Administrative expenses -
Net changes (28,935)
Balance at June 30, 2022

(Measure Date June 30, 2021) $ 838,035

* As of measurement date a trust has been established but no contributions have been made and no funding
policy established for future contributions.
** Included $22,528 cash benefit payments and $4,910 subsidy benefits payments by the District,

47



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB: For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized OPEB credit of $20,836 as well as a
contribution reduction the Net OPEB Liability in the amount of $471,278. As of fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from

the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and actual earnings $ - 3 113,132
Differences between expected and actual experience 51,449 340,005
Changes of assumptions - 16,986
Employer contributions made after measurement date* 493,774 -
Total $ 545223  § 470,123

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $493,774 related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Deferred (Inflows)
June 30, of Resources

2023 $ (82,673)

2024 (82,673)

2025 (76,326)

2026 (78,060)

2027 (77,478)

Thereafter (21,464)

Total $ (418,674)

Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources: To smooth market
volatility, gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position
are recognized over five years. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year the
gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense.

48



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine the OPEB Liability: The District’s net
OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the
net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2021 to determine
the June 30, 2022 total OPEB liability, based on the following actuarial methods and

assumptions:

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Methods used for Total OPEB Liability:

Fiscal Year End
Measurement Date
Valuation Date

June 30, 2022
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2020

Contribution policy

Discount rate and long-term
expected rate of return on
assets

General Inflation

Mortality

Retirement

Disability

Termination

Mortality Improvement Scale

Salary increases

Medical trend

PEMHCA minimum increase

Healthcare participation

Change of assumptions

Changes of benefit terms

Events subsequent to June
30, 2021 measurement date
and before June 30, 2022.

No pre-funding or funding policy established yet

6.25% at June 30, 2021 (Bond Buyer 20-bond Index)
6.75% at June 30, 2020 (Bond Buyer 20-bond Index)
Expected District contributions projected to keep
sufficient plan assets to pay all benefits from trust

2.50% per annum

CalPERS 2000-2019 experience study

CalPERS 2000-2019 experience study

CalPERS 2000-2019 experience study

CalPERS 2000-2019 experience study

Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021
Aggregate -2.75% per annum

Merit - tables from CalPERS 2000-2019 experience study

Non-Medicare - 6.50% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 3.75% in 2076

Medicare - 5.65% for 2023, decreasing to an ultimate rate

0£3.75% in 2076

4.00% per annum

Actives: 100% for supplemental contribution

Actives: 40%-90% for PEMHCA contribution based on
age & service at retirement

Retirees: 100% if currently covered

Discount rate was updated based on results of the
Crossover test and commencement of prefunding

Newer CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study was used
for demographic assumptions

Decreased medical trend rate for Kaiser Senior Advantage
Decreased inflation, medical trend, PEMHCA trend, and
salary increases

Mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale MP-
2021

None

CalPERS approved new CERBT asset allocations in
March 2022. This is not expected to impact the expected
long-term rate of return assumption of CERBT Strategy 1.

49



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions
will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all
prior periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis: The following schedule shows the impact of the Total OPEB
Liability if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate that
was used (6.75%) in measuring the Total OPEB Liability.

Discount Rate
5.75% 6.75% 7.75%
(1% Decrease) (Current Rate) (1% Increase)
Measurement date June 30, 2021
Fiscal Year End June 30,2022
Total OPEB liability $ 374,043 $ 267,375 § 177,815

Medical Trend Sensitivity Analysis: The following presents the total OPEB liability of the
District if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower
or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended June 30,

2021:

Medical Trend
(1% Decrease) (Current Trend) (1% Increase)
Measurement date June 30,2021
Fiscal Year End June 30, 2022
Total OPEB liability $ 205,738 $ 267,375 $ 344,350

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural disasters. In an effort to manage
its risk exposure, the District is a member of Association of California Water Agencies Joint
Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA).

The ACWA/JPIA is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of
California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. As part of this service, risk management
guidelines are established and regularly reviewed by ACWA/JPIA. The District performance has

been reviewed as satisfactory.

The District has a program of self-insurance for comprehensive and collision on the vehicles
owned by the District. At June 30, 2022, self-insurance reserves were $100,000.

50



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2022

The District has the following insurance policies:

Coverage Deductible Coverage Limit (in thousands)
General liability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $55,000
Cyber Liability N/A Ranging from $3,000 to $5,000
Auto liability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $20,000
Public officials lLiability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $20,000
Property
Buildings, personal property,
and fixed equipment $2,500 $100/$150,000
Mobile equipment $2,500 $100/$150,000
Fidelity $1,000 $100/$150,000
Boiler and machinery $25,000/$50,000 $100/$150,000
Crime $1 Ranging from $1 to $100
Workers' Compensation N/A Ranging from $0 to $2,000

There have been no significant reductions in any insurance coverage, nor have there been any
insurance related settlements that exceeded insurance coverage during the past three fiscal years.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

United States Bureau of Reclamation Watet Supply Contract

On April 10, 1978, the District entered into a contract with the United States Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) for water service from the San Felipe Division of the Federal Central
Valley Project (CVP). The CVP water service contract provides for both agricultural and
municipal and industrial (M&I) water deliveries to the District up to a total maximum annual
entitlement of 43,800 acre-feet per year.

Second Amendment to the Contract with USBR for Water Service

The District in partnership with the Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) negotiated a
USBR Water Supply Contract Renewal in accordance with the USBR implementation of the
Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) and the 1997 Binding Agreement to Negotiate
between the USBR and the District. The District also negotiated an amendment to its 1978
contract meeting the minimum requirements of the CVPIA to assure a continuing water supply in
the event the renewal contract could not be signed, was delayed, or invalidated by legal action.

On March 28, 2007, the District signed the second amendment to USBR contract. This amended
contract provided for a fixed repayment obligation and repayment schedule for the specific San
Felipe facilities that serve the District.

51



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

The agreement calls for fixed semi-annual payments to the USBR due on January 1 and July 1
each year as illustrated below:

Semi- Annual
Fiscal Year(s) Annual Payment Obligation
2007-2016 $ 696,076 $1,392,152
2017-2026 971,076 1,942,152
2027-2036 3,492,303 6,984,606

The total commitment, including capital and interest components, of the repayment contract is
$98.9 million. The remaining estimated capital commitment as of June 30, 2021 is $68.9 million.
This allocation is based on the USBR plant-in-service costs for San Felipe Division facilities that
are specifically for service to the District (Hollister Conduit including the San Juan Lateral, San
Justo Reservoir) and the District share of San Felipe Reach 1 facilities. The SCVWD and the
District partnership basis of negotiation with the USBR, including negotiation of the capital cost
allocation and repayment schedule, required a subsequent agreement between SCVWD and the
District. That agreement, referred to as Agreement for Repayment and Management of San
Felipe Division Facilities, was negotiated and adopted by the District's Board of Directors on
January 3, 2007. As part of that agreement, SCVWD and the District agreed to share the use of
the existing uncommitted capacity of the San Felipe Reach 1 facilities. The capital costs for the
uncommitted capacity are included in SCVWD’s repayment schedule to the USBR until 2036.
The District has an option to exercise its right to retain its proportionate share of the use of the
Reach 1 uncommitted capacity if it reimburses SCYWD $4,130,709 by September 30, 2036.
Interest will accrue at the 5-year Treasury note rate beginning November 2026.

Amended and Restated Contract Between the United States and San Benito County Water
District (WIIN ACT Contract)

On December 16, 2016, the 114th Congress of the United States of America enacted the Water
Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Pub. L. 114-322, 130 Stat. 1628) (WIIN Act).
Section 4011(a)(1)(A) of the WIIN Act provides that, upon request of the contractor, the
Secretary of the Interior shall convert any water service contract entered into under section (e)
of the Reclamation Project Act of 1939 (53 Stat. 1195) to a repayment contract under
section 9(d) of that Act (53 Stat. 1195). A repayment contract has the advantages that it is
permanent and, once the remaining capital obligation, including San Felipe Division Facilities, is
fully satisfied, lands within the contractor’s service area are no longer subject to acreage
limitation and full cost pricing of water. The contract will continue as long as the contractor
continues to pay the applicable contractual charges. Additionally, the WIIN Act earmarks the
accelerated payment of outstanding CVP capital costs from converted repayment contacts to an
account that will be used by Reclamation to partially fund development of additional water
storage projects, some of which may benefit the District.

Notwithstanding the conversion of a water service contract to a repayment contract under the
WIIN Act, the conversion does not increase entitlement to CVP water deliveries. Instead, the
repayment contracts are still subject to the same water entitlements, and the same CVP contract
shortage provisions and policies that exist today. Reclamation will adhere to its existing process
for determining water allocations based upon annual hydrological conditions and requirements to
support environmental and water quality protections to the Delta and its tributaries. The
repayment contract will also not change the facilities used or the manner in which water is
distributed to the contractor.

52



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

On October 28, 2020 the Board of Directors: (1) adopted Resolution No. 2020-17, A Resolution
of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Authorizing the Filing of a
Notice of Exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act for Approval of and
Authorization to Execute the Amended and Restated Contract Between the United States and
San Benito County Water District for Water Service, Facilities Repayment, and for Operation
and Maintenance of Certain Works of the San Felipe Division; and (2) authorize District Counsel
to file a validation action for the Repayment Contract which was filed November 9, 2020 and the
validation judgement was granted by the Superior Court of San Benito County on February 16,
2021.

The Amended and Restated Contract between the United States and San Benito County Water
District was entered into on January 22, 2021.

On February 8, 2021, the Board authorized the issuance of Series 2021 Obligations in the
amount of $2,905,000. The closing was undertaken and consummated on February 24, 2021.
This financing funded the repayment of San Benito County’s “in-basin” portion of the CVP
capital costs pursuant to the Water Infrastructure Improvement of the Nations Act. (Refer to
Note 8)

Future CVP Rates

Future CVP operations and maintenance rate increases are probable. Current USBR CVP rate
policies and practices provide for annual rate determinations and through the supporting
information provide the basis for determining those rates.

San Juan Water Supply Program

The District and City of San Juan Bautista (CSJB) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) on February 24, 2021 to undertake the development of a comprehensive Water Supply
Plan (WSP) for importing drinking water from the West Hills Treatment Plant. This WSP shall
identify alternatives to achieve the agreed upon objectives at the lowest practical lifecycle cost
and earliest practical time. The WSP will include a feasibility phase(s) and an implementation
plan phase(s). Additionally, the District and CSJB agreed that the District will front the cost of
the feasibility phase with an initial budget of $180,000. Should the CSJB decide to move forward
to implementation, the cost of the feasibility phase will be rolled into the final project cost.
Should the CSJB decide not to move forward to implementation, CSJB will reimburse the
District for all monies expended on the WSP within one hundred and eighty (180) days from
such decision, and all obligations of the District to provide a surface water solution to the CSJB
will have been satisfied.

Legal Challenges to Pumping Restriction in the Delta

Through its membership fees in the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, the District
participates in the cost of the ongoing legal challenges related to the biological opinions that
limit the pumping in the Delta.

Zebra Mussel Infestation in San Justo Reservoir

The San Justo Reservoir, owned by USBR, is operated by the District to provide agricultural and
municipal and industrial water to its customers in San Benito County. In February 2008, zebra
mussels were discovered in the reservoir. The presence of zebra mussels in the Hollister Conduit
and the San Felipe Distribution system has been confirmed since that time. Zebra mussels are an
invasive species which attach themselves to hard substrate, thus posing a significant threat to
both the ability of the District to effectively operate the reservoir as they can clog intake

53



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

structures and pipelines, as well as to the reservoir’s ecology. They could also spread to other
water bodies. In order to continue operating the reservoir for water supply purposes and to
prevent the further invasion of the water systems, the zebra mussels must be either eradicated or
significantly controlled.

To achieve any solution, significant coordination among many government agencies is required
to identify and implement the optimum eradication strategy. The eradication strategy must also
include measures to prevent future re-infestation. Zebra Mussels have never been eradicated
from a reservoir; therefore, the District’s financial obligation is not known at this time.

The USBR is developing an eradication plan for the reservoir, conduit, and distribution system in
cooperation with the California Department of Water Resource (DWR), the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the District. Final plans and specifications are
being developed by the USBR. As part of the plan, payment responsibilities will have to be
negotiated.

Hollister Urban Area Agreement for Operation and Maintenance Services

In August 2013, the District and SSCWD each approved the Hollister Urban Area Agreement for
Operation and Maintenance Services. This agreement establishes SSCWD as the contract
operator for the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. This
agreement was established for a term of 5 years with options to renew for subsequent terms of 5
years. The contract was renewed August 2018 for an additional 5-year term. Payments for the
operations for the treatment plants are reflected in Contract Services. The recovery of these costs
from the retailers (SSCWD and COH) are captured as a component of the finished water rates.

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Preject

The Pacheco Reservoir Expansion project includes construction of a new earthen dam a short
distance upstream from the existing dam and a pipeline to connect the dam to the existing
Pacheco Conduit, a federal Central Valley Project pipeline that delivers water into Santa Clara
and San Benito Counties from the San Luis Reservoir. The participating agencies are the District,
SCVWD and Pacheco Pass Water District. The project would expand the reservoir from 6,000 to
140,000 acre-feet and deliver water supply, water quality, and ecosystem benefits to the region.
In June 2018, the Board approved a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with SCVWD that
outlines the terms for moving forward with the project.

Originally the MOU included 2 major agreements that needed to be completed within 2 years of
the signing of the agreement, an allocation of benefits agreement and a provisional operating
agreement. In addition, the MOA called for the District within the 2 years to determine its
participation level ranging from 0% - 10%. It is now anticipated that the date for the allocation
of benefits and operating agreement will be delayed. More importantly, upon completion and
execution of a side letter to the MOU the District anticipates having until the start of construction
to determine the level of participation desired. The District will continue to review its level of
participation as the project moves forward.

In July 2018, the Department of Water Resources announced that the Pacheco Reservoir
Expansion project will receive the full funding request of $485 million through a Proposition 1
grant naming SCVWD as grantee. Additional federal and state funding will be pursued as the
project moves forward. The total project cost is currently estimated to be approximately $2.5
billon.

54



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Litigation

The District is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of
business. The District would pursue or defend cases vigorously through trial unless facts develop
which warrant an attempt to seek an out-of-court settlement. As of June 30, 2022, the District
had the following pending litigation:

United States Bureau of Reclamation (Defendant) v. Center for Biological Diversity

On May 21, 2021, San Benito County Water District, along with other CVP contractors
holding WIIN Act contracts (See Note 15) were named as additional defendants in a lawsuit
challenging that the United States erred in entering into converted contracts under the WIIN
Act without National Environment Policy Act (NEPA) and the Endangered Species Act (ESA)
compliance. The CVP contractors are working collectively in their response to this litigation.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events occurring after June 30, 2022 have been evaluated by Management for possible
recognition or disclosure to the financial statements as of February 22, 2023 which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Redistricting

On December 14, 2021, the County Board of Supervisors approved the required new map of the
County election divisions based on the latest census data. Because the District’s election
divisions are coterminous with the County Board of Supervisors, the District’s divisions have
changed consistent with the County.

Zone 6 Rate Study

On October 27, 2021, the District authorized a contract with Raftelis Financial Consultants for
the development of Zone 6 rates. The results of this study were implemented in Water Year
2022-2023.

55



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION



LS

"9JBp JUSLIBINSBAUI 3Y) U0 SuIpua Jeak ay) 1oy
umoys a1e s1eak Jysio Ajuo arojatay) ‘uonyeyusureduw jo Jeak IS ay Sem J(7 Jeak [Isiy

oo e oo oo o o O (1asse) Kupiqer) worsuad fejo) suerd ayy
%8 6L %0%'8L %90'%L %lEEL %9TSL %9C SL %W01ISL . %01°SL J0 93eyuoasad e se womsod jou Azeronpiy s uelg
%LTS8 %0T 611 %Ly b9l %9 %ISLYI %r09¥1 %I18S1 %LS 96" jppames

Pa10A00 Jo a3ejuadiad e se (Jasse) Aypiqer
uoisuad 19U 943 Jo a1eys sjeuonsodord s1omnsic]

LTSS POV IPPIS  916°TICTS 167°605°1$ 1860L9°T$  STOTHR'TS  SY6'SHR'TS  1LSSI6T § sl1014ed pararoo s

¢ 4 < 1 (1 3 < € 19 . 4 £, 1 13 (1 '] chmmﬁv >wa£ﬁ: GOMmﬂDQ
9¢G8I¢ TS SN BILTS  €L9SSTTS TI666YTS  6V6'vIv'TS  L66069°TS  1T1426TS  (618'6v8°1) $ Jou a1 J0 a1es syeuoriodoxd s LS

%61120°0 %£0S20°0 %S6¥T0°0 %ITST0°0 %85S70°0 %97970°0 %88970°0 %00TrE'0 Ayniqer] uotsuad jou oy jo uorodord soumsiy

y1/0£/90 S1/0¢€/90 91/0¢/90 L1/0£/90 81/0£/90 61/0£/90 07/0£/90 12/0£/90 3JB(] JUSWAINSBIW

S1/0¢/90 91/0£/90 LT/0€/90 81/0€/90 61/0€/90 02/0£/90 12/0£/90 TT/0¢/90

pus Iea X [eost]

VSIBSX O] 1887

TT0T “0€ dunf Jo sy
e[ UOISUAJ Jjausg paurya Sunreyg 150
97B(] JUSWIAINSEIJA JO Se SONEY pajejay pue

(1988Y) Ayifiqer] uoisua 1N 9y Jo areys ajeuoriiodos S 0LSI] 91 JO SNPAY0S

PLUSI 1ajepq K)Uno)) ojiuag ueg



8¢

UMOYS 218D 9y} U0 SuIpua Jeak (8081 Y 10

umoys are sxeak JyBio Ajuo atogaray ‘oryejuowojdun Jo 1eak 8] 9y} Sem 1 Jeak [eosid

%IT°S1 %ITS1 %89'%1 %90°ST %L091 %EL'81 %S0pLI %LT 01
POVIPPT S 916TIETS  I6v'60S'T$  IS6°0LO'TS  SIOTHSIS  SV6'SHE'IS  1LSSI6IS  LIL‘S96'I$
- $ - $ - § - § - $ - $ (L6'sv6'D § - $
0L8°L1Z L9661 899°17¢ 1€L°1ST 8€1°967 63L°SPE T10°Ee's €707
0L8LIT § 619661 $  899°IZC $  IELIST §  8EI967 §  68LSPE §  950'S8E  §  €HTT0T §
$107/0€/9 9102/0€/9

L102/0¢/9 8102/0€/9 6102/0¢/9 0202/0€/9 1202/0¢/9 Te0T/0L/9

VSIB3 X e0SL (] Is8]
TT0T “0¢ dunf papug 123X [eOSLy Ay 1o
SUOLINQLIUOY) Ue]J UOISUSJ §,}OLSI(T AU} JO J[NpaYdg
LIS 19jeA| AJuno)) ojiuag ueg

J101ked paiaa0d
Jo a3eyuoorad e se suoynqIuo))

«[1014ed Pa12A00 530181

(ss00x{]) AoURIOLAP UOHNQLIUOY)

UoHNQLIUOD PIUTULIS}EP
AJeLien}de a1y} 0} UOIL[OI Ul SUOLNQLIIUO))
UOHNQLIU0) PIUTULIAIAP AJ[eLEnioy

Papua Jea [easty 3y J0J SUOHNGHIU0))



San Benito County Water District
Schedule of Changes in the District's Net OPEB Liability
and Related Ratios as of Measurement Date

For The Year Ended June 30, 2022
Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End
06/30/22 06/30/21 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18

Measurement Date 06/30/21 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18 0613017
Changes in total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 3580 § 7258 § 5507 0§ ST105 § 0 65374
Interest 60,015 45,054 44813 40,634 33,922
Actual and expected experience (123,455) - (12,951) - -
Changes in assumption 26,083 (452,724) 53,239 (43,017) (114,363)
Actual benefits payments (27,438) (25,169) (31,531) (28,194) (35,539)
Changes in benefits terms - - - - -
Net changes in total OPEB liability (28,935) (360,331) 108,741 26,528 (50,606)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 866,970 1,227,301 1,118,561 1,092,033 1,142,639
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 838035 § 866970 § 1227302 § 1118561 § 1,092,033
Changes in plan fiduciary net position
Expected return at beginning of year $ - na n/a n/a na
Employer contributions 565,698 na na n/a n/a
Nonemployer contributing entity contributions - nfa n/a n/a na
Employee contributions - na a n/a na
Net investment income 32493 na wa na n/a
Benefit payments (27 438) n/a nfa n/a n/a
Administrative expenses (93) na n/a n/a n/a
Net changes in plan fiduciary net position 570,660 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning - n/a n/a n/a 1/a
Plan fiduciary net position - ending § 570,660 n/a na n/a /2
Net OPEB liability .
Total OPEB liability $ 838,035 § 866970 $§ 1227302 § L11§S6l § 1,092,033
Plan fiduciary net position § 570,660 $ - 3 -3 -3 -
Net OPEB liability § 27375 5 866970 § 1227302 § 1118561 § 1,092,033
Net OPEB liability funded percentage 68.1% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Covered employee payroll * $ 2179647 § 2051887 § 1970238 § 2030312 § 1825805
Net OPEB liability as a percent of
covered-employee payroll 1221% 42.25% 62.29% 55.09% 59.81%

A Fiscal year 2018 was the Ist year of implementation, therefore, only five years are shown.
* For the year ending on the measurement date.

59



San Benito County Water District
Schedule of Employer OPEB Contributions
As of June 30, 2022
Last 10 Years

Contributions for the fiscal year ended: 06/30/22 06/30/21 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18

Actuarially determined contribution ** $ 70172 § 110,767 § - $ - $ -
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 493,773 565,698 25,227 31,603 35,683
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (423,601) § (454931) $§ (25227) § (31,603) § (35,683)
District's covered payroll * $2,179.647 $2,189,677 $1970,238  $2,030312  $1,825,805
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 22.65% 25.83% 1.28% 1.56% 1.95%

A Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only five years are shown.

* For the fiscal year ended on the date shown.

** As of fiscal years 2018, 2019, & 2020, the Trust was not established and no funding policy was
established for future contributions.

60



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

61



9

LREESHY - 15L°966°C 19697 SLO'0ET
€TT'SHS - L91°¢6¥ 88L°97 897°ST
¥91°806°¢ - ¥85°€05°E €LL°661 L08¥0T
£€05°998°9L1 $95°88L°1 95687991 7T8°101°9 175°989°C
868651401 L89THY'1 PP 8001 8€9°C61°1 630169
019°ETI'LL - 070°58°GL 1€2°660°1 65€°6S1
- (99T°1%5) 987191 - 086°6L¢
9L£°659°0T - 9L£°659°0T - -
618°6¥8°1 - 7996091 LOV'v6 0SL1ST
£50°1¥Sy £56'786°1 001°855°T - -
SP9°90L'TL LL89YE TE1°95%°69 ¥81°806'F TSH'S66°T
8YY61T°LT - 815°900°LT 66€€E1 T1€5°6L
ArAY4! - 6¥S°LS 8€I°LE §T5°0¢
1L9°S%1°1 - 1L9°Sp1°T - -
L6TS91°E $8%'808 WI9IET 0T¥'LT 0ST'¢T
LIOTSO'TY § (809°I9%) & TSTOE6¥PE LTTOILY opITLET  §
[e101, 00/, duoyz 9 9Uu07 € suoy7 TOTjRNSIUIUIPY
wusiq s Jusiq sIg
20T ‘0¢ duny

ouo0Z Aq uonIsoJ 10N Jo 9[npayos
JOLSI(] 1oje AN AJUNOD) OJIuag UeS

$90IN0SY JO SMO[INQ PaLI]a(] [BI0L,
g9dO - S30IN0SAI JO SMO[JINO PILISJA(]
SANALO. uOoISUad - $301M0§1 JO SMOJIN0 PaLIsJa(
$20In0SY JO SMO[JIN() PALIRJa(]

§)asse 810,
$19SS8 JUSLINOUOU [B)0],
10U ‘sjosse fende)
$OUOZ JO)0 WOIJ an(]
u101310d JUSLINOUOU - S[qRAIS02I JOBIUO))
Josse uotsuad joN
s381eYd pa1Isja(
'$J3SSB JUOLINOUON

$)9SS® JUALND [BJ0],
SJUSUI)SIAUT PUR [SEO PAJOLISY
sasuadxa predaig
uorod JUaLIng - S[qBAIIAI JOBIIUO))
10U ‘S3[qBAIa0RY
SJUSUIISIAUL PUR [SE))

:$)9SS® JuaLIn)

SLASSV



£9

8STSE6'EVT §  POITIL'] 6£9°6S9°€E 1 S19°010°9  $§  0IL'SSS'T $ uonsod jou [e30]
00L‘9£0°Ey P61 T1L 905°€81°v¢ €Y1°858‘Y LS8°€8T'T pajoLIsaIun)
SYP'61T°LT - CIL'SSO°LT 1vT°€s P6H°011 pajoLssy
010°6L9°CL - 0ZF 0THTL 1€2°660°1 65€°651 sjesse [epdes ur Jusursoaul 9N
NOILISOd L3N
L¥6°S6£T - 6T 6LL'8TI 976°LET $90IN0SAI JO SMOJFUI PALIJAP 810,
€TI0LY - 17S°L1Y LSL'ST $78°97 gHdO- $90IN0SAI JO SMOJJuI PaLIdja
¥T8'ST6'T - TOLTTL] 220°€01 101111 $3IALO. UOISUd - SIOINOSAI JO SMOJFUI PILIYIT
§90IN089Y JO SMO[JU] paLIg}a(]
$8L°886'V¢ 0LELL Y L6V FE 686881 086V souiqer| [elo],
18€°082°6C - 19%°S16°8T 8LYYST Thr081 SOIIqeI] JUSLINOUOY [2J0],
LLESS9'0T - LLESS9°0T - - ONUIASI JORIUOD POUILSU[)
000°0€9°C - TLISLET L6T°8E] 1€9911 uoiLod JuaLINOUOU - puog UOHESqQ SNUSASY o[qexe], [Z0T
000°€95°C - 000°€95°C - - uoryod Juarnouoy - puog uonedqQ Supunyoy 1M 1202
6CI°LLOS - 6C1°LLOE - - uorod jusrmouou- ojqeded ueo] yueg [euoneN KD
005°L8 - 00501 - 000°LL susoda(q
SLELIT - €87%9C 182°91 (681°¢1) Anpqer; 9940 BN
SANI[IQRY] JUSLINOUON
$0P 80L°S OLELL $86°155°S 11Sv¢ 8ES‘vP SIUIIqel] JUALIND [BJ0],
1L9°SHT°T - T1L9SHI°T - - ANUSASI JORIIUOD pauIeauy)
1S€°08 - 15€°08 - - sjuowAedoid Jojem IoWOISND J0BIUOYD
0T1°/86°1 000°8C 011°656°1 - - sarouade 10y30 03 an(g
000'¥91 - 801°8¥1 8198 YLT'L uoryod JuaLmo - puog uolESIqQ SNUAASY d[qexe], 70T
000°1L1 - 000°1L1 - - uopod juaLmo - puog uonesqQ Surpunjay 1e1em 1207
1LY:LSE - 1L¥°LSE - - uoriod yuormo - ojqeAed ueo[ sjueq [euonieN LD
£60°0%¢€ - 9€6°66T 8L6°L1 6L1°TT 9ABS] IS PUB UOLJEORA PONIOOY
STYLS L61 8051+ 920°T v601 SIJauaq pue saem poniooy
€880t 1 ELI'6Y 0€8°8H¢°1 688°S 166 sosuadxa ponooe pue sjqeed sjunodoy
“muﬁmmnmm juaxny)
SHILITIEVIT
[elol, 00L duoz 9 duo07Z € suoz UORIISINIWPY
JoLsiqg 1o1sIq s 1oLnsiq

TT0T ‘g ounf

(panuyuod) suoz Aq uorsod 19N JO 9[npayos
1081 19Je A AJUNOY) OIUSg UeS



9

Ieak yo pus ‘uonyisod JoN
Ieak Jo Suruuidaq ‘uorsod JoN
uonsod jou ur s8ueyD

uonnqriuos fende))

uonnqLiuod Tendes 21039q swooU]

(sesuadxo) onuossx Suneradouou joN

sasuadxoe Surjeradouou Jo3(0)
ssuadxs 3so10u]

SSO[ JUSUIISAAU]

SONUIAI 15910

sonuoAdl Sunjeradouou 10710
ONUSASI JUBID)

SJUSWISSOSSE pUB SIXEB]

:(sosuadxo) snusas: JunjeradouonN

8S1°6E6°CHI POT'TILT §  6€9°6S9°6€T §  SI19°010°9 §  OIL‘ESST ¢
SYE'RLYEET - 99L°0LE°ST1 9¢L°16S°S £V8°16°C
£18°950°01 POITTIL Y €L8°887°8 6L8°]1¥ (€€1°29¢€)

- 876969 - - (876°969)
€18°950°01 9T Y101 €18°887°8 6L8°81¥ SI8pEE
P8I°L18°01 $88°p€9 P16TEE6 69065 91€°LST
(998°5LE) (982°191) (zLsT61) €SS p1 (195°9¢)
(Lyo‘ze1) (68¥°C1) (szovL1) (9z€'¢) (Lo8D)
(168°16%) - pzr'oey) (616°ct) (8¥8°LT)
€98°121 - 916°001 606°S 8€0°S1
LYL 11T - LYL 11T - -
6¥9°CT0°1 099808 686°€1T - -
6C€°1TS01 - €86°709°6 758819 Y6°66T
(1L£09L) 19€°6L€ (I¥0°v+0°1) (061°€L1) 66V°LL
LITPTI 0T T6C°€01 36+°898°6 v80ZLT  (LS9%T)
vh6 6y C - L16°T0V°E T0EE T L699
8SL°61P - LEESTY vLI] LYLT
LBESSE 656 Y1€76C LTS L8581
86L°€S¢E 621 CHPTPEE 698°91 LSST
900°0¥6°¢ 6899 6T6°1TL'E sevzel €6L°8T
(1L0°191°¢) - (292°608°7) (Z10'v91) (L6L°L8T)
SOLY0ET $SE°SE 0£E°ES0°T 192°C11 6SL°€01
069°8SH°T - 069°8SH°C - -
98°€9¢°6 €59°T8Y §  LSH'PT8'S  §  p68C $ Tv8Cs $

[e10], 00/ 2uoyz g ouoy € auoy uonensSIuIupy
J0LSI( 10181 101081 10LISI(T

TTOT ‘0¢€ aunf papug Iea K ay} 104

ouo7 Aq uonIso 19N Ul safuer]) pue sasuadxy ‘SONUSAY JO S[NPaYdS

LSI 1918 A AIUNO0D) oNudg UeS

sso[ SunjeradQ

sosuadx2 Suryerado [ejo
uorjeziyowe pue uorjeroarda(y
sasuadxa AN
SAIJRIISIUTLIPE PUR [RIOUAL)
owdinbs pue [eLIDIBIN
SOOIAISS JOBIIUOD)
osuadxe (ured) 3500 uoIsua g

sasuadxo paje[ar 99kojdwo pue safem

191em JO 1800
:sasuadxs SunyeradQ
anuoaai SuneredQ



STATISTICAL SECTION



San Benito County Water District

Index to Statistical Section

This part of the District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statement, note disclosures, and required
supplemental information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends - These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s
financial performance and well-being have changes over time.

Net Position by COMPONENL .......cccocoriiriimiieririeerteeentesre et ereste e e e sesesees e sesesaesesesessesansssensrisscnes 67
Changes IN Nt POSIHION. c.c.ceiciveveeriercrieiresreeecererirereersessestressssssssresssssnsssesssossosaressassossessesssessessesssssnsasess 68

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most
significant local revenue source.

Operating RevVenue by CatBZOTY ....c..cccevererieririririeriesteeiiiseesesis st sseesstesesssesesaassesessensentenesstasersesserinsens 69
Water Rates San Felipe Distribution SYStEIM.......cccecvioiveiiitisneeeeseieseeeeessasssestessnsssseseeseeseessesssessessensmsssaes 70
Principal Land TaxXpayers ZOME 6 ........cccceceeereereniriererencrrsersiasionssiasssssessessassessasassssssssessensessessossssessessmsesens 71

Debt Capacity - These schedule present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
District’s current level of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

DISEIICE DIEDL .ot tssi b eeeesssmesstesees e aensssesassbansteseessesesnasesaesesssassasastatesessnannesnaeeeessaetessns 72

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic
indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities

take place.

Demographics and ECONOMIC StAtISHICS ........ccevirreireremrearieserreresrsrersnesressessssesnssasssrsssensesseensesessesssessessesnnn 73
Principal Employers, San Benito COUNLY ......cccovioriieiieeiirieereie et eieteeeseeessessesseseasse e sseseeseesenssesanenas 74
Water Deliveries to San Benito COUNLY .......cccoiiiiereiineiirese ettt et s 75

Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District
provides and the activities it performs.

Number of Employees by Departiment........co.oouiiiiiiiiniiiei et see ettt eaees et sensene 76
Operating Indicators by FUnction/Programe...........ccooveririiiiriese ettt benae e 77
FACIIEIES ...ttt ettt b et ettt 79

66



L9

Jusurpeda(] 20ueUL] OIS 1ol AJunoy) ojiueg Ueg 1a0n0g Ble( ¢

BSISE6'EYT S SYERLS'CEl § LOLT8YOTL § 669°B6YLII § 98SCC6801 § FLLLOOTOI § 98908676 § LYEYI9T6 § TH86VLB8 § LIOELEES § uoysod jou [ejo L
00L9¢0°cy 096'579°¢ $€6'887 € 178'6¥1°8C WrioTe  0T'estys LISLSY'SE  €009VELT  9ETSLETE  €8VLSETS pajouiserur)
8v'617LL INAREYY PTETECNT T6'ESTL LTLSLYL  6OV'19STI  996°€TTTC  LGYTEI'ST  #H89IELT 765605y papLIsy

OI06L9EL  § T6L'6Ev'VL S SOSI98IL S 9I6W6ITL § LBI'6OITL § SOISLESS § COTGOTPE S Ly8SBILE S TOLLSH6T § THE'SOV9T § s10s5e [ended W JuAUSIAU! JoN

[\ 1207 0207 610C 8107 L10T 9107 S10C 1414 £107

(Sununoooe Jo siseq [eiooe)
S13X [BISIq U3, 356
jusuoduio)) Aq uonisod JoN
JOLUSI Jajep Kjuno)) ojiuag ueg



89

wsuieda(] ooueur JOLISI(] I91BA AJUNOY) OJIUSg URS :90INOS BIB( O

€18°950°01 § 8LS'S6E°L $ 890'486'8 § E£11°695'8 § T98°SH89 §

8CO°LOI'LS 6£€91E€TS SOSPIGES

§T891¥'s§  €Sp'879'c § parsnipe ‘wonisod Jou ur ofuey)

- - - - (6L 1vL) - - - - -

- - - - - - - (zo1°LT9') - -
£18°960°01  8LSS6E°L 2907868 €11°595'3 £S9°L8S'L 8E0'LOI'L  GEE9IET  LYYIVS'S  STBIIVS  €6¥°879°C
- - - - - 000°00v'c - 000052 959'098°C  88€°9]
- - - - - 000’00’ - 000°0S¢T 969°9987  88¢ 91
PSI'LISOT  LPSSLO6 S6V'EI801  €TYILTO1  SLILOLS TEETSTL  LVCI8IL  9T%L866  S8LSIZ9. 0£9%1v9
(998°5L¢) (zeLozs)  (S01°L0L) (296°¢6) (£¥0°68€) (€897119)  (o9vvOL'D) (I0L1L) (826081 (6519€0)

- - - - - - - 8vo'vel) . - -

- (666°0%) - - - - - 5 - -
(Ly9'ze1) (czL'tzy) (rTsen) (sev'sp1) (90¢€'851) (1z'son)  (61'89) (zov'1) - -
(168°'16%) (188'812) 9€€£'s81 £05'9¢1 (rev'es) (669°LS) L9t01 (61L) (60€°st) (199°291)
£98°121 11L°8z¢ 8191L6 1€8°1v6 €L9E8Y 966'$9¢ £L6°E61 6LTRIT SSLL9Y $0S0EE
LyL11T 2£6°60T wo'rez 88T°9LT 696'VET POT'STT PSTLIEL  SE6'STT S8EYIT 101°182
6v9°TT0'1 P6ESEY' 0ZL'020°1 Iv1'LoY ov6'voY $85°'159 12L°€99 686'980°tr  616'20C 188'179
62 1ZS°0T  $0T9ZR'6 8Z1°09T'6 LSO'TSL'S 6LEVYOL'S 080°LYS'L  169'68L°9  £SI'6S€9  €96'908°S  $97019'S
(Le090) (697089 (Lzv'6e8D  (01€90LTD)  (STSOITT)  (h6TSviY) (806598F7) (651°969%) (919°99°€) (S957082)
LITYTI0T  008°CIGET GOV ISY'CT  BLO'TPTEl  LB696LT1  198°SSE 11 VLLOBSOl VEFGESL  €6L89SL  8S068LY L
i asas SPE'SII'E 176°166'C L11°€Z8'C +7L°008'1 PTTRELT  BOI'EE9'T  LOI'WITTT  99€080°1  €8L168
8GL61Y 8SL'SYY PSH 196 85€°08S oS LIS LIL'SSE $8L°70¢ PE9°TLE L§S'661 $69'591
L8E8SE YOTLEE ELLTTE 1¥9°¢0€ 98687 956'961 Pr9'€ET £6L°6L1 000°L12 1LL'SET
86L°€S¢E 766719 OLI°LLT 80£°9Z¢ S6€°85€ L8T'85T 085°851 £6v°981 L6¥'861 TETEIT
900°0¥6°C 786'5£9'¢ 820°TET'E 8¥L'L06'C 90t 10L°C 120°6v8°T  6T8°69%° 1  88%'S9I‘T  818'€68 8LE'6LS
(99¢'968) 0186557 LOT'8Z1'E $8.'$78'T 65LVS8T €E0°ISH'T  PLO'PROT  69T'SYL'T  069°€HHT  008'69%'C
069°8St°C 6v8°40T°E 920°89¢°¢ 180'VLY'E ILEBLTS €79°00S'y  $SSLE9Y  0STTLY'1  S98°SES'T  GHTLIOT
IV8'EIE6 § TESCETTIS TLOTSOTIS STLVESTIS COVLLOOTS L9SOICLS 998F1LSS SLCEPSTS LLIC0GES ErE9L9% S

20T 1202 0707 6107 8107 L10T 9107 S107 ¥10T €107

(Bununoosoe jo siseq [ensooe)
SIB3A [BISL] U], ISvT]
uoIsod N ul saduey))
ILISI(Y 19J8AL AJuno)) o3fuag ueg

sonI[qe! g3dO
SonIIqel| UOISudg
JUBTHSHIpe poilad Totig

uomsod jou ur a8uey)
suonnqLpuos feyde))

uonnquyuoo feyde)
OTRqUU0 ) [aide )

(sosuadxa) snuaaa Suneradouou JoN

sasuadxe Suneradouou 1310

JUSUILISAOK) 10130 0} suonnqLyuos jejide)
sjesse Jo pesodsip uo sso]

asuadxa 1sa101U]

$S0] 10 ured Jusuw}SaAu]

SONUIADI JUSUISIAUL PUB JSIIIU]

sonuaaal Juyeredouou o0

SNUIALI JuLID

SJUSWISSISSE PUEB SIXE ],

-(S5SUad%a) SNUSAST SuijeisdotoN

(ssot) swoow JuneradQ
sosuadxo Sunerado [ejo],

uoneziowe pue uoneraidsq
sasuadxs NN

SANBISTWPE PUE [BISUSD)
wewdinbe pue [euEK

SOOIAIDS JOBRIUO))

sasuadxo pojeor sakojdws 2 safepm
13)EM JO 3500

:SosuBUY SunEsdp

anuaaay Suneradp



69

Jaureda(] aoueu] JOLSI( 10jep) AJUNOY) OJUAg UBS :20IN0g Bie(] ¢

98E9E6 § 1€S'CETTI § TLOTS0TI § STLYESTIS T9¥'LL901 S Bm,o&& $ 998FIL'SS SLTEKRTS R.wmomhmm EVE9LIY §

001°081 626°SS 81T0p P6'cS 6YP'EC 059'16 £3€79 TESEL IS1°1S 9vL°6S onuaady SunyeradQ J9g)0
€978 $30,] Jusurageuey Jojempunolr)
¥8LTS 80S°LE Sre'ey 890°Gy 100°01 8¥E'01 £00°1 06€°0T 89¥°0C §8L°01 §99,{ L3 [[3M
$¥S°T09 91°¢ey L6LILT VEL90E b61'9€T 8LSLLT 959°L2T 868°0€7 655°6TC £SH0L saBIey)) Jajempunolny
§98°¢ 1£6°¢ e 0vT's 19%'¢ s6l'c 6187 119°¢ 680y 7981 saBueyoxy % sigjsuel]
- - - - - - - - - 00 (sworsAg eamy) a8rey)) A810ug
- 0SL'] 000'12 00017 028°0T 08961 0ze6l 09681 188°¢1 60191 (Swons£g [emmy) purwagy 3 201A1G
799699 ELSEISL 881YIT'L 9E1TI69  €61'06L°S  €LO'0TE'C  9S8PEY'T  S66'1L8 162°€6S - jue[d justmeal], - So[eg JoJeAy PAYSMIL]
TL0'TE 806°€T POL'6T 01817 7£6'81 11L91 L6Ty - - - 1ajep pajokoayy - aBrey) Jomog
9ISTIT 76968 0¥9'101 209°€L 079°69 79€°TS p6s°€l - - - Tayep\ Po[oAosy - sojeg Jojep
L9S911 1€9°G6€ £69'66Y 68€6LL 196'L60T  €ST'S8S 00L881 0€L'991 17€'70¢ LIELSS adija] ueg - 381eyQ) 1emog
660'9VI'T § L069L9°C § SLSITRE § POSLIEE § OEITOVE § LIL'CESTS 8ET'0SSES 66 I'LSY'TS 91¥'889°TS €L9°87L°C § odija ueg - sofeg Jojep

(44114 120¢ 070z 6107 3107 L10T 910z ¢10C p10T €107

{Bununonoe Jo siseq [eniooe)
SIBOZ [eISY] UL, ISe]
A1039)e)) Aq anuaaay Superadg
JLISK(I J9IeAL AJuno)) ojfudg ueg



0L

Areniqo,g ySnoxy} yoIejy - 189X INBM ¢

juourpreda(y souRUL 10LISI(T 101e A\ AIUNO)) 0jIUag UBS :90IN0S BIR(T ¢

009% SL'SES ST8EIS SS'E6$ 0S° 1S SE'68S 00'¥Cys 00'vLTS €20t
00'9% SL'SES ST8EIS $5°€68 0S'1¥$ Se'68% 00¥Zr$ 00'vLTS (44114
00'9% SL'vES 0TPeErS 0806% St ovs ¢8'78% 00°S1¥S 00°6978 120T
0098 0L'ees 0€0¢IS S1°88$ 0€'6¢$ S°08$ 00'v0¥$ 00'¥ST$ 0207
00'9% 01°0LS SY'TLLS S9911$ §T08% 09°0¢1$ 00°€9¢$ 00°607Z$ 610C
00'9% S0'89% SY'LO1S STELLS 06°LLS 08'9C1$ 00°€9¢$ 00°161$ 810C
009% $0'99% SS'T91$ $6'601% S9GLS 01°¢TIs 00°€9¢$ 00°CLTS L10T
009% 08°¢T$ ST°L6S 0L°Sv$ SO'I¢ES SLTYS 00°LyTS 00°6L1S 910¢C
0098 01°ecs 0£'v6$ SEVYS s1'0¢s SS'IvS 00°8€T$ 00°0LTS 114
0098 0¥'ces SS'168 mo.mﬁ: ST6TS ot'ovs 00°5€TS 00°0LTS y10C
_ 210V 194 _ 100, 210y 194 _
AjiqepreAy SWONY | H6 | T6 T HY ] < | Qe [emnsnpuy ey 8¢ Areniqoq
% Aqpuelg wasAsqng Aq 981ey)) 19m04 29 edrorunpy reImmoLsy pspug
IBQ X 191 M\

SIBSX [BISI] UJ], Ise]
wISAS uonnqrysi(y adid g ueg
sajey J9jBA
PLISI( 131BAN AJuno)) ojiudg uesg



2107 110y xe[, Kjunoy) - 013J() 81085385y AJunoy) ojitiag Ueg 9010 e ¢

B ]

IL

001 4od 67§ st xe], puer 1afoxg adijo] g 9 9U0Z JOUISI(T Joje gy AIuno) opuag ueg ¢

1207 110y Xe], Aunoy) - 90yJ() §,105SasY Aunoy) ojiuog ueg :20Inog wie(] o

L68°SSH0pLT §  s1akedxe], puer g ou0Z Joj anjeA PUET] PIssassy [eo], £30'61'9LE'C §  siakudxm], pue 9 oUOZ 10 anjEA PUBT PISSaSSY [BI0],
W eyl SI1KBdYE ], PUBT I9Y)() 10 AN[EA PUE'] PASSISSY 697986 ST°E s1akedxe], pueT Jouj() 107 ON[BA PUET Passassy
%699 SSHTIY9LI s1akedxe] pue 5981w passassy %19°¢ p19°768 171 s1akedxe], puer 19510 passassy
%800 £80°806'Y 01 d'T SPIEG2IQ) Otoonpag %ST0 8T8 01 di0) sexa], & ou sajeIn0ssy yoeasduo]
%0 ILYLLS'S 6 OTT{eQ uenf ueg %800 LSST6E'6 6 d'TSpIBY2IQ OronyIsg
%83¢0 0LY'569°9 8 18£67# 00 300y uLID - %00 SLO'91T01 8 JTT83eQ uenf ueg
%870 TIS0¢E's L 71 sasudxejug 2oyt %1E0 ¥898¥°01 L [V 1 IS0, 91qeI0A%Y 9007 Bing
%650 081°161°01 9 "N uueadioan-p Aue] ‘wosiopuy %IE0 906'625°01 9 dTTvD © 47 sasudojug 20114
%890 980°068°11 S QU 1OXIBN SBA %EE0 IS § 00 QeUTPYT VD B 5T JRISHIOH $3eQ WIM],
%EL0 18€'€€9°TI 14 dT3oyouey Jjqoq %680 065°L90°€1 14 ou] an1esay Apadoxg
%SL0 000°000°¢T £ “OU] SSUIOH pieay %tr0 W06'15€w1 £ d100 v © ou] SowoK premy
%6L°0 12T L08 'S 4 IS, Ajiurey “ jouef ‘speqoy %b¥0 69L°398'71 4 d’18eyoury rejqoq
%691 1S0'6LE'6T I ‘o orsasay Asadorg %LS0 pIELTel § 1 di0) Jije & ou yred suea)
anjeA pue uonen[eA Juey 19Kedxe] anjep pue uonjenyeA Juey 10fedxe],
Passassy [J0L  puBT passassy PasSISSY [e0]  PUBT Passassy
30 35ejuaonag Jo 3Bejuaong
E10T-T107 100170t

03€ SJ83 X JUIN UE JBIX JULIN)
(9 9u07 - 18I Jagepy Auno)) oj1uag ueg) siokedxey, puer redmunig
PLSIY 1M Guno)) ojpuag ueg



CL

Juatreda(] QouBUL J0LISICT JoJe A AJUNOD) OJUAg UeS 90108 BIe(] ¢

Ayunoy) ojuag ueg
(/18-sereumsaysapydesSowsap Bunseasioy/aod-eajop/diy) aoueur] jo juouryedag] ‘erioien Jo ajelg
Joked TV SYAdIED “fue feuoneN Supog
Jjokeq rende)) wiseg-up ygsn v N ‘vonelodiooueg suory
B0 Joje M Pojokaay pue ¢ Auauel], BaIY UeqI) JAISIOY “ueg [euoneN A1)
(dDOHQ) ueld 3ouekonuo)) pue uoneAasuo)) ‘jelqey] eyaq] ‘Aousdy Joje IOpUS Bija] SINT Ueg

889C1  §  6LK'S9 1097968 §  000%6LT $  000%ELT $ 109%ere § - $
wwst § 9% 868106 §  000910°C § 000506 § 8808ttt § - $
7099 $ €58 gLy ¢ - § - § sy § 0 - $
6T1L $ 96779 9wy § - $ - $ 9wy § 0 - $
1¢'¢8 §  880'LS 808'ssLy § - § - § 808y § - $
L6'88 $ 6898 619°90°¢ § - $ - $  6190%0% § - $
6576 $ p19'9S L98'sse’s ¢ - $ - §  L98sse’s § 0 - $
- S TS - $ - § - $ - § - $
- $ 61798 - $ y $ - $ - $ - $
51T §  866'SS 0oryeI'T § - § - § - $  00rpelT §

ende) (6) uongndog 193¢ [e10L (t) yueg (¢) vonesodiooueg (7) yueg (1) d0OHa
Tad199¢ JeuonEN SUIIaIg suory JeuoneN Al

182X [BISIY UL, 80T
193 siq

PLSI JajeAq Kyuno)) ojiuag ueg

o o<t
S

)
e

(44114
120C
0202
6107
8107
L10¢
910¢
§10¢
p10T
¢10t



€L

"TTOT T 1oqUISAON] JO S 9[qE[IBAR JOU 8I0M TZ(T PUB [Z(T 0] Swodu] [euosio eiide)) 104 pue oWIOOU] [BUOSIS )

'SOUlJ $91], pue ISISI[OH Supunoumns seale urgin
pajerodioourun “IRISIOH JO AND ‘Bisuneq uenf ueg Jo A :OPNJOUI PIAISS SSUIUNUILIOD [BHUSPISIY
s axenbs (| Ae3eunrxoidde Jo vaIe UB M ‘AJUNo)) ojudg e JO [[B sassedwoous J0LSI oY, 0

SJUNO0Y SNSUAd (707 sieiodioour sajewmss uoreindod asayy, (9)

SJuNod sUsuId (g 9rerodioour sejeunyse uonendod asay] (§)

(a03's1q mmm//:dy) sonsiyelg JoqeT Jo neang 'S ()

(onusg-ueg/A1unos 810 eyep-po mmm//:dny) eep-pa ()

(a08-voq mmm,//:dnY) sisA[euy oruouoos jo neamg (7)

(/19-0yeumsa/sorydesdowap/Sunsessioy/Aod e jop,/:dny) soueur jo jusunieda(] “eruiofye) Joayels (1)
:$921N0S ©BIR(] ¢

%Ct L68°TT s[qe[ieAe jou 3[qe[ieAe jou 6LY°S9 ©)] 7207
%9°L LIV 11 s|qejieAe Jou Jqe[ieAe jou 97569 (9] 1202
%8t SPSI1 99%°79 $ 000°€96'¥68°C $ €5€79 ) 0207
%1°S 8¢ 11 SIL'SS $ 000°7T8°0LY'E $ 9629 ) 6107
%8°S €STI1 $L9°98 $ 000°8¥¥°'SET'E $ 880°LS © 8107
%89 POT°11 074728 4 $ 000°Z84°960°¢ $ 6L8°9S © L10T
%1'L PITTT 00L°0S $ 000°918°0L8‘T $ $79°9¢ (9] 9107
%9°L 991°11 €L9LY $ 000°6€2°169°C $ TSH°9S ) S10T
%1°01 90T°11 AN %% $ 000°TY9PTH'T $ 612°9¢ © ¥10T
%111 €eTIT FOE 1Y $ 000°996°TI€°T $ 866°SS © €102
(¥) o1y (€) SUIOOU] [BUOSISJ (@) (1) Ies X
EOE%OMQEOQD Eoﬁﬂo.am 100408 thmU I2d onozH jeuosiad QOEESQO&

oJIud¢ ueS JO Ajuno)

SIBIX [BISL U], Ise]
$O1IS1BIS dTou0dy pue sdrydeaSowa(y
1OLISI( 191BAp AJUN0)) 031Uy ues



a]qe[IeAe jou

YL

a[qe[ieA. jou a]qe[IeAR JoU

wowAodwy  yuey  seakojdug
Ayumo) fe10],
Jo o8ejuaoiag

wawAopdwiy  yuey  saokojdwyg JuswAo[dws]  yuey

Ayuno) feio], Auno) [e10,
Jo a3eua0Iag Jo 93ejuao1ng

so9A0[dwy

[44\14

1202

Aunop) ojuag weg ‘s1oordwry [ediourg
LSI( 1338 AJUNO)) 0J[UAY uBS

484

Auedwo)



SL

Areniqaq y3noayj yore = Jed X I0JeM ¢
SUOJ[e3 [G8°STE = 1004 210V [ ¢
1odoy A19A15(J 1978 A 10LUSI(T 19JB A KIUNOD) O)USE UBS :90IN0S BIR(] ¢

81LTT

0SLvT

105°CC

SOLYT

6€0°9C

I8€pT

§T9°0¢

6¥0°9 [44\14 STSYT

€18°L1 120¢ LY9°1C
665°TT 020¢ eP191
[69°CT 610¢C 0L SE
SE9°€T 810¢C T8Y°8T
L6EET L10T 75967
1L1°¢ 910¢ 1€9°C1

P€8°8 10T 19987
9STY1 ¥10¢C Tl
L6561 €10 1Z1°L

002°CT 10t TIS1T

St LI 110¢ 8L9°1T
0188 010¢ T66°11
88TLI 600T 66£°C1

uoneoImjyig ’7 uonedIngIg
[ yoeay ysnoxyy, A1eniqo,J papug [ yoeoy ysnoiyy,
PRISAT[(] [BIOL IBO X IOIB M pa1dAn(d [BI0L

(1994 210y UI S[RI0])
(zz0z-8861)
A3uno)) 031Uy UBS 03 SILIAIA(] I9IBAN
uoISIAL( 2d1fa ueg - 199f0ag Ad[[eA [EUd)
PLYSI(J 19IBAL AJuno)) 0)udg ues

800C
L00T
900¢
$00¢C
v00¢C
£00¢
00T
100T
0007
6661
8661
L661
9661
S661
7661
€661
661
1661
0661
6861
8861

8¢
Areniqe, papug
Ied X I9Je M\



9L

15177 Sugyeis pezuogny ‘usuneda] 9oUBUL JOLUSI(T JOJE A\ AJUNOD) ONUSE UBS :90IN0S BB {

S/£0T  S/£0T  S/S0C  S/£61  TLI6L  wl6l  Tlod  ioc 1ot 210z

UL 1 U1 U1 UL 1 UL ULl ULl U1 U1 ULl UOIJBAISSUOD) I9JB AN

U9 U9 19 ULs U9 T 9 UL UL UL UL souruLIUIRA 2% suoneIadQ
4 z z Z z (4 z 4 4 z IO TIeM
v v v % ¢ ¢ € € 3 € Fuusouguy

/€9 S/E9 /€9 S/£9 19 U9 19 U9 19 U119 9oUBUL] 29 UOHELSIUIPY

T20T 1202 020T 610C 810C L10T 910T S10¢ ¥10T €102 papug Ied X [e0s1] 10]

SIBIX [eISI UdJ, Isey

yuounyaeda( Aq saakordury Jo Jaquunyn
PLOSI( 13JBAL AJUNOD) 0JIUdY UL



LL

189 4 10JeMPUNOIL) 3} UO PIseq PISIASI a1om S)UNOUre a5esn I0JeMpUnoln) 1707 - €102t 0

9107 W pajonnsuos aurjodid 1018 PajoLoay ¢ ¢

(1207 Taquiaidag yBnoxys 070z 1090100 sjuasardar 770z “8'9) Joquisidag y8noxy) 100100 - 12K J31EMPUNOID) 7 ¢
(TToT Arenuqa,f ysnoxy} (707 YorejA siussaidal 7zog “8'0) Areniqa yBnorys ysIejy - 1894 300fo1g AS[[eA [e13UL)) '] ¢

3SIMIBYI0 PAJOU SSS[UN S[EJ0} 188 X [80SLY ¢

jusunpreda(] 2ouBUL] 10LISI(T 1ojB Ay AJUNOD) OJUSE UEBS :90IN0S BIR(T

z 4 4 z 4 z 4 (€) surjedi 1038 M P3]oAoaY
0¢1 0%l 0s1 0¢1 oSt oSl 0¢1 0s1 0s! QST woysAsqng adijoy ueg
[4 [4 [4 [4 [4 [4 [4 T (4 s [elojer] uenf ueg
Ll Ll Ll Ll L1 Ll L1 L1 L1 Ll ynpuoy) I93sijoH
("xoxdde) jotnsiq Aq paurejurepy surjadid o SS[I
¥y v ¥ ¢ ¢ ¢ € € € £ $AINJONNS [OIIUO)) 29 A]BA UONL[00IJ JO JOQUINN
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 $2INJONG [01UOY) 2 JAJBA WAISASGNS JO JOQUINN
0t 0t 0¢ 0t 0t 0 0T 74 0 0t sdung jo JaquinN
14 1 14 1 1% 14 14 4 14 14 suoye)g Surdung Jo JoqunN
SILI[IOR,] UONNQUISI(] / UOISSTWISUI]
S b b t b ¥ b b ¥ 14 sajorgap Auoidinbg Areap
31 ¢l £l £l 11 11 It 11 Il 11 199] Jepnday
SA[OIYaA JO JaquunN
STI'S 81t°¢ 1§ 7419 96¢‘y 1L0°S 749 0TS 8€L'9 TL6'S 9200 (1994 a10y) Ternsnpuy % edioiunpy
867°€T 69¢°L1 87491 LEV0T YA L01°8T 62T'6C 0£6°0C YLI'WT YET'ET (3034 210y) [eamyoOLBY
() () 98esp) 103empunoin
¥18°C LTL'Y €Ly 'y 206'T 8T1T 090°C yEY'l SLST LEL'T (3994 ex0v) [erysnpuy % [ediounjy
vy £81°T1 £59°C1 SISl yTT'sl LLTY 6£€°E 0LO’L 889°C1 £29°91 (1934 210Y) [y nOLBY
(1) 98esp) 1032\ odifo] ueg
S€6°0¢ S€6°0¢€ $€6°0¢ $€6°0¢€ $€6°0¢€ §£6°0¢ $€6°0¢ §€6°0€ S£6°0¢€ $€6°0¢€ (3954 210y u) sxHoAtasY uadQ Jo Ayoede)) oanoy
£ £ ¢ £ ¢ € ¢ € € ¢ SH0AISSY uad() JO JoqunN
LL 3y 123 9¢ 0s ¥9 LL cel 991 €01 passasoiq suoneanddy jjam
(4414 1207 070t 610T 8107 L10T 9107 S10T 7102 £10¢ WEI30X J/uonouny
(T70T-€100)

wieago.14/uonauny £q soyedarpuy Sugeiadq
LIS J9jep\ AJURO)) 031UdY ULS



3L

(ze0t Areniqa ySnoay 1707 yore swuasaxdar 7707 “8+9) Arerugo ydnoiyy yasepy - 18ak 103f01g Aafjep [eus)) '| 0

3SIMIBYJ0 PaJOU SSOUN S[BJ0) Jea & [EISL] ¢

Juawpeda 3%& J 10LISIT Jate ) AJuno)) ojuag Ueg :901nog e ¢

WET w80y 06SY €€y LI 090T #9801 SLIT 9071 em (1924 210y U) papia0iI Jojepy ey
z t t 4 t ¢ I I I - S)Ue[{ JUaUIjERI], Jje
9¢ 9¢ o¢ 9 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ - - - 191 pajokday
VN VN 0 01 01 01 0l 01 01 01 waIsAg Joje [eany
STy [y Y44 16¢ £6¢ L6€ 76¢ ssh 09y 1Ly [oored [jeuig
89 99 1L £6 L8 16 8L 8L 8L 08 Joe1ju0) TeLnsnpuy 29 fedioramy
€99 L9S pSS L9S 695 S 439 SIS 608 96t 1081007 [eInyRoLiSy
adija] ueg
SLI 9Ll 9L1 9Ll SLI SLI 9L 9L1 9L1 9L1 (oAnoeur) ausawo(y
€€l 6<L 1€L €Tl 1 60L 69 £L9 099 059 (oAnoe) onsauoq
507 507 507 807 80¢ 01z 012 807 60C L0t (oanoeut) [eanjnouidy
0LY oy 994 494 0sh 6tp ey 13 L1y 147 (oanoe) [einyjnoLi3y
S[JO A\ 18)BMpUNOID
SJUnoYYY ISWOISN)) JO JaquunN
€907 SLLS  0STS 889 0sT'8  8ESy €907 SLLT  688€  L9IY (19a4 210 w) J0enu0)) [ernsnpu] % [ediorunyy
- 09L8 €907 SLLLT  0sS'SE  8LLT - - 6L 86061 (1004 10 ur) Joe1yu0) uoryeBiy
J0 urjsisuoy) uoredo]y [enuuy
1304 319y (08°CY - IuARNUY 19eNU0) [BI0L, %001
(1) 1oenuo) Ajddng 1012 [219pa]
e 100 0w 610T  810C LI 910T SI0T  ¥10T €107 WeI501d/uooun,|
(T20T-£107)

(panunued) ureadosd/uonaunyg Aq siopedtpuy Sunesadg
LUSY 19)eAq KJuno)) ojiuag ueg



6L

jusunyredo Surresuiuy 101sI( 1918 Ay A1UNO)) OJfUSg UeS :00IN0S BIed §

(SJ0 St JO Al1orded) UOISISAI(] SOYOEBOIJ SO(]
(839 0S-a18D pueg pue ‘s1en [[IH ‘We( UOISISAL( UOHIA)
SSNI[IOR,] UOISISAL(] Jeur)) saumdied
so[iw g “xoidde (8]0 (0§) [eUR)) SOUIDIE
A110BARD ) 0B GEE'C JIOATISY SauIore g
‘Y o' Q0E°LT AYORdAR]) ALY
‘¥ 0B 00S 11 ‘[o1u0) poorq
"1 OB 000°0€ T8I0L :ANORdR)) JIOAIISIY ZOPUBUISK
WOISAS JOATY OJUag ues

JuB[d JUSUNBIIL, ISR A SIITH ISOM
jue[J JUSUIIBaI] IR AN 3[BSSST
ISJUR[J JUSWIBOL], 1918 A\

wds 0QQ*y JO Arordes ‘SO ()7 ‘2dId Your |

; :oulfadid IS1B AN PO[oADYY

(soqiur 9GS[ Apajewurxosdde :SaUOUI 9¢ 0} 9 WOJJ UL SIDSWERIP) SauI[adi  WIISASqNS aodijaj ueg

"SJ0 6€ JO Anoedeo [e10] “SOINIONIIS [OIUOD) PUB JAJBA UOHE[0JIS] ¢

8]0 961 JO Anoeded [£10] ‘SOINIONIS [01UO)) PUR IAJBA WIRISASqNS 6

(008°T JO 1om0dasI0Y PI[[eIsul 810} PUE ‘SJO ZE[ JO AjIoBdERD [B10] B Yy3im sdwnd (7 JO ISISU0D) suone)g durdung 4
TWIRISAS UOINGLUSI(T 2dI[9,] ues
SSAIOE Y IS 19)EA\ AJUN0)) 0JIUIg ues

'SJ0 08% Jo Anoedens ‘sopiw g6/ ‘adid your oz [---INpuoy) 0931de
'8$J0 081 JO Anoeded ‘Sl ¢7°¢ “odid oul ] [-[oUuUn], 033yoeJ
000°pCT 3O I19M0d3SI0Y PI[[eIsul [BI0} B YIIm SJO (09 JO Ajrorden [0} ‘sdwnd 7] “Wi[ I 00§ A[orewuIxoidde
-jue]d Sudwing oosyoeg
11 yoeoy odija] ueg
JOLISI(T I91B W\ AS[[BA BIR]D BIULS (T TOIOUNIUOD UI paurejilel pue pajeiado SonIioe]

$J0 S JO Aloedeo ‘so[mwu 1 1'g ‘odid your gy
;[eI9)e uenf ueg
S$JO £6 JO ANORAED "SO[IWL ¢()°L] “odId YIUI (9 PUE Hg
IMpUo)) ISISIOH
$J0 $8 JO AjrordED *SO[IW () ‘odid YouI (9 - 1930
Ajoeded 199J-2108 0 01
:IIOAI9SY 0ISnf ueg
:paurejuietr pue pajerado JoTISI(]
*SIIIOB] 105101d UONEWIE]ISY JO NBdINg $91BIS PIIIUM) SUIMO[[O] Y3 JO SOUBUSIUIRUI PUE UOHBISAO IOF S[GISUOASAI ST JOLSI(] AT,
SONI[IOE ] uoneule[ooy JO Nealny Sa1e1g Pajiuf]

sanI[IoB]
ILISI( 19JBAL AJUNO)) 0)1UdY uRS



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: (p

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023
Submitted By: Shawn Novack

Presented By: Steve Wittry, General Manager

Agenda Title: Consider Resolution Adopting the 2022 San Benito County Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Detailed Description:

The County of San Benito is required to prepare a Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation
Plan (Plan) in order to qualify for disaster relief funding. Hazard mitigation describes the
actions taken to lessen the impact of disaster on people, property, economies, and the
environment. Hazard mitigation plans provide community the opportunity to think
deliberately about the greatest vulnerabilities to the community and existing capacity to
mitigate disaster impacts, and then plan to address identified issues through incremental,
achievable projects. The Plan is intended to mitigate disaster impacts for the entire
County, including the City of Hollister, the City of San Juan Bautista, San Benito County
Water District, and Sunnyslope County Water District.

The San Benito County of Emergency Services (OES) was awarded a grant in March
2020 to update the Plan. After a successful RFP process, Hagerty Consulting was
contracted to revise and complete the Plan. The Plan received a comprehensive update
through a 2 % year-long planning process. A Public Review meeting was held on March
23, 2022, to gather community input. Workshops were held for Emergency Operations
personnel in mid-September 2022.

The final Plan was submitted to CalOES in early August 2022. Once CalOES approved
the Plan, it was sent to FEMA for review and approval pending adoption that was
received in October 2022. The final step to close out the Plan and grant is for the five
represented jurisdictions to adopt the Plan.

Federal and State laws require local governments have an approved mitigation plan as a
condition of pre-and-post-disaster assistance. An approved plan is also a requirement to

apply for and/or receive grants under all hazard mitigation assistance programs.

Prior Committee or Board Action(s): N/A




Financial Impact: Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap:
Non-funded mandate

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Draft Resolution
Link to plan on San Benito County’s website

Recommendation: Request the Board of Director’s adopt the Resolution accepting the
2022 San Benito County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan

Action Required: X Resolution Motion Review
Board Action

X _Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FOR ADOPTION OF THE 2022 SAN BENITO COUNTY MULTI-
JURISDICTIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

WHEREAS, the County of San Benito is required to prepare and adopt a
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) to be eligible for State and
Federal assistance for pre-and-post disaster assistance; and

WHEREAS, the County of San Benito has historically experienced damage
from natural and human-caused hazards such as flooding, earthquakes,
wildfire, drought, thunderstorms/high winds, and hazardous materials incidents
on many occasions in the past century, promoting interest in providing effective
ways to minimize our county's vulnerability; and

WHEREAS, the County of San Benito's Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan (the Plan) has been developed after more than two years of
research and work by the planning team and with community participation, in
association and cooperation with Hagerty Consulting for the reduction of hazard to
the community; and

WHEREAS, the Plan specifically addresses hazard mitigation strategies and
plan maintenance procedures for the County of San Benito, including the City of
Hollister, the City of San Juan Bautista, the Sunnyslope County Water District and
the San Benito County Water District; and

WHEREAS, the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 constitutes an effort by the
Federal government to reduce the rising cost of disasters and ties mitigation
funding to cities, counties, and tribal governments that have approved local
Hazard Mitigation Plans; and

WHEREAS, the Plan has been approved by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) and the California Office of Emergency Services

(CalOES)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District, as an agency in the County Operational Area:

1. Hereby adopts this Plan as the official Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan for the County of San Benito.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District this 22nd day of February, 2023, by the following vote:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2023-09)

Sonny Flores
President

ATTEST:

Joyce Machado
Manager of Administration, Finance and
Business Services



San Benito County Water District

30 Mansfield Road e P.O. Box 899 e Hollister, CA 95024-0899
Phone: (831) 637-8218 o Fax: (831) 637-7267

TO: Board of Directors
District Counsel
Interested Parties

FROM: Barbara Mauro 3&\4\
Board Clerk
DATE: February 16. 2023

SUBJECT: Link to the County of San Benito Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard
Mitigation Plan

For your reference, please see below the link to the County of San Benito
Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan:

https:/ /drive.google.com/file/d/148xCdrKg-Jv OUO07JGV8AGIOUF-
PO9J5u/view?usp=share link




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 7
Meeting Date: February 22, 2023

Submitted By: Steve Wittry, General Manager

Presented By: Steve Wittry, General Manager

Agenda Title: Consider Authorizing the General Manager Execute a Contract with Todd
Groundwater to Prepare Specialized Design and Environmental/Permit Support
Associated with the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) (NTE $234,400)

Detailed Description:

For the past several years, the District has been working towards development of drought
resiliency options that allow for the storage of ‘excess’ water in wet years for use in dry
years. The preferred solution identified in the draft master plan is an Aquifer Storage and
Recovery (ASR) project that would allow the District to inject water into the aquifer and
recover it when needed.

Despite recent rain events, it has become apparent that California will continue to
experience periods of extended drought in the future and action must occur to prepare for
water shortages. Recognizing this effect, Federal and State agencies have offered grants
to help local water purveyors meet future water needs. In an effort to capture grant
funding, the District has created an implementable ASR solution, “Accelerated Drought
Response Project” or ADRoP.

The ADROP primarily consists of 5 ASR well sites, transmission and distribution water
pipeline and the expansion of the treatment capacity of the West Hills Water Treatment
Plant from 4.5 MGD (millions of gallons per day) to 6.75 MGD. This infrastructure will
allow the District to make substantial strides towards future Municipal and Industrial
(M&I) water resiliency.

Todd Groundwater has been working closely with the District on the development of the
ADROP solution and has submitted a proposal to perform specialized design services
associated with ASR well installation and technical support related to the completion of
CEQA (California Environment Quality Act) and NEPA (National Environmental Policy
Act) documentation, and Department of Drinking Water permitting. This agreement is
complimentary to the recently approved agreement with HDR, Inc. to bring the project to
a ‘shovel ready’ status. It is estimated that this work effort will be completed over the
next 20 months at a Not-to-Exceed cost of $234,400. Staff anticipates that a significant
portion of these costs will be recovered through phase 2 of the Integrated Regional Water
Management (IRWM) grant solicitation.




The overall ADRoP project has an estimated cost of approximately $40 Million.

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
Capital Improvement Reserve

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Professional Contract, Proposal from Todd Groundwater

Recommendation:
Authorize the General Manager to execute Professional Services Contract with Todd
Groundwater (NTE $234,400)

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action

____Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this day of , 2023, by and
between the San Benito County Water District, ("District,") and Todd Groundwater,
("Consultant").

1. Description of Project: : The District desires to undertake the Accelerated
Drought Response Project (ADRoP) (“the Project”) and engage the Consultant to provide
specialized well design and technical environmental and permit support related to the
design of the project, for a not to exceed amount of $234,400.

2. Scope of Services - Basic; Completion: Consultant shall perform those basic
services in connection with the project as are set forth more particularly in EXHIBIT "A" entitled
"SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - BASIC " and shall complete said services incorporated in
said Exhibit.

3. Scope of Services - Additional, Completion Schedule: It is understood by District
and Consultant that it may be necessary, in connection with the project, for Consultant to
perform or secure the performance of services other than those set forth in EXHIBIT "A". In
each such instance, Consultant shall advise the District, in advance and in writing, of the need
for such additional services, their cost and the estimated time required to perform them (if
applicable). Consultant shall not proceed to perform any such required additional services until
District has determined that such service is beyond the scope of the basic services to be
provided, is required, and has given written authorization to perform or obtain it. Each
additional service so authorized shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement, shall be
identified and sequentially numbered as "Additional Consultant Service Order No. 1" and so
forth, shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement, and shall be attached as
EXHIBIT "D" entitled "SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - ADDITIONAL; COMPLETION
SCHEDULE."

4, Changes to Scope of Work - Basic Services: District may at any time and, upon a
minimum of ten (10) days' written notice, modify the scope of basic services to be provided

under this Agreement. Consultant shall, upon receipt of said notice, determine the impact on
both time and compensation of such change in scope and notify District in writing. Upon
agreement between District and Consultant as to the extent of said impacts to time and
compensation, an amendment to this Agreement shall be prepared describing such changes.
Execution of the amendment by District and Consultant shall constitute the Consultant's notice
to proceed with the changed scope.

5. Compensation; Retention: Consultant shall be compensated for services rendered to
District pursuant to this Agreement periodically in the amounts, manner and in accordance with
the payment schedule as set forth in EXHIBIT "B" entitled "COMPENSATION." Amounts due to
Consultant from District for services rendered shall be evidenced by the submission to District
by Consultant of an invoice, prepared in a form satisfactory to District, setting forth the amount

1



of compensation due for the period covered. Invoices, including the paid invoices of any
subconsultants shall, at a minimum set forth the hours and hourly rates of each individual
charged to the Project for the invoice period. Compensation shall not include the cost of
executive, administrative and other personnel whose time is not directly identifiable to the
Project. Each such invoice shall be forwarded to District so as to reach it on or before the
fifteenth (15th) day of the month next following the month or months, or other applicable
period, for which the services invoiced were provided. All such invoices shall be in full
accordance with any and all applicable provisions of this Agreement. District will make
payment on each such invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt, provided however that if
Consultant submits an invoice which is incorrect, incomplete, or not in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement, then District shall not be obligated to process any payment to
Consultant until a correct and complying invoice has been submitted.

6. Responsibility of Consultant: By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants to
District that Consultant possesses, or will arrange to secure from others, all of the professional
capabilities, experience, resources and facilities necessary to provide to District the services
contemplated under this Agreement. Consultant further warrants that it will follow the highest
current, generally accepted professional care, skill, diligence and practices to make findings,
render opinions, prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and
recommendations regarding this project for which services are rendered under this Agreement
and that the Consultant shall, at no cost to the District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy
the foregoing Standard of Care.

7. Responsibility of District: To the extent appropriate to the project contemplated by
this Agreement, District shall:

7.1 Assist Consultant by placing at its disposal all available information pertinent to
the project, including previous reports and any other relevant data.

7.2 Guarantee access to and make all provision for Consultant to enter upon public
and private property as required for Consultant to perform its services.

7.3 Examine all studies, reports, specifications, proposals and other documents
prepared and presented by Consultant, and render verbally or in writing as may be appropriate,
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the progress of the
work by Consultant.

7.4 Designate in writing a person to act as District's representative with respect to
work to be performed under this Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define District's policies and decision
with respect to materials, equipment, elements and systems pertinent to Consultant's services.

8. Indemnification: Consultant shall hold District, its officers, boards and commissions,

and members thereof, its employees (collectively "District"), harmless of and free from the
negligent acts, errors and omissions of Consultant arising out of its performance of the services

2



provided under this Agreement. Should District be named in any suit, or should any claim be
made against District by suit or otherwise arising out of this Agreement, Consultant's negligent
acts, errors and omissions in its performance of the services provided for by this Agreement,
Consultant shall defend and indemnify the District for any judgment rendered against District or
by any sums paid out in settlement or otherwise, but only to the extent caused by the negligent
act, error or omission in the rendering of services under this contract.

9. Insurance: During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full
force and effect at its own cost and expense the following insurance coverage:

9.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance to cover its employees, and Consultant shall
require all contractors and subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation
Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the
subcontractors' employees. Each Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the
provision that it will not be canceled or altered without first giving thirty (30) days prior notice
to the District by certified or registered mail.

9.2 Public Liability Insurance including personal injury and property damage
insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its contractors and subcontractors arising out
of or in connection with this contract, written on a comprehensive general liability form
including, but not limited to, Broad Form Property Damage, blanket contractual, products
liability and completed operations, hazards, vehicle coverage and non-owned auto liability
coverage in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single
limit personal injury and property damage for each occurrence.

9.3 Professional Liability Insurance Covering Errors and Omissions. The limits of
coverage shall be no less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) with a provision for no
more than $25,000 deductible. Consultant may not disclaim responsibility or avoid liability for
the acts or omissions of its subcontractors or other professional consultants.

9.4 Certificates of Insurance and properly executed endorsements in a form
acceptable to the District Counsel evidencing the coverage required by the clauses set forth
above shall be filed with the District at the time of execution of this agreement. Each such
policy shall be endorsed with the following language:

(1) The San Benito County Water District is named as additional insured for all
liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy
protects the additional insured, its officers, .agents, and employees against liability for
personal and bodily injuries, deaths or property damage or destruction arising in any respect,
directly or indirectly, in the performance of the contract.

(2) The insurance provided is primary and no other insurance held or owned by
the District shall be called upon to contribute to a loss.

(3) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of

3



one insured against another insured, and the coverage afforded shall apply as though
separate policies had been issued to each insured.

(4) The coverage provided by this policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or
substantially reduced in amount or scope, without thirty (30) days prior to written notice given
to the District by certified mail.

(5) All rights of subrogation are hereby waived against the District, its officers and
employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

10. Confidentiality: All District information disclosed to Consultant during the course of
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by District, or required by law.

11. Conflict of Interest: Consultant warrants that neither Consultant, nor any of its
employees, agents or subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be
performed under this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this
Agreement, acquire any interest which would conflict in any manner with the performances of
services hereunder.

12, Nondiscrimination: During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant will not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion,
creed, color, national origin, sex or age. Consultant will take affirmative action to insure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard
to their race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex or age.

13. Independent Contractor: District and Consultant agree that the relationship
between them created by this Agreement is that of an employer-independent contractor.
Consultant shall be solely responsible for the conduct and control of the work performed
under this Agreement. Consultant shall be free to render professional consulting services to
others during the term of this Agreement, so long as such activities do not interfere with or
diminish Consultant's ability to fulfill the obligations established herein to District.

14. Commencement of Services: Consultant shall proceed with the project upon
execution of this Agreement by the parties.

15. Notice to Proceed; Progress; Completion: Upon execution of this Agreement by
the parties, District shall give Consultant written notice to proceed with the work. Such notice
may authorize Consultant to render all of the services contemplated herein, or such portions
or phases as may be mutually agreed upon. In the latter event, District shall, in its sole
discretion, issue subsequent notices from time to time regarding further portions or phases of
the work. Upon receipt of such notices, Consultant shall diligently proceed with the work
authorized and complete it within the agreed time period.




16. Ownership of Documents: Title to all documents, drawings, specifications, and
the like with respect to work performed under this Agreement shall vest with District at such
time as District has compensated Consultant, as provided herein, for the services rendered by
Consultant in connection with which they were prepared.

17. Designation of Key Personnel: The individuals specified in the attached EXHIBIT
shall provide the services set forth herein, and shall be the persons primarily in charge of such
work. Prior to the provision of work by any other individuals on this project, such other
individuals shall first be approved, in writing, by the District Manager or his designee.

18. Mistake of Fact: Each party understands that if any fact with respect to any matter
covered by this Agreement is found hereafter to be other or different from the facts now
believed by that party to be true, such party expressly accepts and assumes the risk of such
possible differences in fact and agrees that this Agreement shall be in all respects effective
and not subject to termination or rescission by reason of any such difference in facts.

19. Term; Termination: The term of this Agreement shall commence upon District's
issuance to Consultant of a notice to proceed for all or a portion of the work, as herein above
provided, and shall terminate upon District's acceptance and payment for all or such portion
of the work as was authorized by such notice, including any and all retention.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at
any time and for any reason whatsoever by giving at least ten (10) days prior written notice
of such termination to Consultant. In this latter event, Consultant shall be entitled to
compensation for all services rendered and work performed for District to the date of such
termination.

20. General Provisions:

20.1 Access to Records: Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents,
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for District under this
Agreement on file for at least one (1) year following the date of final payment to Consultant
by District. Any duly authorized representative(s) of District shall have access to such records
for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during Consultant's
usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to District's
representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which
shall be considered to be an additional service to the District, falling under the provisions of
SECTION 4 herein above.

20.2 Assignment: This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns
of the parties hereto and shall not be assigned by either District or Consultant without the
prior written consent of the other. Any attempt by Consultant to so assign this Agreement or
any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.

20.3 Compliance with Laws, Rules, Regulations: All services performed by

5



Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in full compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and District laws, including any rules, standards or regulations
promulgated thereunder.

204 Exhibits Incorporated: All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement and
attached to it are hereby incorporated in it by this reference.

20.5 Integration; Amendment: This Agreement represents the entire
understanding of District and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral
or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered
init. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by
both parties. :

20.6 Waiver/Validity: Consultant agrees that waiver by District of any one or
more of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver
of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the District
of the performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any term or condition of this Agreement.

21. Jurisdiction: District and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other
arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the
Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San Benito. If any part of this Agreement is
found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void
insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to
be in full force and effect.

22, Attorney's Fees: In the event any dispute between the parties hereto arising from
or relating to this Agreement shall result in litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
all reasonable costs, including, but not limited to, actual attorney's fees.

23. Notice: Any notices, required to be given pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal
Service, addressed to the parties as follows:

a. To District : San Benito County Water District
P. O. Box 899
Hollister, CA 95024-0899

b. To Consultant: Todd Groundwater
2490 Mariner Loop, Suite 215
Alameda, CA 94501

Nothing hereinabove shall prevent either District or Consultant from personal deliver of any
such notices to the other party.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day
and year first above written.

District: CONSULTANT:

By: ‘ By:

Title Title

Date Date



Exhibit A
SCOPE

TODD

GROUNDWATER

January 13, 2023

MEMORANDUM
To: Steve Wittry and Jeff Cattaneo, San Benito County Water District
From: Chad Taylor, PG, CHG, Vice President and Principal Hydrogeologist and Iris

Priestaf, PhD, President

Re: Scope of Work, Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) Design
Phase, North San Benito Groundwater Basin

To assist San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) in applying for grant funding through
the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) Integrated Regional Water
Management (IRMW) program, Todd Groundwater (Todd) is pleased to provide the scope of
work and associated budget estimate for professional services associated with the Design
Phase of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP).

ADROoP is the accelerated phase of an Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) project in the
North San Benito Groundwater Basin (Basin). The North San Benito Groundwater
Sustainability Plan (GSP) included Managed Aquifer Recharge (MAR), including ASR and
other projects, to maintain sustainability in the Basin. Prolonged drought has led SBCWD to
re-envision the ASR project to facilitate more groundwater storage on an accelerated
timeline through ADRoP. SBCWD has applied for project construction grant funds through
the DWR Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) program and the United States
Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) Small Storage program. SBCWD is now preparing a grant
application for funding the design phase of ADRoP through the DWR IRWM program. This
focuses on siting, environmental assessment, permitting, design, and outreach for five ASR
wells and associated water treatment and transmission capacity. We understand that HDR is
working on a scope of work for environmental compliance, permitting, and engineering. The
scope of work presented below represents the Todd Groundwater tasks during the ADRoP
design phase, including coordination with HDR where appropriate.

SCOPE OF WORK

Task 1. ASR Well Siting Support
The first task in ADRoP will be to finalize ASR well locations and develop access agreements

and assess construction feasibility and site conditions at each prospective ASR well location.
SBCWD has been pursuing potential ASR well locations and will be testing two sites in the

2490 Mariner Square Loop, Suite 215 | Alameda, CA 94501 | 510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com



coming months. Todd Groundwater will support SBCWD and HDR in finalizing the five ASR
locations and nearby monitoring wells for tracking injected and stored water conditions. We
will also assist in planning for access, easements, and or land acquisition for ASR and
associated monitoring wells. Todd’s role in this task will be focused on ASR well construction
feasibility and long-term access for maintenance. Property owner negotiations for the
purpose of access, easements, and/or acquisition will be undertaken by SBCWD and HDR.

Meetings:
o Up to four two-hour onsite meetings to review ASR and monitoring well location
feasibility.

Task 2. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Support

Todd Groundwater will support HDR in completing a programmatic CEQA analysis and
document for the project. This will include assessment of potential impacts associated with
general well construction and operation and for the entire 12 well ASR facility and project
specific elements related to ADRoP. Assessment of potential well construction impacts will
focus on land disturbance and other well drilling specific construction related activities.
Potential operational impacts will focus on groundwater level, storage volume, and quality
changes and effects on nearby existing well owners and other beneficial users. This may
include simulation of multiple project operation alternatives using the North San Benito
Basin numerical groundwater model to estimate changes to groundwater conditions.

Meetings:
¢ Monthly remote coordination meetings with CEQA team over a period of six
months.

Deliverables:

e Draft and final impacts analysis technical memorandum presented electronically in
Microsoft Word and Adobe Acrobat formats.

Task 3. Permitting Support

The main permit required for the ASR system will be State Water Resources Control Board
{SWRCB) authorization for ASR through the Statewide General Order for Aquifer Storage and
Recovery Projects (WQ Order 2012-0010). it is our understanding that this authorization is
not required until the ASR system is operational. As a result, this task includes preliminary
discussions with SWRCB and/or Central Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board
{RWQCB) staff and others to evaluate and plan for completion of an application. HDR will
lead this effort and Todd will support on an as-needed basis focused on hydrogeologic
conditions and well design.

Additional permitting requirements for construction of the ASR and monitoring wells
includes well construction permits and discharge authorization for water produced during
drilling, construction, development, and testing of the wells. SBCWD is the local well

Scope of Work - ADRoP Design
Phase 2 TODD GROUNDWATER



permitting authority, and their permit applications require property owner and drilling
contractor information and signatures. Drafts of these permits will be completed as part of
this task to expedite completion during the construction phase of ADRoP. Discharge
authorization is site dependent, but Todd has a good track record of authorization through
the RWQCB under a general waiver for specific types of discharge. Coordination with
RWQCB to receive discharge authorization is also included in this task.

Meetings:
* Up to four two-hour remote meetings with HDR and SWRCB or RWQCB.

Deliverabies:

o Draft well permit applications for SBCWD, driller, and landowner completion.
¢ Coordination of discharge agreements and authorization with RWQCB.

Task 4. ASR Well Design and Technical Specification Preparation

Detailed drilling and technical specifications will be prepared for the five ASR wells. The
technical specifications will be based on preliminary designs and will include initial total
anticipated drilling depths, logging requirements, aquifer zone testing, well construction,
development, and testing details. Initial ASR well designs will be based on locally available
lithology and well construction information and upcoming exploratory borehole program
results. Drilling will be specified as reverse rotary to provide borehole drilling without added
drilling fluids and to achieve appropriate well diameters. This approach is critical for the
construction of high-capacity efficient ASR wells. The specifications are anticipated to be
prepared to construct wells that are approximately 800 feet deep with pumping capacities
of 1,000 gallons per minute. These anticipated metrics may be adjusted following the ASR
exploratory borehole project that SBCWD is initiating now. In either case, the specifications
will provide flexibility to allow for depth and capacity adjustments based on subsurface
conditions encountered at each of the five ASR well locations. The technical specifications
will also include detailed instructions for the drilling, construction, development, and
wellhead completion for monitoring wells associated with the five ASR wells. For budget
estimation purposes it is assumed that there will be two monitoring wells associated with
each ASR well.

The ASR and monitoring well technical specifications will be incorporated into a bid package
for public release by HDR and/or SBCWD. In the past Todd Groundwater has prepared
technical specifications and bid schedule documents for wells and SBCWD has incorporated
those documents into complete bid packages for solicitation of drilling contractor bids. The
ASR well technical specifications may be included as a component of a larger construction
project that includes other ADRoP elements. It is assumed that combined set of bid
documents will be prepared by HDR and/or SBCWD

Deliverables:

e Draft and Final technical specifications for incorporation into a bid solicitation
package prepared by HDR and/or SBCWD,

Scope of Work - ADRoP Design
Phase 3 TODD GROUNDWATER



Task 5. Outreach and Stakeholder Engagement Support

It is our understanding that SBCWD and Data Instincts will take the lead in planning and
executing outreach for this project. It is assumed that outreach will include publications in
the form of website updates, fliers, posters, and handouts as well as presentations at public
information meetings and SGMA Technical Advisory Committee {TAC) meetings. Todd
Groundwater will support SBCWD and Data instincts by preparing materials that distill
technical information into presentations and graphics and by attending selected meetings.
For budget estimation we have assumed key Todd personnel will attend two public
workshops and up to three TAC meetings and will prepare elements of the presentations
and handout materials for these meetings.

Meetings:
¢ Two in-person public information workshops.
* Three TAC meetings.

Deliverables:

* Presentation materials for the meetings listed above.
¢ Text and graphics to support website updates, fliers, posters, and handouts
prepared by Data instincts and SBCWD.

Task 6. Bid Phase Support

Todd Groundwater will provide support to SBCWD during the bid phase of contractor
selection for ADRoP. This will include attendance of a pre-bid meeting for prospective
contractors and review and response to requests for information (RFis) and/or questions
that SBCWD receives while the bid phase is open. After bidding is complete and all qualified
bids have been received, Todd personnel will work with SBCWD and HDR to evaluate the
bids and select a contractor. Todd’s role in this evaluation will be focused on the drilling
contractor if the bid includes additional ADRoP components.

Meetings:
¢ One pre-bid meeting with prospective drilling contractors that will include visits to
the drilling sites.

Deliverables:
s As-needed responses to requests for information (RFis) and or questions related to
well construction received during the bid phase.
* Recommendations for contractor selection via email after bid review.

Task 7. Project Management

This task will include project management and communication between Todd Groundwater,
HDR, and SBCWD, including provision of monthly progress reports. Regular calls and emails
among SBCWD and consultant staff are expected.

Scope of Work - ADRoP Design
Phase 4 TODD GROUNDWATER



- Deliverables:
e Monthly invoices and project status summaries submitted to SBCWD.

COST ESTIMATE

The estimated cost to complete the scope of work presented above is $234,400, as shown in
the attached Table 1. If additional technical labor is required, costs for changes or additions
to the scope can be assessed.

Scope of Work - ADRoP Design
Phase 5 TODD GROUNDWATER



Table 1. Estimated Costs - ADRoP Design Phase Tasks

Exhibit B

Compensation

TODD

GROUNDWATER

Chad Taylor, Brent Johnson, Arden Wells, GIS/ Other Direct
Iris Priestaf, Principal Gus Yates, Senior Maureen Reilly, Associate Associate Staff Graphics Admin Total Costs
President drogeologist Hydrologist Senior Engineer Geologist Geologist Geologist Hours Hours Labor Todd Labor | (costs plus Expense Fee
$275 $265 $260 $255 $190 $170 $165 $155 $140 Hours Costs 15%) 15% Total Costs.

Task 1. ASR Well Siting Support 5 20 5 5 . 40 40 40 10 0 165 $31.800 $1,000 $0 $32,800
Task 2. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Support 10 60 80 40 40 50 40 20 0 340 $75,450 $0 $2,500 $77,950
Task 3. Permitting Support 5 30 10 30 30| 10| 20 10 0 145 $31.825 $0 $0| $31,825
Task 4. ASR Well Design and Technical Specification
Preparation 5 30 10 0 20 20 30 20 0 135! $27,175 $0 $0 $27,175
Task 5. Outreach and Stakeholder Engagement Support 15, 30 20 5 5 5 0 10 0 90 $21,900 $1,500 $2,500 $25,900
Task 6. Bid Phase Support 5 15 0 0 20 10 10 10 0 70 $14,050 $500 $0 $14,550
Task 7. Project Management 20 60 0 0 0 0 0 0 20 100 $24,200 $0 $0 $24,200

Total Estimate 65 245 125 80 155 135 140 80 20| 1045| $226,400 $3,000 $5,000] $234,400

Ti\Projects\San Benito On-Call Service 2022 37657\San Benito IRWM Grant Application 37567-03\Scope and

Budget -

sign Phase for IRWM Grant 20230113 xlsx - ADROP Design Phase Budget




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: 8
Meeting Date: February 22, 2023
Submitted By: Joyce Machado

Presented By: Joyce Machado

Agenda Title: Consider Appointing Barbara Mauro as Secretary of the Board of
Directors :

Detailed Description:

Board Secretary main roles and responsibilities include the following:

Record and distribute board meeting minutes
Maintain accurate meeting records

Schedule regular board meetings

Oversee board member lists

Ensure contact information is up-to-date
Hold members accountable

Track board member terms

Orient new board members

The above roles and responsibilities are managed in Barbara Mauro’s position, as the
District’s Board Clerk/Office Specialist III. In consideration of this fact, board action is
necessary to appoint Ms. Mauro as Secretary of the Board of Directors.

Prior Committee or Board Action(s): N/A

Financial Impact: : Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A
Material Included for Information/Consideration: N/A

Recommendation: Board accept staff’s recommendation to appoint Barbara Mauro as
Secretary of the Board of Directors.




Action Required: Resolution X___ Motion Review
Board Action

_Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: q
Meeting Date: February 22, 2023

Submitted By: David Macdonald, P.E. Associate Engineer

Presented By: David Macdonald, P.E. Associate Engineer

Agenda Title: Discuss and Consider Authorization to Increase Contract Purchase Order
(P.O. #8037) to CSI Services by $15,784 for Inspection Services for the Industrial Paint
Project (NTE $80,784)

Detailed Description:

In August 2022, San Benito County Water District Board provided a purchase order
(P.O.) for $26,400 to CSI Services for inspection services for the Industrial Paint Project.
The P.O. was increased by $38,600 on October 26, 2022 to a not-to-exceed amount of
$65,000 in order to cover the entire duration of the project. Due to heavy rainfall, there
have been some delays to the completion of the project with additional days needed for
inspection.

Therefore, staff is requesting authorization to increase the amount of the P.O. by $15,784,
for a total not-to-exceed amount of $80,784, to pay for inspection services through the
completion of the project with some contingency funds to cover delays. There is
sufficient funding in the project account to accommodate this request. The project is in
the final stages and would require no further inspection services.

Financial Impact: X Yes No
Increase contracted amount to CSI services by $15,784 to provide inspection services for
the project.

Funding Source/ Recap:
600-6275-0939-542-02 — Industrial Paint Project Capital Project

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
N/A

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board authorize an increase the amount of the P.O. by $15,784, for
a total not-to-exceed amount of $80,784, to pay for inspection services through the
completion of the project




Action Required:

Resolution X Motion Review

Board Action
____Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




